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Eczacıbaşı Holding Chairperson 
Bülent Eczacıbaşı began his 
professional career in 1974, and held 
various positions in Eczacıbaşı 
Group companies. He also served 
in the management of a number of 
prominent business associations, 
including TÜSİAD, the Turkish Industry 
and Business Association, where he 
was Chairperson of the Board (1991- 
1993) and Chairperson of the High 
Advisory Council (1997- 2001); and 
the Turkish Pharmaceuticals 
Manufacturers’ Association (İEİS), 
where he was Chairperson of the 
Board (2000-2008). He serves as 
chairperson of the board of directors 
and a member of the board of 
directors in Eczacıbaşı Group 
companies. Bülent Eczacıbaşı 
continues to serve both TÜSİAD 
and İEİS as Honorary Chairperson. 
He is also an Honorary Member of 
both the Foreign Economic Relations 
Board (DEİK) and Turkish Enterprise 
and Business Confederation 
(TÜRKONFED), and a member of 
the High Advisory Council of the 
Aegean Industry and Business 
Association (ESİAD). 

Bülent Eczacıbaşı is also on the 
boards of various civic organizations. 
He is Chairperson of the Board of 
Trustees of the Istanbul Modern 
Art Foundation, Chairperson of the 
Board of Directors of the Istanbul 
Foundation for Culture and Arts 
(IKSV), and a member of the High 
Advisory Board of the Turkish 
Economic and Social Studies 
Foundation (TESEV), which he 
previously served as the Founding 
Chairperson (1993-1997).

Bülent Eczacıbaşı graduated from 
the Department of Chemistry of 
the Imperial College of Science and 
Technology, London, and obtained 
his master’s degree in chemical 
engineering from the Massachusetts 
Institute of Technology. He has received 
French and Italian awards of merit, 
respectively the “Chevalier dans 
l'Ordre National de la Légion 
d'Honneur” and “Commendatore 
dell'Ordine della Stella d'Italia”. 
He is the author of "A Rip in the Sea: 
New Responsibilities for Business" 
(2020), a book about his experiences 
in business and the new roles and 
responsibilities of business leaders. 
Bülent Eczacıbaşı is also an avid 
photographer who loves to experience 
diverse cultures. A selection of 
photographs bearing witness to the 
people and stories he encountered 
during his travels was also published 
in 2020 under the title "From the Road".

Faruk Eczacıbaşı began working 
in the Eczacıbaşı Group in 1980 
after completing his graduate 
work at Berlin Technical 
University, and for many years 
managed the Group’s
e-transformation process.

Faruk Eczacıbaşı is President of 
the Turkish Informatics 
Foundation (TBV) which he 
co-founded in 1995. In this role, he 
contributes to the preparation of 
numerous studies on related 
issues as well as the shaping of 
public policy.

In 1996, Faruk Eczacıbaşı assumed 
his current position as Vice 
Chairperson of the Eczacıbaşı 
Group. He serves as chairperson, 
vice-chairperson or member of 
several Eczacıbaşı Group 
companies. In 1999, he also 
became President of the 
Eczacıbaşı Sports Club.

Faruk Eczacıbaşı has written a 
book on the transformational 
changes taking place in Turkey 
and around the world as a result 
of new digital technologies. 
Published in Turkish in 2018, the 
book considers the challenges for 
individuals, institutions and 
societies, and discusses ways to 
prepare for the positive and 
negative aspects of the digital 
future.

Atalay Gümrah graduated from 
Galatasaray Lycée and Boğaziçi 
University’s Industrial Engineering 
Department. He received a 
master’s degree in Industrial 
Engineering from the same 
university.

Gümrah initiated his career in 1992 
at Ekom Eczacıbaşı Foreign Trade 
as Regional Manager. In 1994, he 
was appointed Commercial 
Manager of VitrA UK, and in 1997, 
General Manager of the Group’s 
newly established marketing and 
sales company in Russia, EBM 
Jsc., where he was given the 
responsibility of developing its 
business. In 1999, Gümrah joined 
Intema Building Materials 
Marketing and Sales, where he 
served respectively as Projects 
and Operation Manager, Sales 
Operation Manager, Assistant 
General Manager, and General 
Manager, a position he held 
between 2006 and 2011. In 
January 2011, he was appointed 
Vice President of the Eczacıbaşı 
Building Products Division 
(Bathrooms) and General 
Manager of Eczacıbaşı Building 
Products, and in October 2013, 
he was given the additional role 
of Executive Vice President of the 
Eczacıbaşı Building Products 
Division. A member of the Board 
of several Building Products 
Division companies, Gümrah was 
appointed CEO of the Eczacıbaşı 
Group efective as of 1 February 
2017.

Gümrah, who has served as the 
chairperson of the board of 
directors, vice-chairperson and 
board members in Eczacıbaşı 
Group companies, has also served 
as the General Manager of 
Eczacıbaşı Holding since January 
1, 2019; he also continues to be 
the Chairperson of the Clay, 
Ceramic, Cement and Glass 
Industry Employers’ Association 
of Turkey.

F. Bülent Eczacıbaşı R. Faruk Eczacıbaşı Atalay M. Gümrah

Board of Directors



  

Born in 1967, Ata Selçuk 
graduated from the Business 
Administration Department of the 
Middle East Technical University 
in 1989.

He started his career, in 1989, as a 
Product Manager at Düzey 
Pazarlama. He held various o�ices 
in the field of marketing and sales, 
at Abdi İbrahim İlaç, from 1992 to 
1999. He joined Eczacıbaşı Group 
as the Marketing and Sales 
Manager for Eczacıbaşı İlaç 
Pazarlama in 1999. He worked as 
the General Manager of Eczacıbaşı 
Sağlık Hizmetleri from 2004 to 
2008, the General Manager of RTS 
Renal Tedavi Hizmetleri from 
2008 to 2009, as the Innovation 
Coordinator of Eczacıbaşı Holding 
from 2009 to 2014, and as 
Innovation and Sustainability 
Coordinator from 2014 to 2017. 
Appointed as Eczacıbaşı Holding 
Human Resources Group Head on 
October 1, 2017, Ata Selçuk held 
such o�ice until December 31, 
2020 when he retired and left 
Eczacıbaşı Holding. 

Turgut Tokgöz earned his BSc in 
Economics from the Middle East 
Technical University (METU) in 
1989. Following his graduation 
from METU, he briefly worked for 
the Undersecretariat of Treasury 
and Foreign Trade as an assistant 
supervisor. In 1992, he completed 
his graduate study in international 
relations at The Johns Hopkins 
University (SAIS) followed by a 
graduate degree in economics 
from the University of California 
at Santa Barbara in 1993.

Between 1993 and 1996, he 
worked for TEB Research as 
economist and banking sector 
analyst. In the meantime, he held 
a part-time position as a lecturer 
in economics at Istanbul Bilgi 
University. In 1996 he joined 
Eczacibasi Securities and held 
executive positions until 2001. In 
May 2001, Turgut Tokgoz took the 
position of Secretary General at 
the Turkish Capital Markets 
Association. Meanwhile, he served 
as Board Member at Turkish 
Derivatives Exchange and The 
Central Registry Agency. Tokgöz 
worked as Secretary General of 
the Pharmaceutical Manufacturers 
Association of Turkey between 
2004 and 2020. Turgut Tokgöz 
has been an independent member 
of Eczacıbaşı Group's Board of 
Directors since 2018.

Born in Balıkesir in 1957, Erkan 
Durusoy completed his higher 
education at the Faculty of 
Economics of Istanbul University.

Erkan Durusoy, who started his 
career as the Financial A�airs 
Manager in Aldağ Soğutma 
Sanayii A.Ş. of Alarko Group, 
served as Financial A�airs 
Director in the same company 
in 1981 and as Financial A�airs 
Director in Etaş Elektronik 
Tic. A.Ş. in 1984.

Having joined Eczacıbaşı Group 
in 1985 as the Financial A�airs 
Director of Sunum Endüstriyel 
Temsilcilik ve Pazarlama A.Ş., 
Erkan Durusoy took o�ice as the 
Financial A�airs Director of 
İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat 
Malzemeleri Yatırım ve Pazarlama 
A.Ş. in 1987 and served in the 
same position until 2013 when 
he retired.

Ata Selçuk Ahmet Turgut 
Tokgöz

Erkan Durusoy
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ANNUAL REPORT 

ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH 

 

To the General Assembly of Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. 

 

1. Opinion 

 

We have audited the annual report of Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. (the “Company”) for the  

1 January - 31 December 2021 period. 

 

In our opinion, the financial information and the analysis made by the Board of Directors by using the 

information included in the audited financial statements regarding the Company’s position in the Board of 

Directors’ Annual Report are consistent and presented fairly, in all material respects, with the audited full 

set financial statements and with the information obtained in the course of independent audit. 

 

2. Basis for Opinion 

 

Our independent audit was conducted in accordance with the Independent Standards on Auditing that are 

part of the Turkish Standards on Auditing (the “TSA”) issued by the Public Oversight Accounting and 

Auditing Standards Authority (“POA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 

the Auditor’s Responsibilities in the Audit of the Board of Directors’ Annual Report section of our report. 

We hereby declare that we are independent of the Company in accordance with the Ethical Rules for 

Independent Auditors (including Independence Standards) (the “Ethical Rules”) and the ethical 

requirements regarding independent audit in regulations issued by POA that are relevant to our audit of 

the financial statements. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 

Ethical Rules and regulations. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained during the 

independent audit provides a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion. 

 

3. Our Audit Opinion on the Full Set Financial Statements 

 

We expressed an unqualified opinion in the auditor’s report dated 25 February 2022 on the full set 

financial statements for the 1 January - 31 December 2021 period. 

http://www.pwc.com.tr/


 

 

4. Board of Director’s Responsibility for the Annual Report 

 

Company management’s responsibilities related to the annual report according to Articles 514 and 516 of 

Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) No. 6102 and Capital Markets Board’s (“CMB”) Communiqué Serial II, 

No:14.1, “Principles of Financial Reporting in Capital Markets” (the “Communiqué”) are as follows: 

 

a) to prepare the annual report within the first three months following the balance sheet date and 

present it to the general assembly; 

 

b) to prepare the annual report to reflect the Company’s operations in that year and the financial 

position in a true, complete, straightforward, fair and proper manner in all respects. In this report 

financial position is assessed in accordance with the financial statements. Also in the report, 

developments and possible risks which the Company may encounter are clearly indicated. The 

assessments of the Board of Directors in regards to these matters are also included in the report. 

 

c) to include the matters below in the annual report: 

 

− events of particular importance that occurred in the Company after the operating year, 

 

− the Company’s research and development activities, 

 

− financial benefits such as salaries, bonuses, premiums and allowances, travel, 

accommodation and representation expenses, benefits in cash and in kind, insurance and 

similar guarantees paid to members of the Board of Directors and senior management. 

 

When preparing the annual report, the Board of Directors considers secondary legislation arrangements 

enacted by the Ministry of Trade and other relevant institutions. 
  



 

 

 

5. Independent Auditor’s Responsibility in the Audit of the Annual Report 

 

Our aim is to express an opinion and issue a report comprising our opinion within the framework of TCC 

and Communiqué provisions regarding whether or not the financial information and the analysis made by 

the Board of Directors by using the information included in the audited financial statements in the annual 

report are consistent and presented fairly with the audited financial statements of the Company and with 

the information we obtained in the course of independent audit. 

 

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the TSAs.These standards require that ethical requirements 

are complied with and that the independent audit is planned and performed in a way to obtain reasonable 

assurance of whether or not the financial information and the analysis made by the Board of Directors by 

using the information included in the audited financial statements in the annual report are consistent and 

presented fairly with the audited financial statements and with the information obtained in the course of 

audit. 

 

PwC Bağımsız Denetim ve 

Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş. 
 

 

 

 

Ediz Günsel, SMMM 

Partner 
 

Istanbul, 25 February 2022 
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

1.1. Reporting Period 

This report covers the period of 1st January - 31st December 2021.  

1.2. Trade Name                               : Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. 

       Trade Registration Number     : 125209 

       Head Office Address                 : Kanyon Ofis Büyükdere Cad. No: 185 34394 Istanbul  

       Website                                       : www.eyh.eczacibasi.com.tr , www.eczacibasi.com.tr 

  

1.3. Capital and Shareholding Structure 

       Issued Capital                        : TL 105,000,000 

       Registered Capital           : TL 500,000,000 

       Shareholding Structure          : The shareholding structure of the company as of 31.12.2021 is shown    
below: 

 

Shareholder 

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 

Share Amount 
(TL) 

Share Ratio 
(%) 

Amount of 
Shares  
(TL) 

Share Ratio 
(%) 

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 85,653,274 81.57 85,653,274 81.57 

Other  19,346,726 18.43 19,346,726 18.43 

Total 105,000,000 100 105,000,000 100 
 
The company is in the registered capital system and the authorized capital ceiling is TL 500,000,000. The 
issued capital of the Company is divided into 105,000,000 shares with a nominal value of TL 1 each. There 
is no privileged share and each share has one voting right. The Company has not acquired its own shares. 
 
Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. shares are traded on Borsa İstanbul A.Ş. (BIST) with the code 
ECZYT. 
 
Changes in Capital and Shareholding Structure During the Period 

No change occurred in the capital and shareholding structure between 01 January 2021 - 31 December 2021. 

1.4. Information on the Company's Organization, Board of Directors, Senior Executives, and Number 
of Personnel, Financial benefits provided to Members of the Board of Directors and Senior Executives 

The Board of Directors consists of six members, two of which are independent members. In 2021, there was 
no situation that eliminated the independence of independent members, the independence declarations 
received from independent members are included in our annual report. 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.eyh.eczacibasi.com.tr/
http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/
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Information on the members of the Board of Directors elected to serve for a period of one year at our 
company's ordinary general assembly meeting held on April 13, 2021 is provided below:   
 

Name, Surname of 
Board Member Position Date of Coming 

into Office  
Status of 

Independency 

Ferit Bülent Eczacıbaşı Chairman of the Board 13.04.2021 - 
Rahmi Faruk Eczacıbaşı Vice Chairman of the Board 13.04.2021 - 
Atalay Muharrem 
Gümrah Member 13.04.2021 - 

Ata Selçuk Member 13.04.2021 - 

Ahmet Turgut Tokgöz Member 13.04.2021 Independent 
Member  

Erkan Durusoy Member 13.04.2021 Independent 
Member 

 

Committees Established within the Board of Directors  

Committee in Charge of Audit, Corporate Management Committee and Early Risk Identification Committee 
were established by the Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions in the Corporate Governance 
Communiqué of the Capital Markets Board. Duties of Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee 
are fulfilled by the Corporate Management Committee. Information about the members of committee as of 
December 31, 2021 is given below: 

Audit Committee  

Ahmet Turgut Tokgöz  President 

Erkan Durusoy   Member 
 
Corporate Governance Committee 

Erkan Durusoy   President 

Ata Selçuk   Member 

Zeynep Serttepe   Member 

  
Committee of Early Detection of Risk 

Ahmet Turgut Tokgöz  President 

Atalay Muharrem Gümrah Member 
 

Assessment of the Board of Directors Related to the Activities of the Committees 

Established by the Board of Directors, the committees discharged their duties and responsibilities set forth in 
their duty and working principles and took care to convene at frequencies deemed necessary for effective 
work. The Board of Directors provided the committees with any resource and support required for the 
fulfillment of their duties. The committees informed the Board of Directors, verbally and in writing, about 
their works. 

Number of Personnel 

Our Company does not have any permanent employees and the management services are carried out by 
outsourced services and consultancy. 
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Total amount of the financial benefits provided to the Board members and senior executives, such as 
attendance fees, remunerations, premiums, dividends 

As determined at the general assembly meeting held on April 13, 2021, where the activities of 2020 were 
discussed, a gross attendance fee of TL 450,000 was paid to the members of the Board of Directors within 
the period of 1 January - 31 December 2021.  

Information on the total amount of the allowances, travel, accommodation and entertainment 
expenses, as well as opportunities in kind and in cash, insurances, and similar guarantees provided to 
the Board members and senior executives 

There is no amount paid. 

Information on Activities of the Board Members within the Scope of the Prohibition of Competition 

The members of the Board of Directors did not take any action against the prohibition of competition within 
the period of January 1 – December 31, 2021. 

2. ACTIVITIES, SUBSTANTIAL DEVELOPMENTS RELATED TO ACTIVITIES AND 
FINANCIAL POSITION 

Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. was founded on December 29th, 1973 in Istanbul. 

The main subject of activity of the Company is to participate in the capitals of existing or future equity 
companies with a profit making capability or potential, established in such areas as may be deemed 
appropriate by the Company, or to invest in shares and other securities issued or to be issued by such 
companies. 

Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı has 4 affiliates which are wholly owned by Eczacıbaşı Group as of 
December 31, 2021.* 

2.1. Information on Affiliates: 
 

Trade Name Scope of Activity Shareholding 
Ratio (%) 

İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat Malzemeleri 
Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. 

Sales and after-sales services of ceramic 
sanitary ware, armatures, bathtubs, shower 
trays, bathroom furniture, ceramic coating 
products, construction chemicals, kitchen 
furniture and accessories throughout Turkey 

46.21 

E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri San. ve 
Tic. A.Ş. Developing and producing smart card solutions 31.01 

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal 
Yatırımlar San. ve Tic. A.Ş.** 

Participating and making real estate 
investments 30.34 

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş.*** Participating 11.54 

* All of the 10.29% shares in the capital of Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş were sold to Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. on 
April 15, 2021, and the entire sales price of TL 208,755,000 was paid in cash and advance on April 15, 2021. 

** As a result of the share purchases made on 30.12.2021, our share ratio increased to 30.36% as of 04.01.2022. 

*** Our Company holds 11.54% of the shares in our main shareholder Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş., and it does not have any directive 
effect or control over the organization and investment policies of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 
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E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. 

 

 
                         

31.12.2021       31.12.2020 
Paid-in Capital TL 3,110,000  TL 3,110,000 
Total Assets TL 169,964,008 TL 109,718,035 
Equity TL (41,757,941) TL (17,487,756) 
Revenue TL 234,099,493    TL 158,223,790 
Net Profit TL 26,777,621           TL 14,378,120 
 
Innovation-based security: We have the responsibility to connect individuals to the digital world without 
interruption. 

In today's modern world, where a secure and uninterrupted connection experience is one of the 
indispensables of our lives, an increasing number of people can easily and securely connect to the digital 
world to exchange information without having to worry about their personal information being changed, 
stolen or used for other purposes. 

E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş (E-Kart) was established in 1999 with the purpose 
of providing its customers with innovative, secure and uninterrupted connectivity systems and processes that 
can be easily carried out anywhere/anytime and that protect the privacy and security of their personal 
information.  

50% of E-Kart's shares were sold to Giesecke+Devrient GmbH in 2001, the world's second largest company 
in its field. E-Kart incorporated by Gisecke&Devrient and Eczacıbaşı Group with a common vision is 
Turkey’s high-tech card development and production center specializing in fields of e-commerce and e-
business, defined as today’s business life form, such as high security, power assignment and definition, 
cheap data storage and management. 

Having started the production in 2001 and having the facility that is able to produce and personalize the first 
Visa/Europay-approved credit card in Turkey and the smart credit card, E-Kart was also the first sim card 
production facility in Turkey.  

The annual card production capacity of E-Kart is 100 million. E-Kart incorporates within itself the daily card 
personalization operations of many banks thanks to the fast, quality and reliable service concept it offers to 
its customers, besides its smart card production.  

E-Kart possesses an infrastructure that is capable of performing Visa/Europay, SAS, and other international 
security certification operations, as well as card production, software, and personalization operations. 

50%

31.01%

17.28%
1.72%

Shareholding Structure

Giesecke+Devrient
GmbH

Eczacıbaş Yatırım
Holding  Ortaklığı
A.Ş.
Eczacıbaşı Holding
A.Ş.

Eczacıbaşı Bilişim
Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.
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Holding ISO 27001 Information Security Management System Certificate, E-Kart added to its list AMEX 
certificate and ISO 14298 Secure Printing Processes Management certificate in 2014, and Diners Certificate 
in 2015. It led the way in Turkey with ISO 22301 Business Continuity Management System certificate to 
ensure the continuation of our products and services under exceptional circumstances. In 2011, it added ISO 
14001 Environmental Management System and ISO 45001 Occupational Health and Safety Management 
System certificates to its ISO 9001 certificate that certifies it quality management system. 

A key player in all markets where it operates, E-Kart has become a large vendor in TRNC, Moldova, 
Ukraine, Azerbaijan, and Kazakhstan thanks to the marketing and sales activities it carries out in line with its 
geographic growth target. It aims to continue its growth by entering into new markets.   

With the end of the bottleneck in the e-ID cards market due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the 
sales in the ID card market affected the revenues of 2021 positively, but the 2021 period resulted in a loss 
due to the negative impact of the increase in exchange rates on operating profit and financing expenses. The 
global chip bottleneck, which started towards the end of 2020, affected the smart card industry as well as 
sectors such as automotive and consumer electronics. Chip suppliers partially or completely canceling the 
orders they plan to ship for 2021 left card manufacturers in a difficult situation in supplying raw materials. E-
Kart manages this challenging times by using its limited resources effectively and by staying in constant 
contact with customers. 
 
EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. 
 

 
 

         31.12.2021 
             

          31.12.2020 
Paid-in Capital  TL 685,260,000           TL 685,260,000 
Total Assets TL 8,264,593,000                  TL 5,970,231,000 
Equity TL 7,395,768,000                       TL 5,282,308,000 
Revenue TL 1,013,515,000                                 TL 909,132,000 
Net Profit      TL 755,072,000                   TL 322,114,000 

 

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. was established on October 24, 
1951. The Company is not engaged in any actual manufacturing activity and it has a kind of holding 
structure with its existing subsidiaries, business partnerships and affiliates.  

Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar was established in partnership (50%-50%) with İş Gayrimenkul 
Yatırım Ortaklığı A.Ş. in Istanbul Province, Şişli District, Büyükdere Caddesi Location and owns the half of 
Kanyon shopping center, which was realized as the first outdoor shopping center project in Turkey, and the 
entire 26-storey office block. With the lifting of the restrictions on restaurants and cafes within the scope of 

50.62%30.34%

19,04%

Shareholding Structure

Eczacıbaşı Holding
A.Ş.

Eczacıbaş Yatırım
Holding  Ortaklığı
A.Ş.
Diğer
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the COVID-19 as of June 1, 2021, all stores in Kanyon AVM opened, and this opening had a positive impact 
on the number of guests in restaurants and cafes from the first day. As of 31 December 2021, the total rent 
income generated by Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar from Kanyon offices and shopping center 
was TL 79,882 thousand (31 December 2020: TL 66,510 thousand). 
On 31 December 2007, Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar purchased the half of 22 building plots 
equal to 196,409.74 m² in total which were situated in Yorgancı Çiftliği Location, Uskumru Quarter of 
Sarıyer District. The other half of it belongs to Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. A total of 90 thousand m² of 
construction has been built on the said real estate, and this completed project is mainly residential, but there 
are also partially commercial areas. The occupancy permits were obtained for all the buildings (residence 
and commercial units). In Ormanada which was designed in collaboration with Torti Gallas and Partners, 
Kreatif Mimarlık and Rainer Schmidt Landscape Architects having international knowledge and experience; 
the residences are of 170 to 700 m² In Ormanada, there are 273 residences as 188 villas and 85 row houses; 
and there are 150 residences on the First Phase and 123 residences on the Second Phase. The delivery of the 
residences on the first phase started as of April 2013 and the delivery of the residences on the second phase 
started as of December 2013. As of 31 December 2021, all of the residences in the Ormanada project have 
been sold and delivered, and there is only 1 property that has been rented out as a commercial area from the 
project. 
 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic that impacted our country, just like the rest of the world, the product 
promotion activities, carried out by visiting health institutions and organizations, were stopped on 19 March 
2020 by the Turkish Medicines and Medical Devices Agency (TMMDA) until further notice. Accordingly, 
the short-time working allowance started to be utilized as of 13 April 2020 for the personnel who took office 
as Medical Promotion Officer and Specialist Medical Promotion Officer (MPO) of EİP Eczacıbaşı İlaç 
Pazarlama A.Ş. Pursuant to the letter of TMMDA dated 5 June 2020, MPO personnel who may carry out the 
promotion activities were switched from the full short-time working allowance to the 2/3 short-time working 
allowance as of 15 June 2020. Employees falling into such scope performed promotional activities 2 days a 
week throughout March 2021 and they started working as full-time employees in April. The hospital field 
team, however, from September 2020 to end of March 2021, worked for 20% of the full time and they 
started working as full time, starting from April. In May, with the lockdown, short-time working allowance 
was utilized, whereas in June, all teams worked full time. With the expiry of short-time working allowance 
on 30 June 2021, normal working order resumed. 
 
The company's total number of personnel as of 31 December 2021 is 17 (31 December 2020: 9) and all of 
them are subject to the Labor Law. There are no collective labor agreement practices applicable. The wages 
and rights of the employees should be determined in accordance with the relevant legislation and the internal 
regulations of Eczacıbaşı Group. In this framework, the employees have the opportunity to participate in 
training and career programs suitable for their personal and professional development in addition to the 
benefits they might have according to their positions, such as private health and life insurance, clothing, 
relocation and meal benefits, marriage, birth-death, and child benefits.



 
ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş.  
ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FOR THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1ST - DECEMBER 31ST, 2021 
 

 
ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş.             7 
 

İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat Malzemeleri Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. 

 
 

 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 
Paid-in Capital TL 19,440,000 TL 19,440,000 
Total Assets TL 469,801,262                 TL 362,921,159 
Equity TL 55,195,855                  TL 27,113,196 
Revenue TL 239,426,340                 TL 157,617,374 
Net Profit TL 28,082,659                 TL 2,732,689 
   

İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat Malzemeleri Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. (İntema) was incorporated in 1978 in 
İstanbul. Its actual scope of activities includes the marketing and sales of Eczacıbaşı Construction Group's 
products and other products it procures across Turkey, as well as the realization of the guiding and 
informative presentation, exhibition, consultancy, sales, and after-sales services, which start from the project 
and design, for the whole of products and services addressing the bathroom and kitchen renovation market.  

Intema carries out domestic marketing and sales of bathroom products in the wholesale and retail markets 
and of tiles and construction chemicals in the retail channel within the body of Ezacıbaşı Construction 
Group. The product groups that it markets and sells consist of ceramic sanitary ware, armatures, bathtubs, 
shower trays, concealed reservoirs, bathroom furniture, ceramic coating products, construction chemicals, 
kitchen furniture, counters and accessories, kitchen appliances and small household appliances.  
 
The point of sale structure ensured through İntema stores is spread to the authorized dealer channel and the 
correct representation of the organization's and brand's reputation, as well as the standardization of the 
showcase and service quality, are ensured. İntema stores put their signatures under "turnkey" projects by 
carrying out all processes from the drawing to the assembly of a project. Carrying out their activities under 
the organization of İntema and being the first coordinated service organization in their sector, VitrA-Artema-
İntema authorized services today provides after-sales service support for the construction group products to 
99 points around Turkey. 
 
According to the statistics for December 2021 period published by the Statistical Institute of Turkey (TUIK):  

 
- Residence sales across Turkey decreased by 0.5% in 2021 compared to the previous year and 

amounted to 1,491,856. 
- Seasonally adjusted Construction Sector Confidence Index, which was 73.3 in December 2020, 

became 90.0 in December 2021. 
- Building Construction Cost Index increased by 15.70% in December 2021 compared to the previous 

month and by 67.74% compared to the same month of the previous year.  

46.21%
39.69%

14.10%

Shareholding Structure

Eczacıbaşı Yatırım
Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş.

Eczacıbaşı Holding
A.Ş.

Diğer
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According to the January 2022 Sector Report prepared by the Turkish Construction Material Industrialists' 
Association (Turkish IMSAD); In the first eleven months of 2021, an increase of 20.90% has occurred in 
manufacture, compared to the same period last year. The viable domestic demand and the significant 
increase in demand in foreign markets continued to be effective. In the first eleven months of 2021, 
production in all 22 sub-sectors increased compared to the same period of 2020.  

As of 31 December 2021, Intema has 195 employees (31 December 2020: 205). Collective Labor Agreement 
entered into with the employees is not included.  

The merger of Intema Yaşam Ev ve Mutfak Ürünleri Pazarlama Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş., a wholly owned 
subsidiary, within the body of Intema in a simplified manner, by taking over all assets and liabilities as a 
whole by Intema, was completed in March 2021. With the merger, it was aimed to simplify the 
organizational structure and management by bringing companies under a single legal entity and commercial 
structure, to increase efficiency by reducing operational costs, and to expand sales channels with the 
integrated structure established. 

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 

Established at the end of 1969, Eczacıbaşı Holding carries out and directs the strategic planning, financial 
management, audit, and new project assessments of Eczacıbaşı Group, in addition to its general investment 
activities. In addition, it serves as a consultant in the activities of organization and human resources, 
information technologies, and communication systems of the Group's companies and conducts the corporate 
communication activities of the Group. The paid-up capital of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. is TL 852,000,000. 

2.2. Financial Status 
 
Even though the global economy experienced a strong recovery in 2021, new threats have emerged that 
could jeopardize the recovery in emerging economies, such as COVID-19 variants, inflation, and an increase 
in debt/income inequality. According to Global Economic Expectations Report of the World Bank of January 
2022, the global growth rate is expected to lose momentum and to drop, from 5.5% in 2021, to 4.1% in 2022 
and 3.2% in 2023. Quick spread of the Omicron variant indicates that the pandemic will continue to disrupt 
the economic activity in the short run. Additionally, the remarkable slowdown recorded in large economic 
including the US and China pressures the external demand of emerging and developing economies. 
Persistent supply chain bottlenecks, inflationary pressures and increasing financial vulnerabilities in many 
parts of the world pose risks to the global economy.  
 
The leading indicators regarding the last quarter of 2021 in Turkey indicate that the economic activity 
progresses strongly despite of a loss in momentum to a certain extent, driven by fluctuations in financial 
markets. While the annual Consumer Price Index (CPI) reached a high level with 36.1% by the end of 2021, 
increase in the inflation is expected to continue in the first half of 2022, due to effect of hikes in global 
commodity and energy prices as well as price and wage increases in many domestic items with the arrival of 
the new year. 
 
In the light of these developments, the Company's high net cash position and dividends received from its 
subsidiaries provided resistance against the negative effects of the pandemic and Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding 
Ortaklığı A.Ş., by completing its activities in the period 01.01.2021-31.12.2021 with profit, earned a net 
profit of TL 429,422,345.  
 
The Company's strong financial structure continued this year as well as in previous years. 
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Our 2021 activities have been carried out in accordance with our current strategies and policies, adhering to 
the precautionary principle. Operations will continue within the framework of the same principles in 2022, 
too. 
2.3. Financial Indicators 
 

Summarized Profit & Loss 
Statement 

Amount Relating to the 
Period 01.01.2021 – 

31.12.2021 (TL) 

Amount Relating to the 
Period 01.01.2020 – 

31.12.2020 (TL) 

Change 
(%) 

Sales Income - - - 
Gross Profit - - - 
Real Operating Profit 229,758,742      43,792,647 424.65 
Depreciation and Amortization (20,712)     (17,025) 21.65 
Operating Profit Before 
Depreciation 229,779,454      43,809,672 424.49 

Net Profit for the Period 429,422,345             135,983,681 215.78 
 

Summarized Balance-Sheet 31.12.2021 
Related Amount (TL) 

31.12.2020  
Related Amount (TL) 

Change 
(%) 

Total Assets 4,087,180,810 2,903,421,280 40.77 
Total liabilities      99,050,271           55,661,601 77.95 
Total Equity 3,988,130,539     2,847,759,679 40.04 
Total Current Assets 410,717,180         107,320,293 282.70 
Total Short-Term Liabilities 33,547,839               996,339 3,267 
Investment Expenditures  -  -  - 
 
Liquidity Ratios 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 
Current Ratio 12.24 107.71 
Liquidity Ratio 12.24 107.71 
    

Ratios Related to Financial Position 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 
- Total Liabilities / Total Assets 0,02 0,02 
- Total Liabilities / Total Equity 0,02 0,02 
Total Shareholders' Equity / Total Assets 0,98 0,98 
- Total Shareholders' Equity / Total 
Liabilities 40,26 51,16 

    

Profitability Ratios 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 
Net Profit for the Period/ Total Equity 0,108 0,048 
Net Profit for the Year / Total Assets 0,105 0,047 
 
2.4. Determination as to whether the Company’s capital is fully covered or indebted, and assessments 
by the managing body 
 
As of December 31, 2021, the company's equity amounting to TL 3,988,130,539 is higher than the sum of 
capital and reserves.  
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2.5. Measures considered to be taken to improve the financial structure of the Company 

There is no problem in the financial structure of the Company.  

3. ONGOING INVESTMENTS  

The Company does not have any ongoing investments. 

4. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES 

Due to our scope of activities, we do not have any research and development activity. 

5. INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY’S INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND INTERNAL 
AUDIT ACTIVITIES, AND OPINION OF THE MANAGING BODY 

Internal Control is the system which ensures that processes and transactions are performed within framework 
of relevant legislation and rules in accordance with the management strategy and policies, errors, frauds and 
irregularities are detected and avoided, account and record order can be rendered integral and reliable, 
information in the data system can be obtained in a timely and accurate fashion. The internal control system 
has been designed to provide reasonable assurance in terms of effectiveness and efficiency of activities, 
reliability of reporting as well as achieving objectives of compliance with the relevant legislation.  
 
Elements within the flow of business processes, including standard definitions, tasks and responsibilities, 
authorizations, policies and procedures, constitute the Internal Control System. This system, which also 
includes risk management, information systems and processes, is assessed under internal audit activities and 
its efficiency is checked.  
 
At Eczacıbaşı Group, the internal audit activities have been structured under the roof of Eczacıbaşı Holding 
A.Ş., the parent company. The Audit Board within Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. audits the activities of the 
organizations included in consolidation within the scope of the required processes and/or issues. The Audit 
Board works in coordination with the audit committees established in public companies of Eczacıbaşı Group. 
 
The Audit Committee is responsible for the accounting system, public disclosure of financial data, 
identification of the independent audit companies, operation and effectiveness of the internal control system, 
and the observation of the independent audit processes. During the period, the Committee monitored the 
accounting and internal control systems, independent audit and financial reporting processes, and 
encountered no irregular finding and concluded that operations were carried out properly.  
 
In addition to the duties conducted by the Audit Committee, the legal records of the affiliate companies, the 
business partnerships and the subsidiaries included within consolidation are quarterly controlled by the 
Certified Public Accountancy company in accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code, the Uniform 
Accounting Plan and in terms of Tax Legislation. Additionally, with the Capital Markets Board legislation 
and the Turkish Accounting Standards published by the Public Oversight, Accounting and Audit Standards 
Authority of the financial statements for January- December accounting period and of the annual financial 
statements for January-interim accounting period June are analyzed and audited by the independent audit 
company. The Audit Committee convened eight times regarding the activities of 2021.  
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6. ASSESSMENT ON RISKS AND THE MANAGING BODY  
 
6.1. Risk Management  
 
At Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş., risk management is dealt with a holistic perspective, 
considering it's a part of activities. Operations are performed to identify, assess, monitor any potential risk 
elements that may affect the Company's achieving short, medium and long term targets, pose a threat to its 
development and sustainability and to manage respective risks in accordance with the Company's risk-taking 
profile. 

 
The Corporate Risk Management unit, formed within the structure of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş Group 
Directorate of Financial Affairs and Financing to coordinate risk management activities of Eczacıbaşı Group, 
works in coordination with the Committee of Early Detection of Risk established at public companies. In the 
Eczacıbaşı Group, the Corporate Risk Management process has been designed in accordance with 
international standards in order to bring a structural perspective on an organizational basis. 

 
Corporate Risk Management is the management process that determines which risks should be managed to 
what extent in line with the determined goals and objectives and ensures that necessary actions are taken, 
reviewed and reported. In this way, it is possible to create a risk-oriented culture at all levels of the 
Company, to reduce the variability in revenues by avoiding events that can seriously harm the Company's 
value and thus to support sustainable growth. 

 
The primary risks incurred by the Company are monitored under two main categories as financial risks 
(foreign exchange, interest, liquidity and credit) and nonfinancial risks (strategic, operational, compliance 
and sustainability). 
 
Financial Risks 
 
The company focuses on minimizing the effects of fluctuation in markets and probable negative results on 
the financial performance in order to manage various financial risks it may be exposed to as a result of its 
activities and/or financial position. 

 
The financial risks any positive or negative influence on financial outcomes of the organization caused by 
instability in the markets such as exchange rate, interest, etc. In addition to these risks, liquidity risk and 
credit risk are also other financial risks that may play a role in deterioration of stability of the financial 
structure of the organization. The financial risks are analyzed under four titles as follows: foreign exchange 
risk, interest risk, liquidity risk, and credit risk. 
 
Foreign exchange risk 
 
This refers to the risks arising from any financial or operational transactions in foreign currency of the 
Company where the company has assets, liabilities and off-the-balance-sheet liabilities in foreign currency. 
These risks are monitored by analyzing using exchange position and controlled by keeping the amount 
exposed to exchange risk within defined limits. 

 
In order to manage foreign currency risk effectively, following sensitivity analyses and scenario studies, 
hedging transactions are made in accordance with the risk appetite and determined policies and limits. In 
addition, the market expectations are constantly followed in order to make the cash and credit portfolio of the 
Company be affected from the foreign exchange movements at a minimum level, and the portfolios are 
dynamically managed depending on the up-to-date data. 
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Interest risk 
 
Interest risk is the effect that can be created by the change in interests on financial results of the Company in 
the event of assets and liabilities sensitive to the interest rate. The Company primarily manages this risk by 
balancing its interest sensitive forward receivables and forward debts using natural precautions. 

 
The decision is made to get loans as short or long interest, fixed or floating interest rate depending on the 
market expectations of the organization and on its pre-determined risk limits. In addition, duration 
calculations and sensitivity analyses are used in the management of the interest rate risk that the Company is 
exposed to, and derivative financial instruments are used when necessary, by preferring institutions that offer 
more favorable financing conditions. 
 
Liquidity risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not fulfill its net funding obligations due to occurrence of 
events giving rise to the reduction of fund resources, such as deterioration of markets or rating downgrades. 
Unless effective planning is made, financial liabilities may not be met on time, cost-effectively and at 
sufficient levels. 

 
The liquidity risk management consists of the ability to provide cash and assets convertible into cash, 
securities of sufficient amount, provide funding through sufficient credit facilities and resource 
diversification and close short positions. The Company has aimed for flexibility in the funding through 
rendering the loan channels ready due to the dynamic nature of the business environment.  
 
Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring credit usage, repayments, and cash flow projections and considering 
financial soundness indicators. The financial structure of the Company is analyzed by the indicators such as 
current ratio, liquidity ratio, total debt/total assets, net financial liability /equity, capability of the 
organization to pay interest, etc., and assessed from the weakest to the strongest; and actions are taken 
related to the working capital management as a result of the assessment. 
 
Credit risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk of one party, involved in a commercial relation, suffering a financial loss as a result of 
the failure of the other party to fulfill its obligations related to a financial instrument. The Company's priority 
in the management of this risk is to distribute the value exposed to credit risk in a balanced and manageable 
manner.  

 
These risks are managed with credit rating studies based on historical data, inquiry studies, limiting the 
concentration on a single business partner within the total portfolio, and assurance structure to be applied for 
customers. Risk positions are constantly monitored by conducting detailed customer analyses and it is 
ensured that the domestic and foreign receivables are insured within the determined operation limits. 
 
Nonfinancial Risks 
 
In addition to controlling financial risks, following non-financial risks are strategic, compliance and 
sustainability risks. 
 
Strategic risks 
 
Structural risks that may prevent the Company from reaching its short, medium and long term goals are 
evaluated under this heading. Strategic risks are addressed as fluctuations in the demand for products and 
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services, changes in the market shares, market risks arising from the developments that may affect 
competition, brand and reputation risks, economic and political risks, governance risks such as business 
model, value chain, investment decisions, risks related to innovation and transformation, such as 
technological advances, product and business development.  
Strategic risks are managed with a rational and cautious risk management approach, keeping the balance of 
growth and returns at the optimum level and primarily considering long-term interests. In this context, 
necessary proactive measures are taken against potential risks with sectoral and geographical diversification, 
long-term dynamic portfolio management, feasibility studies regarding investment decisions, close 
monitoring of macro developments and market dynamics, and determination of innovative strategies in the 
fields of innovation and transformation. 
 
Operational risks 
 
Operational risks consist of risks affecting operations, arising from incidents that can cause business 
interruptions such as earthquake, fire, work or environmental health and safety, problems in information 
technology or infrastructure systems, management of business processes and interruptions in internal 
controls, employees, etc.  

 
These risks are mitigated with the effective human resources management and the investments in 
technological infrastructure; and the coverable risks are frequently reviewed, covered based on a benefit and 
cost analysis, and transferred to the outside of the Company. Also, the Company processes and systems are 
periodically checked and audited against operational risks. 

 
The Company attaches utmost importance to ensuring continuity of all business processes and corporate 
operations in order to provide the highest possible value to its stakeholders. 
 
Compliance risks 
 
Compliance risks refer to legal sanctions and loss of image, reputation, material losses, etc. that may be 
encountered in case of non-compliance with all applicable laws, other legal regulations and legislations, 
codes of conduct, and defined rules such as internal policies and regulations that are part of corporate 
governance.  

 
All compliance risks related to changes in the legislation, lawsuits, possible legal disputes, competition rules, 
compliance with tax, customs and other regulations are effectively managed with coordination of relevant 
units in the Company. 
 
Sustainability risks 
 
The Company has adopted Eczacıbaşı Group's holistic sustainability approach that focuses on balancing the 
business world and the needs of human life with the sustainability of natural resources.  

 
The Group intends to carry out planning from today to the future with its economic, environmental and 
social dimensions within the framework of its holistic sustainable development approach. In this context; in 
all Eczacıbaşı Group companies, management of sustainability risks including natural disasters, 
extraordinary weather events, climate change, biodiversity, efficient use of natural resources, recovery and 
cyclical economy, employee rights and equal opportunities, contribution to the stakeholder economy and 
sustainable economic growth is conducted effectively. Also, important risks such as occupational health and 
safety, product and service responsibility, innovation, business ethics, legal compliance, fight with bribery 
and corruption are handled within scope of sustainability risk management studies due to their economic, 
social and environmental dimensions apart from their effects on strategic, operational and compliance risks.  
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6.2. Information on the employees and reports of the Committee of Early Detection of Risk 
 
Two members of the Board of Directors serve in the Committee of Early Detection of Risk. Ahmet Turgut 
Toksöz and Atalay Muharrem Gümrah were on the Committee for the accounting period of 01 January 2021 
– 31 December 2021. 7 reports were issued for the period of January-December 2021.  
 
6.3. Future risks regarding sales, efficiency, revenue generating capacity, profitability, debt/equity 
ratio and similar issues 
 
There is no significant future risk in terms of sales, productivity, income generation capacity, profitability, 
debt/equity ratio and similar issues. 
 
7. OTHER ISSUES AND EXPLANATIONS 

7.1. Explanations on material events which took place in the Company after the end of the fiscal year 
and which may affect the rights of shareholders, creditors, and other related persons and entities 

None. 

7.2. Explanations regarding special audit and public audit  
 
No public and private audit regarding the activity period was conducted. 
 
7.3. Information on lawsuits instituted against the Company which may influence the financial position 
and operations of the Company and potential consequences thereof  
 
There is no lawsuit instituted against our Company which may influence the financial position of our 
Company. 
 
7.4.  Explanations regarding administrative or judicial sanctions imposed on the Company and 
members of the managing body due to such practices contrary to the legislation provisions 
 
No administrative or judicial fine was imposed due to practices contrary to the legislation provisions. 
 
7.5. Information and evaluations as to whether or not targets set in the previous periods have been 
accomplished, whether or not resolutions of the general assembly have been enforced, if targets have 
not been accomplished or resolutions have not been enforced, the reasons thereof 
 
The company has achieved the targets set in the previous periods and fulfilled the general assembly 
resolutions. 
 
7.6. If an extraordinary general shareholders' meeting was held during the year, information on the 
extraordinary general shareholders' meeting including date of the meeting, decisions taken at the 
meeting, and transactions conducted in relation thereto 
 
No extraordinary General Assembly meeting was held between 01 January 2021 and 31 December 2021. 
 
7.7. Information on donations and aids made by the Company as well as the expenditures made within 
the scope of social responsibility projects during the year 
 
There were no donations, aid and social responsibility expenditures in the 01 January 2021 – 31 December 
2021 accounting period.  
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7.8. Legal proceedings conducted together with the controlling company, or upon instruction by the 
controlling company, or in favor of the controlling company, or an affiliate of the controlling 
company, and all other actions taken or avoided from being taken during the previous operational 
year in favor of the controlling company or an affiliate of the controlling company 
 

81.57% of the Company's capital is held by Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. The Company gets information 
processing support, system infrastructure support, and management services from the affiliates of Eczacıbaşı 
Group within the scope of the commercial relations. The controlling company did not have any influence on 
the decisions regarding the purchase of such services.  
The transactions conducted with the controlling company and the affiliate companies within the group of 
companies are ordinary commercial activities and there was not any transaction conducted upon instruction 
by the controlling company or in favor of the controlling company or a subsidiary of the controlling 
company, or any precaution taken or avoided within the said scope. 
Upon the Resolution of our Board of Directors numbered 06 and dated February 23, 2022, the report dated 
February 23, 2022 which was issued, in accordance with the article 199 of the Turkish Commercial Code 
number 6102, within the activity year regarding the relations of our Company with its controlling partner and 
subsidiaries of the controlling partner was assessed according to the situations and conditions known by us 
and within this scope, the commercial relations of our Company during the previous activity year with its 
controlling partner Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. and the subsidiaries of the controlling partner were examined in 
detail and it was concluded that during the previous activity year, there was no transaction made with the 
controlling company or subsidiaries of the controlling company, upon instruction by the controlling company 
or in favor of the controlling company or a subsidiary of the controlling company, or that during the previous 
year, there was no precaution taken or avoided from being taken in favor of the controlling company or of a 
subsidiary of the controlling company; that the transactions made were performed in compliance with the 
commercial conditions and on arm's length principle; and that for this reason, there was no precaution that 
might cause loss on our Company, which was taken or avoided from being taken, and that there was no 
transaction or precaution to require offsetting. 
 
7.9. Information on the Company's conflicts of interest with the organizations from which it gets 
services such as investment consultancy and rating services, and the measures taken to prevent the 
same  
 
No investment consultancy and rating service was procured. 
 
7.10. Government incentives and supports 
 

None. 
 
7.11. Circumstances under which shares are owned which directly or indirectly represent five, ten, 
twenty, twenty-five, thirty-three, fifty, sixty-seven of the capital of a stock corporation, or the situation 
when shares fall below such percentages  

All of the 10.29% shares in the capital of Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş were sold to 
Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. on April 15, 2021, and the entire sales price of TL 208,755,000 was paid in cash 
and advance on April 15, 2021. 
 

7.12. Related party disclosures 

The information on the Company’s related party transactions during the accounting period of January 01, 
2021 - December 31, 2021 is provided in details in footnote "Note 3 - Related Party Disclosures" to the 
financial statements. 
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7.13. Amendments made in the articles of association during the year and their reasons 

No Amendment to the Articles of Association was made. 

At its meeting dated 21 December 2021, our Board of Directors resolved that, with a view to holding our 
company's Board of Directors Meetings online, necessary applications be filed with the Capital Markets 
Board and Republic of Turkey Ministry of Commerce for amendment of article 17 of the Articles of 
Association entitled "Meetings and Working Order" be amended as per the amendment text below, and 
following receipt of the said permits and approvals, the proposed amendment to the Articles of Association 
be submitted to shareholders for approval at the next General Assembly meeting.  
Accordingly, the application filed on 23 December 2021 for the amendment to the articles of association was 
approved with the letter numbered E-29833736-110.03.03-15362 dated 04 January 2022 by the Capital 
Markets Board, and permission was obtained with the letter numbered E-50035491-431.02-00071071766 
dated 17 January 2022 by the Republic of Turkey Ministry of Commerce. Amendment to article 17 entitled 
“Meetings of the Board of Directors” of the Articles of Association according to the amendment text below 
will be submitted to shareholders for approval at the next General Assembly Meeting. 

 
Former and new text of the relevant article of the Articles of Association to be submitted to shareholders 
for approval is as follows: 
 

Former Text New Text 
MEETINGS AND WORKING ORDER 
ARTICLE 17 
The Board of Directors elects one chairman at the 
beginning of its term of office, and at least one vice 
chairman to act in his absence. 
 
The meeting dates and agenda of the Board of Directors 
are determined by the chairman or vice chairman. 
However, the meeting date can only be determined with 
the decision of the Board of Directors. 
Pursuant to the provision of paragraph 4 of article 390 of 
the Turkish Commercial Code, if no Member of the 
Board requests a meeting, resolutions of the Board of 
Directors may be taken by receiving the written approval 
of the majority of the full number of members for a 
proposal drawn up in the form of a resolution on a 
certain issue raised by a member of the Board of 
Directors. A resolution may be passed by submitting the 
same proposal to all the members of the Board of 
Directors. The approvals do not necessarily have to be 
on the same document; but in order to render the Board 
Resolution valid, all the documents bearing the 
signatures for approval should be attached to the 
Minutes Book, or be entered into the Minutes Book after 
having been converted into a resolution that includes the 
signatures of those in favor. 
 
Provisions of the Turkish Commercial Code and 
regulations of the Capital Markets Board within 
framework of the provisions of the Capital Market Law 
shall apply for the method of convening the Board of 
Directors, meeting resolution and quorums of the Board 
of Directors, vote casting, duties and powers. 
 

MEETINGS AND WORKING ORDER 
ARTICLE 17 
The Board of Directors elects one chairman at the beginning of its term of office, 
and at least one vice chairman to act in his absence. 
 
The meeting dates and agenda of the Board of Directors are determined by the 
chairman or vice chairman. However, the meeting date can only be determined 
with the decision of the Board of Directors. 
Pursuant to the provision of paragraph 4 of article 390 of the Turkish 
Commercial Code, if no Member of the Board requests a meeting, resolutions of 
the Board of Directors may be taken by receiving the written approval of the 
majority of the full number of members for a proposal drawn up in the form of a 
resolution on a certain issue raised by a member of the Board of Directors. A 
resolution may be passed by submitting the same proposal to all the members of 
the Board of Directors. The approvals do not necessarily have to be on the same 
document; but in order to render the Board Resolution valid, all the documents 
bearing the signatures for approval should be attached to the Minutes Book, or be 
entered into the Minutes Book after having been converted into a resolution that 
includes the signatures of those in favor. 
 
Persons entitled to attend to the company's board of directors meetings may 
attend to these meetings by electronic means as per article 1527 of Turkish 
Commercial Code. The Company may install the electronic meeting system, 
which will allow the right holders to attend and to cast votes at the meeting 
via electronic means in compliance with the provisions of the Communiqué 
on Assemblies to be held in the Electronic Environment in Trade 
Companies other than General Assemblies of Joint-Stock Companies, and 
may also purchase services which have been developed for the 
aforementioned purpose. At the meetings to be held, it is ensured that the 
rights of the right holders specified in the relevant legislation can be 
exercised within the framework specified in provisions of Communiqués, 
either through the system established under this provision of the company's 
articles of association or through the system by which support service will 
be received. 
Provisions of the Turkish Commercial Code and regulations of the Capital 
Markets Board within framework of the provisions of the Capital Market Law 
shall apply for the method of convening the Board of Directors, meeting 
resolution and quorums of the Board of Directors, vote casting, duties and 
powers. 
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7.14. Milestones during the period from the closing of the accounting period to the announcement date 
of the relevant financial statements 
 

There has been no milestone during the period from the closing of the accounting period to the 
announcement date of the relevant financial statements.  
 
 

7.15. Other 

During the period, no legislative change that might significantly affect the Company's activities took place.  

8. DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY  
 
The Dividend Distribution Policy of our Company is included in the Corporate Governance Principles 
Compliance Report. The principles established by the Capital Markets Board are followed for the dividend 
distribution. 
 
The profit distribution information of the Company for the last five years is as follows:  

 

Year 

Profit  
Distribution Amount Percentage (%) Form (%) 

Starting 
Date (TL) Gross Net Nakit Starting 

Date 
2016 10.05.2017 50,040,515 115 97.75 115 - 
2017 28.05.2018 78,750,000 75 63.75 75 - 
2018 22.05.2019 78,750,000 75 63.75 75 - 
2019 14.04.2020 50,001,000 47.62 40.477 47.62 - 
2020 28.04.2021 130,200,000 124 105.4 124 - 

 

9. HUMAN RESOURCES POLICY AND ETHICAL RULES 

Our company is a part of the Eczacıbaşı Group and implements the Human Resources Policy and the Code 
of Conduct (Code of Ethics) that apply to all Eczacıbaşı Group companies. Please visit 
https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/eczacibasi-toplulugu/insan-kaynaklari-politikamiz for the Human 
Resources Policy of our Group and https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/_Media/Upload/eczacibasi-toplulugu-
davranis-kurallari.pdf for the Code of Conduct.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/eczacibasi-toplulugu/insan-kaynaklari-politikamiz
https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/_Media/Upload/eczacibasi-toplulugu-davranis-kurallari.pdf
https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/_Media/Upload/eczacibasi-toplulugu-davranis-kurallari.pdf
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PROPOSAL ON PROFIT DISTRIBUTION 
 
Our Board of Directors; at its meeting on March 17, 2022; has determined that the distributable net profit is  
429,422,345 TRY according to the financial statements of our company for the accounting period of 
01.01.2021-31.12.2021, independently audited and prepared on the basis of Turkish Financial Reporting 
Standards (TFRS) in accordance with the "Communiqué on Principles of Financial Reporting in Capital 
Markets" (II - 14.1) of the Capital Markets Board ("CMB") and has determined that the distributable net 
profit is 258,188,919  TRY according to the statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the 
provisions of the Tax Procedure Code (“TPC”). 
Regarding the profit distribution for 2021; it has been decided to submit the proposal on profit distribution as 
stated below to our shareholders at the 2021 Ordinary General Assembly Meeting for its approval as 
complying with the regulations of the CMB regarding the profit distribution, the Article 37of our Articles of 
Association and making our evaluations within the framework of the principles set forth in our Profit 
Distribution Policy. 
Within this framework;  
It has been decided to present a proposal to our shareholders at the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting to 
be held for 2021 on April 18, 2022,  
1) Not to allocate general statutory reserves for 2021, considering that 5% of the general statutory reserves 

required to be allocated pursuant to Article 519 of the Turkish Commercial Code and the current general 
statutory reserves in our statutory records will reach the limit of 20% of our capital, 
 

2) To distribute cash profit in the amount of 160,020,000 TRY corresponding to 152.4% of our company's 
issued capital from net distributable profit in the amount of 429,422,345    TRY for the accounting 
period of 01.01.2021 - 31.12.2021,  

 
3) To pay a net dividend to a share with a nominal value of 1 TRY, 152.4 % gross in cash, to our full 

taxpayer real person shareholders and our limited taxpayer real and legal person shareholders after 
deducting the withholding tax rates regulated in the tax laws, 

 
4) To transfer the remaining 98,168,919  TRY amount to the "excess reserve" account after deducting the 

legal obligations and dividend foreseen to be distributed from the earnings before tax of 448,076,206   
TRY, which is accrued according to the statutory records prepared in accordance with the provisions of 
the TPC, 

 
5) To commence the profit distribution on May 26, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş.  
ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FOR THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1ST - DECEMBER 31ST, 2021 
 

 
ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş.             19 
 

 

1. 105,000,000

2. 21,000,000

There are no 
preferred shares.

Based on CMB 
Regulations

Based on Legal 
Records (*)

3. 471,830,877 448,076,206

4.        (42,408,532) (51,625,452)

5. 429,422,345 396,450,754

6. 0 0

7. 0 0

8. 429,422,345 258,188,919

9. 0 0

10.
429,422,345 258,188,919

11.
160,020,000 160,020,000

0 0
160,020,000 160,020,0000

12. 0 0

13.
0 0
0 0
0 0

14. 0 0

15. 0 0

16. 0 0

17. 0 00
18. 0 0

19. 269,402,345 98,168,919

20. 0 0

INFORMATION ON DIVIDEND PER SHARE

CASH         
(TL)

STOCK 
(TL)

RATIO                                             
(%)

NET                            
(TL)

NET                                  
(%)

NET - 144,018,000 0 33.54 1.37160 137.16

In the calculation of the net dividend amount, the withholding rate of Income Tax has been assumed as 10%.

Donations Made During The Year (+)

ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş.                                                                                
DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION TABLE FOR 2021 (TL)

Paid-in/Issued Capital

Total Legal Reserves (According to Legal Records)

Information on privileges in dividend distribution, if any, in the Articles of Association:

Current Period Profit

Taxes Payable (-)

Net Current Period Profit (=)

Losses in Previous Years (-)

Primary Legal Reserve (-)

NET DISTRIBUTABLE CURRENT PERIOD PROFIT (=)

Second Dividend to Shareholders

Donation-Added Net Distributable Current Period Profit on which 
First Dividend is Calculated

First Dividend to Shareholders
    - Cash
    - Stock
    - Total

Dividend Distributed to Owners of Privileged Shares

Other Dividend Distributed 
    - To the Members of the Board of Directors
    - To the Employees
    - To Non-shareholders

Dividend to Owners of Redeemed Shares


DIVIDEND TO BE PAID FOR SHARE 
WITH PAR VALUE OF 1 TL

(*) Based on our Board of Directors' decision dated April 15, 2021, in order to benefit from the exception specified in
subparagraph (e) of paragraph (1) of Article 5 of the Corporation Tax Law No. 5520, it has been decided to allocate 75% of the
profit resulting from the sale of our shares in Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş., into a special fund account. In
this context; the affiliation privilege of 138,261,835 TRY which will be transferred to the private fund account, has been
deducted from the net distributable profit for the period calculated according to the statutory records in the profit distribution
statement.

Secondary Legal Reserves

Statutory Reserves

Special Reserves

EXTRAORDINARY RESERVES

Other Distributable Resources

SHARE 
GROUP

TOTAL DIVIDEND 
AMOUNT

TOTAL DIVIDEND AMOUNT / 
NET DISTRIBUTABLE 

CURRENT PERIOD PROFIT
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SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLES COMPLIANCE FRAMEWORK DECLARATION 

 

THE Communiqué numbered II-17.1.a on amendment to the Corporate Governance Communiqué of the 

Capital Markets Board numbered II-17.1 was promulgated in the volume of the Official Gazette dated 

02.10.2020 and numbered 31262. Within scope of amendments to the Corporate Governance Commu-

niqué (Communiqué), “Sustainability Principles” have been laid down compliance with which is volun-

tary. Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş (“Company”) voluntarily adopts the said Sustainability 

Principles Compliance Framework as a requirement of its general targets for adherence to Corporate 

Governance Principles. In this context, the Company aims to adhere to the Sustainability Principles so 

published within a frame suitable for its fields of activity, partnership and affiliate structure, organiza-

tional, corporate and operational qualities.  

 

Due to existence of nuances between some of the Sustainability Principles indicated in the Communiqué 

and the Company's practices that have been routinely performed, putting into practice certain principles 

requires a comprehensive assessment and field studies and existence of sectoral and reliable data at a 

national and international scale, and certain principles are not consistent with the field of activity of the 

Company and its affiliates, the Company has not been able to fully comply with the said principles. The 

principles that have not been put into practice are still being worked on, and it is planned to implement 

the principles in line with the current structure of the Company. 

 

A- GENERAL PRINCIPLES 

 

The Company assesses the risks and opportunities regarding its activities and decisions, through the 

Committee of Early Detection of Risk, within the framework of a systematic risk management model. In 

these assessments, sustainability risks, which include social, economic and environmental risk factors, 

are also addressed.  

 

An ESG Commission has been established to work under the Corporate Governance Committee to be 

responsible for the formulation and execution of environmental, social and governance (ÇSY/ESG) 

policies within the company organization.  

 

The Company carries out its activities in compliance with the policies established for the Eczacıbaşı 

Group, of which it is a member. The policies created by the Eczacıbaşı Holding ESG Committee, which 

is responsible for the creation and execution of Eczacıbaşı Group's sustainability policies, are approved 

by the Board of Directors of Eczacıbaşı Holding. The Board of Directors of the Company evaluates the 

policies prepared specifically for the Company and the policies created for Eczacıbaşı Group, and ap-

proves them if it deems appropriate. In this context, the policies published for the Company are Infor-

mation Policy, Dividend Distribution Policy, Remuneration Policy, Donations and Aid Policy, Ethical 

Rules and Social Responsibility, Occupational Health and Safety Policy, Gender and Equal Opportunity 

Policy, and the Personal Data Protection Policy.1 

 

The Holding ESG Committee, which is formed as a sub-committee of Eczacıbaşı Holding Board of 

Directors, is periodically informed about the sustainability activities and plans of the Group every quar-

ter.  

 

The company is structured as a holding and has no industrial or service production activities. The com-

pany and some of its subsidiaries do not have physical operations such that the practices required by the 

principles set forth in the Communiqué can be implemented, as well as ESG Key Performance Indica-

tors (KPI) or an application in which they are disclosed. However, E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri 

 
1 Details of the policies are available at: https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/yatirimci-iliskileri 

Occupational Health and Safety and Gender and Equal Opportunity Policies have been published within the re-

porting period, and information and training activities regarding these policies will be carried out in the upcoming 

period. 

https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/yatirimci-iliskileri
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Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş., one of the subsidiaries of the Company, carries out production activities and the  

main sustainability KPIs determined by the Eczacıbaşı Group are followed.2 Eczacıbaşı Group's Inte-

grated Sustainability Report share values that are consolidated at the Group scale and validated by the 

independent audit firm.  

 

Explanations on the scope, temporality and limitations of the information included in the reporting are 

included in the Eczacıbaşı Group Integrated Sustainability Report. In the upcoming periods, within the 

scope of ESG, company-specific KPI and target setting process, data collection and reporting systemat-

ics on environmental-social indicators will be evaluated. It is not possible to make a comparative state-

ment regarding the company's performance, since there is no reliable sector-wide data in the fields of 

activity of the company's subsidiaries. 

 

Although annual reports contain main elements of sustainability activities and declarations associated 

with “Sustainability Principles Compliance Framework”, Eczacıbaşı Group Integrated Sustainability 

Report and the Eczacıbaşı Group corporate website are the main means of communication used for shar-

ing detailed information.3 Sustainability reports are published with reference to the United Nations 

Global Compact (UNGC) criteria, the International Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC) framework, the 

World Economic Forum (WEF) stakeholder capitalism metrics, and the principles set out in the Global 

Reporting Initiative (GRI) standards. Corporate policies and strategies related to the Group sustainabil-

ity priorities shaped with stakeholder opinions, short- and long-term goals, results derived from such 

goals with comparison by years and activities and improvement works of the Group companies aimed at 

increasing sustainability at business processes, products and service and achieving their goals are in-

cluded in these reports. In addition, the Group's innovation strategy and (if any) innovation activities 

carried out in subsidiaries are shared in the Eczacıbaşı Group Integrated Sustainability Report as well. 

The reports include communication channels where stakeholders can convey their questions and opin-

ions. Reports are published in the UNGC system as well. 

 

The United Nations (UN) Sustainable Development Goals adopted for the Eczacıbaşı Group cover all 

Group companies and are disclosed to the public through prioritized UN Sustainable Development 

Goals sustainability reports.4 

 

The company pays the utmost attention to the principles of transparency, objectivity and reliability as 

required by the Eczacıbaşı Group corporate working principles and corporate governance principles and 

observes compliance with these principles in its activities and public statements. Eczacıbaşı Group Inte-

grated Sustainability Report has been prepared in accordance with GRI and IIRC principles. A transpar-

ent and balanced reporting is among the structural principles of these standards. Balanced and objective 

statements are included in the statements made in this direction. 

 

Pursuant to Corporate Governance Principles and business ethics rules, observing legal compliance in 

its activities is among the basic priorities of our Company. In this framework, compliance with the legis-

lation related to social, economic and environmental fields is ensured. During the reporting period, there 

was no non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations. In addition, there are no lawsuits filed 

against the Company or concluded within the period regarding environmental, social and corporate gov-

ernance matters. 

 
2 Within the scope of Eczacıbaşı Group Integrated Sustainability Report, the data of E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri Sanayi 

ve Ticaret A.Ş., which is the subsidiary of the Company, is shared. 
3 As of the publication date of our annual report, Eczacıbaşı Group Sustainability Report for 2021 has not been published yet. 

Sustainability reports of previous years are available at www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/toplumsal-

sorumluluk/surdurulebilirlik/surdurulebilirlik-raporlari. 

 
4 Among the UN Sustainable Development Goals, Goal 3: Good health and well-being, Goal 4: Quality education, Goal 5: 

Gender equality, Goal 6: Clean water and sanitation, Goal 8: Decent work and economic growth, Goal 9: Industry, Innovation 

and Infrastructure, Goal 12: Responsible consumption and production, Goal 13: Climate action, and Goal 17: Partnership for 

the goals, are prioritized. 

https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/_Media/Upload/637713747267323428.pdf 

https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/_Media/Upload/637713747267323428.pdf
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Although no adverse impact is observed in the reporting period of 2021 activity year in terms of envi-

ronmental and social risk management due to principles that have not been put into practice or the 

Company has not fully complied with, it is predicted that uncertainties associated with environment and 

social risk in terms of risk management owing to enhanced compliance in future periods. 

 

B- ENVIRONMENTAL PRINCIPLES 

 

Since the company carries out its operations within the Eczacıbaşı Group, it follows the policies and 

practices determined for the Group. Applications in terms of management system certificates such as 

ISO 14001 are valid for the Company's subsidiaries with production operations. 

 

Eczacıbaşı Holding determines the goals og the Group in line with policies and business strategies. Such 

goals involve environmental areas as well and are included in Group companies' corporate goals and 

annual plans of senior managers. Thus, the environmental performance to be obtained is also encour-

aged. The business goals and processes determined for the Group and applicable within the framework 

of our activities and organizational structure applies to our Company as well. 

 

Eczacıbaşı Holding is involved in policy making processes on environmental issues on behalf of the 

Company, as it is the case for all its subsidiaries, and works with various non-governmental organiza-

tions to ensure effectiveness in sustainability activities. Eczacıbaşı Group publishes the list of these 

organizations in its Integrated Sustainability Reports. 

 

Due to its operational structure, information regarding our Company's subsidiaries with only production 

activities is included in the Eczacıbaşı Group Integrated Sustainability Report. Environmental indicator 

data for the companies within the scope are shared on a consolidated basis and comparatively over the 

years. Information such as the calculation methods, standards and principles of the data used in the 

study are included in the said Report. In this framework, Scope 1 and Scope 2 energy consumption and 

production data by types, carbon emission data, water and wastewater management data, information on 

energy and water efficiency projects and other related environmental performance data are included in 

the published reports.   

 

As the Company carries out its operations within the Eczacıbaşı Group, it follows the climate actions 

and strategies created for the Group in general. Group climate action strategies are explained in Ec-

zacıbaşı Group Integrated Sustainability Reports. The ESG Committee formed within Eczacıbaşı Hold-

ing and the Sustainability Committees of the Group companies are responsible for the performance of 

related activities.  

 

Efforts to reduce the effects of the products and services of the Company's subsidiaries, with production 

activities, on the climate are also included in the Eczacıbaşı Group Integrated Sustainability Report. 

 

A carbon pricing system is not yet implemented in our country. No application has been made for car-

bon credits accumulated or purchased, as well as for carbon pricing during the reporting period. The 

implementation of carbon pricing will be re-evaluated in the upcoming period. 

 

C- SOCIAL PRINCIPLES 

 

Our Company is obliged to comply with Eczacıbaşı Group's Gender and Equal Opportunity Policy, 

Human Resources Policy, Occupational Health and Safety Policy, Personal Data Protection Policy and 

Eczacıbaşı Group Code of Conduct, which also includes the fight against bribery and corruption. These 

policies have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.  

 

Within the content of these policy texts; compliance with the Company's Universal Declaration of Hu-

man Rights, ILO Conventions ratified by Turkey, legal regulations governing human rights and working 

life; women's employment in recruitment and subsequent human resources management processes, in-
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clusiveness; prevention of discrimination, child labour, forced labor and human rights violations; in-

vestments in employees, fringe benefits, freedom of association, talent management, business ethics, 

protection of personal data and similar issues mentioned in the Sustainability Principles are defined as 

well as the roles and responsibilities regarding the implementation of these policies. In addition to this, 

these policies define the mechanisms, related parties and appeal bodies where employees and related 

stakeholders can submit their complaints.  

 

Occupational health and safety data of the company's subsidiaries engaged in production activities are 

published in consolidated form in the Eczacıbaşı Group Integrated Sustainability Report. 

 

The sustainability program carried out throughout the Eczacıbaşı Group is shaped in line with the ex-

pectations and needs of all stakeholders. In this framework, the needs and priorities of various stake-

holder groups are also evaluated in consultation with them in the processes of determining Eczacıbaşı 

Group Sustainability Priorities, which are also binding for the Company. The explanations regarding 

stakeholder communication activities included in the Eczacıbaşı Group Integrated Sustainability Report 

are also applicable for the Company. 

 

The Company supports local and international initiatives such as the UN Global Compact, WEF Stake-

holder Capitalism Metrics and the Business Plastics Initiative, of which Eczacıbaşı Group is a signatory 

or a supporter. 

 

With the completion and implementation of the activities envisaged regarding the principles in line with 

the current structure of our Company on sustainability, concrete efforts will be made to be included in 

the Borsa Istanbul Sustainability Index and international sustainability indexes. 

 

D- CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES 

 

The principles that must be complied with within the scope of the Corporate Governance Communiqué 

numbered II.17.1, which is in force, has been complied with by the Company. Compliance with non-

mandatory principles has also been achieved to a great extent, and full compliance is targeted. However, 

it has not been possible yet to achieve full compliance due to the reasons such as the discussions in 

terms of compliance with some principles both in our country and in the international platform, and 

some principles not fully overlapping with the current structure of the market and of the Company. The 

studies are conducted on compliance with the said noncompulsory principles and it is planned to put 

them into practice following the completion of the administrative, legal and technical infrastructure 

studies in a way to make a contribution to the effective management of our Company. It is believed that 

there is no conflict of interest resulting from those principles that have not been put into practice yet. 

Detailed information on the subject is provided in the Corporate Governance Section of our annual re-

port. 

 

The company takes into consideration the issue of sustainability, the environmental impact of its activi-

ties and the principles in this regard while determining its corporate governance strategy.  The sustaina-

bility program carried out throughout the Eczacıbaşı Group is shaped in line with the expectations and 

needs of all stakeholders and explanations on stakeholder communication activities are included in the 

Eczacıbaşı Group Integrated Sustainability Report. 

 

The social investment and social responsibility activities carried out by the Eczacıbaşı Group are dis-

closed in the Eczacıbaşı Group Sustainability Reports and on the corporate website.  Information on 

these activities carried out by the Eczacıbaşı Group is summarized below:  
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 

The views defended and implemented throughout his life by Dr. Nejat F. Eczacıbaşı, the founder of the 

Group, constitute the Eczacıbaşı Group's fundamental principles and traditions on social services. 

 

As Eczacıbaşı Group, our primary responsibilities include contributing to improvement of community 

life in the fields of culture-art, sports, education, science and IT, and we provide our social services 

directly through organizations which we have established or in incorporation and management of which 

we are effectively involved. 

 

Culture-Arts 

Our founder Dr. Nejat F. Eczacıbaşı believed that any investment in arts and culture was a direct contri-

bution to the development of the entire being of the society, including its social being, economy and 

policy. In line with this belief, we have been among the founders of the Istanbul Foundation for Culture 

and Arts and have been supporting it as a Founding Sponsor for 49 years.  

 

Istanbul Modern Art Museum, to which, we, as the founder, provided the first investment and project 

management financing and the core collection, was founded in 2004 as the first private museum that 

organizes modern and contemporary art exhibitions in Turkey.  

 

In 2017, which was the 75th anniversary of our Group, we have launched the Kültür Sanat (Culture - 

Art) Card project, aiming to increase the access of young people to culture and art activities. Starting 

from 2020, Eczacıbaşı Culture-Art Card, which can be used at Istanbul Modern as well as IKSV (Istan-

bul Foundation for Culture and Arts) events, helped 6000 university students meet the culture-arts.  

We brought together 1300 young people with IKSV and Istanbul Modern events through the “Youth has 

a special place at Eczacıbaşı” campaign, which was carried out through social media channels in 2021.  

 

Sports 

Eczacıbaşı Sports Club is an institution that has continued its activities for more than 50 years. Our club, 

which includes various branches, operates in the “Women's Volleyball” branch in order to focus on an 

area and use its resources in the most efficient way. We continue our work with our Eczacıbaşı 

DynavitVitrA Women's Volleyball Team, "Slam Dunk for the Future" volleyball schools, infrastructure 

and young team.  

 

Training 

The Eczacıbaşı Hygiene Project, which we have been conducting since 2007 in the Boarding District 

Secondary Schools (YBO), is one of the most important projects of our Group. We are going to launch 

the project, which we carry out with our Group brands, including VitrA, Artema, Selpak and Eczacıbaşı 

Professional, in cooperation with Ministry of National Education (MoNE). Within the scope of the pro-

ject, after the plumbing infrastructure of wet spaces in BDSS in need is repaired by MoNE, bathrooms 

and toilets are renewed with VitrA and Artema branded products, Selpak personal hygiene training is 

provided to students, Eczacıbaşı Professional provides hygiene products to renovated schools. Ec-

zacıbaşı Volunteers carry out many educational and creative projects, primarily in the fields of culture, 

art, science and technology.  

 

Within the scope of the project, which we carried out with a holistic perspective, we reached more than 

19,500 students in 57 schools across Turkey as of 2021. We aim to reach 60 schools by the end of 2021.  

 

Science 

The foundations of the Dr. Nejat F. Eczacıbaşı Medical Awards were laid 61 years ago with our found-

er's understanding that “The main power that creates the future from today is the passion for scientific 

research”. Within the scope of this rewarding tradition, which is carried out with the “contribution to 

science, award to success” approach, medical scientists and projects that contribute to the development 
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of medical science are rewarded every two years with the evaluation committee composed of distin-

guished scientists.  

 

2021 Dr. Nejat F. Eczacıbaşı Medical Awards were presented to the winners on September 7, 2021. 

2021 Medical Honor Award was presented to Prof. Dr. Uğur Şahin and Dr. Özlem Türeci, Medical Sci-

ence Award to Prof. Dr. Mübeccel Akdiş, Medical Incentive Award to Prof. Dr. Elif Çadırcı, Scientific 

Research Support Award to Assoc. Dr. Özgür Kütük and the Medical Students Project Award to Ben-

gisu Karaköse. Within the scope of the awards, 35 Medical Science Awards, 44 Medical Incentive 

Awards, 18 Medical Students Project Awards have been given, and 179 studies have been successfully 

completed within the scope of Scientific Research Support Awards. 

 

Informatics 

"Turkey Informatics Foundation", in which Board Chairmanship is held by Faruk Eczacıbaşı, has been 

conducting studies with Eczacıbaşı Group's support for 25 years for the purpose of setting up the neces-

sary infrastructure in order to render Turkey's transformation into an information society effective and 

efficient. Within the scope of "CODE Awards Educational Game Competition", primarily sponsored by 

Eczacıbaşı Group, which has been organized since 2017, educational games in the fields of mathematics 

and science are rewarded for the first time in Turkey. 

 

For details of social responsibility works conducted by Eczacıbaşı Group, please follow the link: 

https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/toplumsal-sorumluluk. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDING ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

 

SUSTAINABILITY AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  

 

7 

 

DECLARATION FOR COMPLIANCE WITH PRINCIPLES OF CORPORATE 

GOVERNANCE 

Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş.'s (“Company”) Report for Compliance with Corporate Gov-

ernance Principles ("CRF") and Corporate Governance Information Form ("CGIF") pertaining to the 

accounting period of 01.01.2021 - 31.12.2021 has been issued in accordance with the "Corporate Gov-

ernance Communiqué No. II-17.1" of the Capital Markets Board ("CMB") published on the volume of 

Official Gazette dated January 3rd, 2014 and numbered 28871 and procedures and principles set forth in 

the Board Principle Decision dated 10.01.2019 and numbered 2/49, and the Corporate Governance 

Compliance Report ("CRF") and Corporate Governance Information Form ("CGIF") were adopted with 

the Board of Directors Decision dated 25/02/2022.  
 

Within the framework of the Communiqué in force, the compulsory principles to be complied have been 

complied in full. Compliance has been also provided significantly with those principles not compulsory 

to be complied. The Company aims to fully comply with the noncompulsory Corporate Governance 

Principles. However, it has not been possible yet to achieve full compliance due to the reasons such as 

the discussions in terms of compliance with some principles both in our country and in the international 

platform, and some principles not fully overlapping with the current structure of the market and of the 

Company. The studies are conducted on compliance with the said noncompulsory principles and it is 

planned to put them into practice following the completion of the administrative, legal and technical 

infrastructure studies in a way to make a contribution to the effective management of our Company. It is 

believed that there is no conflict of interest resulting from those principles that have not been put into 

practice yet. Our remarks regarding those principles we have not complied with yet or we have partially 

complied with, from among principles that are not mandatory for compliance, are as follows: 
 

- The principle numbered 1.5.2; Our company does not have any privileged share that may limit exer-

cise of shareholding/scarcity rights. Utmost care is taken by the Company regarding the exercise of 

shareholding rights. Given our existing shareholding structure, distribution of the shares other than the 

main shareholding shares, and general practices across our country, no change for expanding scope of 

scarcity rights in our articles of association is not foreseen, and applicable provisions associated with 

preservation of scarcity rights will continue to be adhered to.  

- The principle numbered 2.1.3; Our material disclosures were not simultaneously disclosed in Turkish 

as well as in English on the Public Disclosure Platform (KAP). Since our company is part of the group 

one as from 2022, pursuant to the Communiqué, Turkish and English versions of documents have 

started to be simultaneously announced at PDP. 

- The principle numbered 2.1.4; Most of the information on our corporate website is available in Eng-

lish. "Annual Activity Report, Annual Financial Reports, General Assembly Meeting Minutes, Gen-

eral Assembly Information Document, General Assembly Meeting Invitation and Proxy Form for Vot-

ing", which are of special importance for the exercise of shareholding rights, have been posted on our 

website in English as soon as possible after the announcement on the Public Disclosure Platform. Ac-

tivities are ongoing to include more content on the website in English. 

- The principle numbered 4.3.9; Equality of opportunity, at Eczacıbaşı Group of which our company is a 

part, has been adopted as one of the basic sustainability priorities. Actions are taken based on the per-

spective that the long-term success is not only based on increased overall share of women within the 

organization, but also active roles played by them. Said priorities are taken into account when deter-

mining candidate board members. Although the targeted ratio concerning female employees at the 

management and time are determined (the ratio determined for 2021 is 35%), no target ratio and time 

concerning female members have been determined specifically for the Board of Directors. Specifically 

for the board of directors, determination of 25% as the minimum female member ratio and the relevant 

time is among our targets.  

- The principle numbered 4.4.7; The members of the Board of Directors are restricted from taking posi-

tions in companies other than Eczacıbaşı Group (Group) as a principle. Since care is taken to elect in-

dividuals who will contribute to the business and management of our Company due to the duties they 

fulfill within the Group, who have no obstacles for fulfilling their Board Membership responsibilities, 

and who can spare sufficient time for our Company, it is not foreseen to impose a restriction in the 
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short term for the members of the Board of Directors to take office outside the Company. Duties as-

sumed by the members of the Board of Directors outside the company are included in our annual re-

ports and in the Company General Information Form on the Public Disclosure Platform.  

- The principle numbered 4.5.5; Some of our Board members work in more than one committee. Con-

sidering the existing activities, management and organizational structure of our Company, which is 

structured as a holding, board members sitting at more than one committee do not cause them to ne-

glect their committee duties or do not result them spending insufficient time for such duties. Members 

working at more than committee also assure communication and collaboration between committees. 

Given professions, knowledge and experiences of board member, persons who are experts of subject 

matters are appointed to committees. The existing structure does not hinder the active fulfillment of 

duties by the committees, considering the qualifications and specialties required by committee mem-

bership. No change has been planned yet in this regard. 

- The principle numbered 4.6.1; our Board of Directors holds a separate annual meeting whereby it 

evaluates operations of the Company and results thereof and overall performance of the management. 

However, there is no methodology or a written performance assessment system used for performance 

assessment of the board of directors and/or its members. Performances of all companies under the roof 

of the Group including our company are periodically reviewed, but no less frequently than quarterly. 

The performance evaluation of the companies' senior management is carried out under the perfor-

mance evaluation system of the human resources. When required, it is possible to consider outsourcing 

services for performance assessment of the board of directors form specialized institutions.  

 

The studies on compliance with the Corporate Governance Principles that are not compulsory to be 

complied with in accordance with the Communiqué will continue. 

 

Corporate Governance Compliance Report (CRF) and Corporate Governance Information Form (CGIF), 

pertaining to the Company's accounting period of 01.01.2021 - 31.12.2021, as adopted by the Compa-

ny's Board of Directors Decision are available at the Company's corporate website at 

www.eczacıbasi.com.tr and www.eyh.eczacibasi.com.tr  under Investor Relations / Eczacıbaşı Invest-

ment Holding / Corporate Governance and Sustainability /Corporate Governance Compliance Report ” 

and at the Public Disclosure Platform (www.kap.org.tr) In addition to the foregoing, reports are also 

included at the end of this section. 
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SHAREHOLDERS 

Investor Relations Department 

Relations between shareholder and investors and our Company are carried out under responsibility of 

“Investor Relations Department” as a result of collaborative work undertaken with the relevant division.  

Information regarding the executives in the Investor Relations Department: 

 

Name-Surname                                   : Zeynep Serttepe 

Position                                               : Investor Relations Department Manager 

Telephone                                           : 0 212 371 72 19 

Fax                                                      : 0 212 371 70 00  

E-mail address             : yatirimciiliskileri.eyh@eczacibasi.com.tr 

Type / Number of License Certificate  : Capital Market Activities Level 3 License / 207460 

                 Corporate Governance Rating License / 701369   

Name-Surname                                   : Betül Aktekin Aytar 

Position                                               : Finance Director 

                 Investor Relations Department Officer 

Telephone                                           : 0 212 371 73 66 

Fax                                                      : 0 212 371 70 00  

E-mail address           : yatirimciiliskileri.eyh@eczacibasi.com.tr 

The duties of the Investor Relations Department are mainly as follows: 

a) To ensure that correspondences exchanged between investors and the corporation and records per-

taining to other information and documents are kept in a proper, secure and up-to-date fashion. 

b) To reply to the requests for information about the corporation by the corporation's shareholders. 

c) To prepare documents which need to be made available to shareholders for information and review in 

relation to the General Shareholders' Meetings, and to take measures to ensure that the General Share-

holders' Meetings are held in accordance with the relevant legislation, the articles of association, and 

other internal regulations.  

d) To observe and monitor that obligations arising from the Capital Market legislation, including any 

issue related to Corporate Governance and Public Disclosure, are met. 

The Investor Relations Department submitted its report regarding its activities conducted in 2021 to the 

Corporate Governance Committee on February 17, 2022, and the report submitted to the Committee was 

assessed by the Board of Directors on February 23, 2022. 

The Investor Relations Department of the Company plays an active role in protecting and facilitating the 

exercise of the shareholders' rights, particularly the right to obtain and examine information. 

In 2021, 25 written requests for information were received from the shareholders, and they were an-

swered in writing within the framework of our Company's disclosure policy.   

Exercise of Shareholders' Right to Obtain Information 

In the satisfaction of demands for the exercise of shareholders' rights, utmost attention is paid for com-

pliance with the effective regulations, the Articles of Association, and other internal regulations, 

measures are taken to procure the exercise of such rights, and all shareholders are treated equally. 

mailto:yatirimciiliskileri.eyh@eczacibasi.com.tr
mailto:yatirimciiliskileri.eyh@eczacibasi.com.tr
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The Company makes no distinction between the shareholders for the exercise of rights to obtain and 

examine information, and it shares all required information, excluding trade secrets, with the sharehold-

ers in order to properly exercise the shareholders' rights. Information is provided in a full timely and 

carefully way to fairly reflect the reality. 

Questions received by the Investor Relations Department within the year are replied, excluding confi-

dential information and trade secrets, both by phone and in writing following communication with the 

highest authority in the respective subject. Such information and developments that may affect the exer-

cise of shareholders' rights are disclosed to the public through material disclosures and are also pub-

lished on the website in due time. 

Our Articles of Association does not include any regulation regarding the appointment of a special audi-

tor as an individual right; however, pursuant to article 438 of the Turkish Commercial Code, each 

shareholder may request from the General Assembly the clarification of certain issues through special 

auditing, even though it is not included in the agenda, in order to exercise shareholders' rights, where 

necessary and if the rights to obtain and examine information have been exhausted. The shareholders 

have not made any such demand.  

General Assembly Meetings 

Invitation to a General Shareholders' Meeting is announced at least 3 weeks prior to date of General 

Shareholders' Meeting, excluding the days of announcement and meeting, by considering the Turkish 

Commercial Code, the Capital Market legislation, our Articles of Association, and Corporate Govern-

ance Principles. The Company's Articles of Association has been issued pursuant thereto. 

On the date when our Board of Directors decides to hold a General Assembly Meeting, the public is 

informed by making required disclosures, including the items of the agenda, through PDP and Electron-

ic General Assembly System ("EGKS"). 

The announcement for invitation to the General Shareholders' Meeting is published on the Company's 

website and also on a Turkish release of a daily newspaper no less than 3 weeks in advance of the date 

of the General Shareholders' Meeting using any means in addition to the methods set forth in the legisla-

tion to ensure that the invitation is received by the maximum number of shareholders. 

In order to facilitate participating in the General Shareholders' Meeting, meetings are held open to the 

public in the city center. It is possible also for the willing stakeholders to participate in General Share-

holders' Meetings.  

Financial statements and reports including annual reports, profit distribution proposal, General Assem-

bly Information Document issued regarding general assembly agenda, other documents forming basis to 

general assembly agenda, the last version of the Articles of Association and, if there shall be amendment 

to the Articles of Association, amendment text, and its reason, are kept open for examination in the 

places including the Company's headquarters and website, as of the date of announcement made for the 

invitation to the General Shareholders' Meeting. On the information documents related to agenda, in-

formation envisaged for each agenda item is provided to shareholders.  

Power of attorney samples for those to be represented by attorney are announced at the Trade Registry 

Journal before the General Assembly Meeting and are provided for the use of shareholders at PDP and 

the website. 

At the General Assembly meeting, the issues on the agenda are conveyed impartially, in detail, clearly 

and in a comprehensible manner; and shareholders are given the opportunity to express their opinions 

and to ask questions under equal circumstances, and the opportunity is given to discuss annual report 

and performance indicators of the Company. 

Minutes of the General Assembly Meeting, announced to the public via PDP, can also be accessed from 

EGKS and the website.  

The Company held a General Assembly Meeting once in 2021. The Ordinary General Assembly Meet-

ing, where the activities of the year 2020 were discussed, was held on April 13, 2021, at 11: 00, at the 
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Altın Damlası Meeting Hall at Büyükdere Caddesi Ali Kaya Sokak No: 5 Levent Istanbul, with a quor-

um of 81.68%. Two natural and two legal entities among the shareholders have registered to the List of 

Attendance. Our General Assembly Meeting was held under supervision of the Ministerial Representa-

tive appointed by Istanbul Provincial Directorate of Commerce of Istanbul Governorate of the Republic 

of Turkey. The Company received no demand for the addition of an item to the agenda by the share-

holders. No questions were posed by shareholders at the General Assembly Meeting.  

Information was provided at the General Assembly Meeting under an individual agenda item about the 

donations and aids made in 2020; the upper limit for donations to be made in 2021 was determined as 

TL 500,000, and no change was made in the donation policy. 

According to CMB regulations, in 2021, there was no transaction where the affirmative vote of the ma-

jority of the Independent Board Members was sought in order to make decision at the Board of Direc-

tors but where the decision was left to the General Assembly due to negative vote of the mentioned 

members. 

It was not in question the performance of any material transaction, by the shareholders having manage-

ment control, or the Board members, or the senior executives having administrative responsibility, and 

their spouses and second degree relatives by blood and marriage, which might cause conflict of interests 

with the Company or its affiliate companies, and/or the performance of any transaction in type of com-

mercial business within the subject of the business of the Company or its affiliate companies by the 

same on behalf of them or on behalf of others, or their participation in another partnership, engaging in 

the same type of commercial businesses, with the title of unlimited partner. 

 

In 2021, there was no transaction, notified to the Board of Directors, made by the persons who have the 

opportunity to access the Company information in a privileged manner, on behalf of them within the 

scope of activities of our Company. 

Voting Rights and Minority Rights 

Our company avoids practices that make it difficult to exercise the right to vote, and all our shareholders 

are provided with the opportunity to vote equally, easily and appropriately. With regards to the voting 

for agenda items during the General Assembly Meetings, open vote method by a show of hands is used, 

provided that the provisions for voting in electronic media are reserved. Each agenda item is individual-

ly voted during the meetings.     

There is not any privilege in our Articles of Association regarding the exercise of voting rights and each 

share has one voting right. In our Company, there is no regulation prescribing that a voting right is to be 

used after a while from the date of acquisition. In our Articles of Association, there is no provision 

which prevents a person, who is not a shareholder, from voting by proxy as a representative. Cumulative 

vote method is not applied. 
 

Our main partner Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş., which holds 81.57 percent of shares of our Company's capi-

tal and whose 11.54 percent of the capital is owned by our Company, votes at our general assembly 

meetings. However, our Company does not vote at the General Assembly Meetings of Eczacıbaşı Hold-

ing A.Ş. 

 

Our Articles of Association does not include any provision that prescribes or makes difficult the repre-

sentation of minority in management, or that provides for the determination of minority in such a way 

that the minority would be less than one-twentieth of the capital. 
 

Transfer of Shares 

There is no provision in our Articles of Association that restricts or complicates the free transfer of 

shares. 

 

Dividend Right 

The annual profit distribution proposal of our Board of Directors is prepared together with the profit 

distribution table in accordance with the CMB regulations, announced simultaneously on the Public 
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Disclosure Platform as per the decision of the Board of Directors, and submitted to the approval of the 

shareholders at the General Assembly. In addition, detailed information on the profit distribution table, 

profit distribution history as well as capital increases are published on the website. In 2021, a gross cash 

dividend of 124% has been distributed to the shareholders. 

Dividend Distribution Policy 

In the meeting of our Board of Directors dated 27.12.2021, taking into account the provisions of the 

Capital Markets Board's Dividend Communiqué numbered II-19.1, the Corporate Governance Princi 

ples prepared in the annex of the Corporate Governance Communiqué no II.17.1 and the current prac-

tices of our Company, It has been decided to update our Profit Distribution Policy as follows and submit 

it to the approval of the shareholders at the 2021 Ordinary General Assembly meeting. 

Profit distribution is being carried out within the framework of the provisions of the Turkish Commer-

cial Code, Capital Market Regulations, Tax Legislation and other relevant regulations and our Articles 

of Association.  

 

Our Articles of Association do not envisage any privileges in profit distribution.  

 

In profit distribution, a balanced policy is followed in terms of the interests of the shareholders and of 

the Company.  

 

The decision to distribute dividends, the manner and time of distribution of profit is made by the Gen-

eral Assembly upon the recommendation of the Board of Directors.  

 

In principle, as long as the relevant regulations and financial structure allow, at least 10% of the “net 

distributable profit for the period” calculated within the framework of the Capital Markets Regulations 

is aimed to be distributed to the shareholders in cash. The Board of Directors, taking into account the 

current profitability and cash position of our Company, equity ratio, net working capital requirement, 

long-term strategies, investment and financing plans, cash flows, market conditions and expectations; 

may determine a different ratio, as well as suggest that the dividend be distributed in the form of bonus 

shares or cash and bonus shares at certain rates, or that no dividends be distributed.  

 

If the Board of Directors of the Company proposes not to distribute profit to the General Assembly, 

information on the reasons for this situation and the way the undistributed profit will be used is included 

in the agenda item on profit distribution.  

 

Unless the legal reserves required to be set aside are set aside and the first dividend stipulated in the 

Articles of Association for shareholders is set aside, no decision can be made to set aside further legal 

reserves, to carry profits forward to the next year and to distribute profit to the members of the board of 

directors and employees of the company, and no dividend may be distributed to such persons unless the 

dividend so determined for shareholders is paid in cash.  

 

The profit distribution proposal is disclosed to the public in accordance with the Capital Markets Regu-

lations, taking into account the legal deadlines.  

The principle of making the dividend distribution within three months following the General Assembly 

meeting has been adopted as a principle. Dividends are distributed equally to the shareholders on the 

date determined by the General Assembly following the approval of the General Assembly, within the 

legal period, regardless of all existing shares and their issuance and acquisition dates.  

The General Assembly or, if authorized, the Board of Directors may decide to pay the dividend in in-

stallments in line with the Capital Markets Regulations. Our Articles of Association includes the provi-

sion of advance dividend distribution, and dividend advances can be distributed, provided that the Board 

of Directors is authorized by the General Assembly and that the Capital Markets Regulations are com-

plied with. 
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Distributed profit share in previous years and its percentage 
 

The profit distribution information of the Company for the last five years is as follows:  

 

Year 

Profit  

Distribution 
Amount Percentage (%) Form (%) 

Starting 

Date 
(TL) Gross Net Nakit 

Starting 

Date 

2016 10.05.2017 50,040,515 115 97.75 115 - 

2017 28.05.2018 78,750,000 75 63.75 75 - 

2018 22.05.2019 78,750,000 75 63.75 75 - 

2019 14.04.2020 50,001,000 47.62 40.477 4762 - 

2020 28.04.2021 130,200,000 124 105.4 124 - 

DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY 

Corporate Website and Its Content 

A separate investor relations section has been created for publicly traded companies of the Group in the 

website of Eczacıbaşı Group (www.eczacibasi.com.tr). Information and documents stipulated by the 

Corporate Governance Principles of CMB and other relevant legislation are available in the "Investor 

Relations" on the website www.eczacibasi.com.tr. This section can be accessed via the Company's legal 

website (www.eyh.eczacibasi.com.tr). 

The Investor Relations Section offers information in Turkish for the last five years as a minimum. 

Moreover, the documents related to the General Assembly meeting, annual board of directors reports 

and annual financial reports are also available in English. Care is taken to ensure that the information 

contained therein is constantly updated, is identical and consistent with the disclosures made in accord-

ance with the relevant legislation, and does not contain any conflicting or missing information. 

The Investor Relations Department is responsible for preparing the content on the website, updating the 

information changed, and adding additional information.  

STAKEHOLDERS 

Informing the Stakeholders 

Due to its holding structure, our Company does not have any direct relationship with stakeholders such 

as customers and dealers. Information is provided to the stakeholders who may be related to our Com-

pany through General Assembly and by replying personal applications, by inviting them to meetings for 

matters concerning to them or by using the Group's website and electronic communication means where 

necessary, provided that it is within the scope of Capital Market legislation. Public disclosures are made 

on the corporate website and through social media, as well as press conferences and statements made 

through the media; employees are informed under the coordination of Strategic Planning, General Man-

ager, Corporate Communications, by meeting face-to-face or in virtual environment through various 

organizations such as information and dissemination meetings (where changes such as target sharing, 

wages, social benefits, per diem are announced); and when necessary, employees are also informed via 

e-mail, written information bulletins and short messages. Eczacıbaşı Group has a portal called "Port-e" 

accessed by the employees and it is ensured that the employees can access any information and docu-

ment to concern them, the significant announcements, changes in management, and press releases 

through this portal. In addition, the Corporate Communications Department within Eczacıbaşı Group 

publishes a corporate periodic journal entitled "Yaşam" in order to increase the communication with the 

employees. 

The corporate governance structure of the Company gives the opportunity for all stakeholders including 

employees and representatives to convey their concerns regarding transactions not appropriate in terms 

of laws and ethics, through verbal-written and other means of communication. Stakeholders may submit 

those matters, which they believe do not comply with the legislation and are unethical, to the Compli-

http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/
http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/
http://www.eyh.eczacibasi.com.tr/
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ance Board established within Eczacıbaşı Group via the communication form available at 

www.eyh.eczacibasi.com.tr or www.eczacibasi.com.tr and through the address uyum@eczacibasi.com.tr  

Such complaints may be communicated to the Audit Committee after being reviewed by the Audit 

Board of Eczacıbaşı Group. The Code of Conduct booklet of Eczacıbaşı Group is published at the ad-

dress https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/_Media/Upload/eczacibasi-toplulugu-davranis-kurallari.pdf. Em-

ployees, on the other hand, can report issues that they consider to be unethical and contrary to the issues 

in the Eczacıbaşı Group Code of Conduct booklet, to the Compliance Board established within the Ec-

zacıbaşı Group, via the whistleblower line on the corporate portal. 

Participation of Stakeholders in Management 

Models designed to encourage participation of Eczacıbaşı Group stakeholders in the Company's man-

agement are being developed. On the other hand, requests and suggestions made during meetings held 

with employees and other stakeholders are assessed by the managers, and policies and applications for 

these are realized. Within this framework, it is ensured that the stakeholders participate in the manage-

ment with information provided at the General Shareholders' Meetings for shareholders and with infor-

mation provided through various meetings, Corporate Portal ("Port-e"), and electronic mail and SMS for 

employees. Also, all employees of Eczacıbaşı Group are asked for their opinions on common practices 

every two years as a minimum, measuring their loyalty and satisfaction. Apart form such overall Em-

ployee Loyalty questionnaire, employees' opinions and assessments regarding seasonal or special mat-

ters are always probed through different questionnaires or face to face workshops throughout the year. 

The results of the questionnaire are added to the "company success criteria", taking into account the 

activities of the companies. 
 

Human Resources Policy and Ethical Rules 

 

Our company is a part of the Eczacıbaşı Group and implements the Human Resources Policy and the 

Code of Conduct (Code of Ethics) that apply to the Eczacıbaşı Group companies. Please visit 

https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/eczacibasi-toplulugu/insan-kaynaklari-politikamiz for the Human Resources 

Policy of our Group and https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/_Media/Upload/eczacibasi-toplulugu-davranis-

kurallari.pdf for the Code of Conduct.  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Structure and Composition of the Board of Directors 

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the activities and management of the Company are con-

ducted by a board of directors comprised of minimum five members to be elected among the sharehold-

ers upon the decision of the General Assembly pursuant to the provisions of the Turkish Commercial 

Code.  In our company, the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the General Manager are not the 

same person. 

The majority of the Board members are non-executive members. A non-executive member of the Board 

of Directors is a person who does not hold any administrative duty in the Company other than being a 

member of the Board of Directors and who is not involved in the daily workflow and ordinary course of 

activities of the Company.  

The Board of Directors consists of six people.  

Members of the Board of Directors can take office at companies affiliated with Eczacıbaşı Group, how-

ever, as a principle, they may not take office outside the Group.  

The curriculum vitae information of the members of the Board is provided in the preamble section of 

the annual report and on the website. 

It is considered that having diversity in terms of knowledge, experience, and point of view in our Board 

of Directors will make a positive contribution to the Company's activities and to the effective working 

of the Board of Directors. 

http://www.eyh.eczacibasi.com.tr/
https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/
mailto:uyum@eczacibasi.com.tr
https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/_Media/Upload/eczacibasi-toplulugu-davranis-kurallari.pdf
https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/eczacibasi-toplulugu/insan-kaynaklari-politikamiz
https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/_Media/Upload/eczacibasi-toplulugu-davranis-kurallari.pdf
https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/_Media/Upload/eczacibasi-toplulugu-davranis-kurallari.pdf
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During the Ordinary General Shareholders' Meeting dated April 13, 2021, two independent members 

capable of fulfilling their duties without being influenced by anything were elected among the Board 

members in accordance with the Corporate Governance Principles of the Capital Markets Board. All of 

the Independent Members of the Board fully meet the "independency criteria" specified in the Commu-

niqué. The candidates for Independent Member of the Board submitted their declarations of independ-

ence and their background information to the Corporate Governance Committee before the General 

Shareholders' Meeting and all of them were identified as independent members by the Board of Direc-

tors. 

The declarations of independence of our Independent Members of the Board are provided at the end of 

the report. 

Information of our members of the board of directors and their external duties: 

 

(*) The Board of Directors was elected to be in charge for one year during the Ordinary General Assembly Meet-

ing dated April 13, 2021, and will hold the office until the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting where opera-

tions of the year 2021 are to be discussed. 

Operation Principles of the Board of Directors 

In order to determine the working procedures and principles of the Board of Directors, the “Directive on 

Working Procedures and Principles of the Board of Directors” (the "Directive") was approved by the 

Board of Directors on 27.12.2021. The Directive can be accessed from 

https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/yatirimci-iliskileri/eczacibasi-yatirim-holding/yatirim-holding-

kurumsal-yonetim/yonetim-kurulu-calisma-esaslari. In this respect, the procedures and principles re-

garding the formation and structure of the Board of Directors, the meetings of the Board of Directors 

and the decision-making mechanism have been set forth in writing with this Directive. Pursuant to the 

said Directive; 

 

The Board of Directors convenes at such frequency that will enable it to perform its duties effectively 

and should convene at least four times a year. Members of the Board of Directors shall try to attend the 

meetings, allocate the necessary time before each meeting to prepare for the meeting, and express their 

opinions at the meetings and the members who could not attend the meeting shall inform the Chairman 

of the Board of Directors about their excuses if any. The Board of Directors is convened with the major-

ity of the members and decisions are taken with affirmative vote of the majority of those present at the 

Name-Surname (*) Position 
External Commitments as of the  

Most Recent Situation 

Ferit Bülent Ec-

zacıbaşı 

Chairman of the  

Board of Directors 

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. - Chairman of the Board / Chairman of 

the Presiding Committee of Eczacıbaşı Group / Chairman and 

Member of the Board in the companies of Eczacıbaşı Group  

Rahmi Faruk Ec-

zacıbaşı 

Vice Chairman of the  

Board of Directors 

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. - Vice Chairman of the Board of Direc-

tors  

Vice Chairman of the Presiding Committee of Eczacıbaşı Group  

Chairman, Vice Chairman and Member of the Boards of Directors 

at companies of Eczacıbaşı Group 

Atalay Muharrem 

Gümrah 

Member of the Board of 

Directors 

Eczacıbaşı Group CEO / Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. - General Man-

ager Chairman, Vice Chairman and Member of the Boards of Di-

rectors at companies of Eczacıbaşı Group 

Ata Selçuk 
Member of the Board of 

Directors 
- 

Ahmet Turgut  

Tokgöz 

Independent Member  

of the Board of Direc-

tors 

- 

Erkan Durusoy 

Independent Member  

of the Board of Direc-

tors 

- 

https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/yatirimci-iliskileri/eczacibasi-yatirim-holding/yatirim-holding-kurumsal-yonetim/yonetim-kurulu-calisma-esaslari
https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/yatirimci-iliskileri/eczacibasi-yatirim-holding/yatirim-holding-kurumsal-yonetim/yonetim-kurulu-calisma-esaslari
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meeting. This rule is also applicable if the meeting is held electronically. Each member is entitled to cast 

one vote in Board meetings.  

 

The agenda of the Board of Directors meeting is established in such a way as to include the issues pro-

posed by the General Manager and any of the members of the Board of Directors. Members of the 

Board of Directors and the General Manager notify the Chairman of the Board of Directors about the 

issues they want to be included in the agenda. Members of the Board of Directors shall be invited to the 

meeting at least five (5) business days before the meeting date by specifying the meeting time and agen-

da items. The documents prepared regarding the agenda items in the meeting shall be delivered to the 

members at least three (3) business days before the meeting date.  

 

If no Member of the Board requests a meeting, resolutions of the Board of Directors may be taken by 

receiving the written approval of the majority of the full number of members for a proposal drawn up in 

the form of a resolution on a certain issue raised by a member of the Board of Directors. 

 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, only two physical meetings were held during the reporting period, and 

the other 22 meeting resolutions have been passed by circulating among the attendees. 

 

Members of the Board of Directors were regularly informed about the performance of the Company, at 

least quarterly, and relevant information and documents were shared with the members of the Board of 

Directors before deciding on the resolutions, and the questions of the members were answered by 

providing detailed information on the issues in question.  
  
Members of the Board of Directors attended most of the meetings, and the participation rate was 

94.18%, considering the number of meeting resolutions.  

Physical meetings are held in the Company's headquarters and the invitation to meetings is made by 

telephone and/or e-mail. No electronic portal is used for activities of the Board of Directors. In the event 

that the Board members cannot participate in meetings, they can submit their opinions in writing.  Mate-

rial decisions of the Board of Directors are disclosed to the public through PDP. 

Each member of the Board of Directors has one voting right. No prevailing voting right and veto right 

has been granted to members of the Board of Directors. The resolutions taken at the Board of Directors 

meetings in 2021 were taken unanimously, there were no members of the Board of Directors who op-

posed the resolutions passed, and since no different or opposing views were expressed at the Board 

meetings, no public statement was made in this regard. 

At the meetings of the Board of Directors, the issues on the agenda are discussed openly and in all re-

spects. The Chairman of the Board of Directors makes his best efforts to guarantee active participation 

of non-executive members in the meetings of the Board of Directors. There is no Board member to 

whom authority was transferred upon allocation of duties. The Board of Directors holds an evaluation 

meeting to review whether it has duly discharged all its responsibilities. For the evaluation of the opera-

tions of 2021, independent experts were not employed.  

 

Our Company offers a "Directors and Officers liability insurance" to members of the Board of Directors 

and senior executives under the umbrella insurance of the Group. 

Number, Structure and Independence of Committees Established under the Board of Directors 

Our Company has committees to enable the Board of Directors to effectively and efficiently fulfill its 

duties and responsibilities, and the committees conduct their activities within the framework of the de-

termined working principles.  

The fields of duty and the working principles of the committees, as well as the members to form such 

committees are determined by the Board of Directors and announced to the public. 
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All the members of the Audit Committee and the presidents of the other committees are elected among 

the independent members of the Board of Directors. The CEO and the General Manager cannot take 

charge in committees. 

Considering our board structure, some of our board members take part in more than one committee 

within the scope of the obligation to form three different committees. Given its existing activities and 

organization and management structure established in accordance with such activities, board members 

sitting at more than one committee do not cause them to neglect their committee duties or do not result 

them spending insufficient time for such duties. Members working at more than committee also assure 

communication and collaboration between committees. Given professions, knowledge and experiences 

of board member, persons who are experts of subject matters are appointed to committees. The existing 

structure does not hinder the active fulfillment of duties by the committees, considering the qualifica-

tions and specialties required by committee membership. No change has been planned yet in this regard, 

The Board of Directors provides the committees with any resource and support required for the fulfill-

ment of their duties. The committees can invite any manager they deem required to their meetings and 

receive opinion of such manager. 

The committees make use of independent expert views on issues which they deem necessary in relation 

to their activities, and fees for consultancy services are borne by the Company. In 2021, the Board of 

Directors did not get any consultancy services from any independent person and/or organization. 

The committees convene in such frequencies required by the effectiveness of their works and stipulated 

in their working principles.  

Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee fulfills the duties stipulated in the Capital Market Legislation and the CMB Cor-

porate Governance Principles. All the members of the Audit Committee are independent members of the 

Board of Directors. During the meeting of our Company's Board of Directors held on April 13, 2021, it 

was resolved that the committee be composed of two members and Ahmet Turgut Tokgöz be appointed 

as the President and Erkan Durusoy be appointed as member.  

Information on Members of the Committee in charge of Audit: 

Name & Surname Title in the Com-

mittee 

Position Executive/non-

executive 

Ahmet Turgut Tokgöz Chairman Independent Member of the Board 

of Directors 

Non-executive 

Erkan Durusoy Member Independent Member of the Board 

of Directors 

Non-executive 

The working principles of the Committee are announced on our website and the Committee holds regu-

lar meetings four times a year. Moreover, it submits its opinion, to the Board of Directors, with regards 

to election of independent auditor and its opinion built regarding accuracy, authenticity and compliance 

of annual and interim financial statements, to be disclosed to public, with the accounting principles fol-

lowed by the partnership also by considering the assessments of the responsible managers of the part-

nership and of the independent auditors. The Audit Committee held eight meetings related to its activi-

ties in 2021. 

The activities carried out by the Committee in 2021 are mainly as follows: 
 

- It prepared its proposal regarding the Independent Audit Firm it determined for the audit of the fi-

nancial statements and the annual report issued in 2021 and the reports related to the Committee of 

Early Detection of Risk, and submitted it to Board of Directors for approval. 

- It made its own assessment regarding the accuracy, authenticity and compliance of the financial 

statements of 2021, disclosed to public, with the accounting principles followed by the Company by 
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receiving opinions from the Company's responsible managers and also from the independent auditor 

in June and December, and submitted it to the Board of Directors for approval. 

- It obtained the necessary information about the internal control and internal audit activities of the 

Company from the Audit Board. 

Corporate Governance Committee 

It was established in order to monitor the Company’s compliance with the corporate governance princi-

ples, to perform improvement studies in this regard, and to make suggestions to the Board of Directors. 

During the meeting of our company's Board of Directors dated April 13, 2021, it was decided to form a 

Corporate Governance Committee consisting of three members and to appoint Erkan Durusoy, the inde-

pendent member of the Board of Directors, as President and Ata Selçuk as a member and in Board 

meeting dated May 18, 2021, it was decided to appoint Zeynep Serttepe (Investor Relations Manager) as 

a member. As individual Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee could not be established 

due to the structure of the Board of Directors, it was decided as per the same Board resolution dated 

April 13, 2021 that the Corporate Governance Committee would fulfill also the duties of these commit-

tees. 

Information on Members of the Corporate Governance Committee; 

Name & Surname Title in the Com-

mittee 

Position Executive/non-

executive 

Erkan Durusoy Chairman Independent Member of the 

Board of Directors 

Non-executive 

Ata Selçuk Member Member of the Board of Direc-

tors 

Non-executive 

Zeynep Serttepe Member Investor Relations Manager Non-executive 

The Corporate Governance Committee determines whether the corporate governance principles are 

applied in the Company, if not, the reason thereof, and the conflicts of interest arising from not fully 

observing these principles, and makes suggestions to the Board of Directors for improving the practices, 

and oversees the activities of the Investor Relations Department. The Corporate Governance Committee 

held five meetings related to its activities in 2021. 

The working principles of the Committee are found on our website.  

Committee of Early Detection of Risk 

During the meeting of our company's Board of Directors held on April 13, 2021, it was resolved that the 

Committee of Early Detection of Risk be composed of two members and Erkan Durusoy be appointed 

as the President and Atalay Muharrem Gümrah be appointed as member. The working principles of the 

Committee are announced on our website. 

Information on Members of the Early Risk Detection Committee; 

Name & Surname Title in the Com-

mittee 

Position Executive/non-

executive 

Ahmet Turgut  

Tokgöz 

Chairman Independent Member of the 

Board of Directors 

Non-executive 

Atalay Muharrem 

Gümrah 
Member 

Member of the Board of Direc-

tors 
Non-executive 
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The Committee of Early Detection of Risk makes suggestions and recommendations to the Board of 

Directors for the issues related to the early determination and assessment of any strategic, operational, 

financial, legal and any other risks to endanger the existence, development, and continuance of the 

Company; the calculation of effects and possibilities of such risks; the management of such risks in 

accordance with the corporate risk taking profile of the Company; reporting of such risks; implementing 

the required precautions related to the determined risks; taking such precautions into consideration in 

the decision mechanisms; and creating effective internal control systems accordingly and the integration 

thereof, in order to comply both with the regulations of the Capital Markets Board on Corporate Gov-

ernance and article 378 of the Turkish Commercial Code number 6102. The duties and the working 

principles of the Committee of Early Detection of Risk have been determined within the framework of 

the Capital Market Legislation, the Company's Articles of Association, the Turkish Commercial Code 

and the regulations, provisions, and principles included in the "Corporate Governance Principles" of the 

Capital Markets Board. The Article 378 of the Turkish Commercial Code stipulates that, with its bi-

monthly report to be submitted, the Committee will assess the relevant period regarding the risks that 

may affect the existence and the continuation of the Company, will refer hazards, if any, and will show 

solutions. Within this framework, the Committee of Early Detection of Risk held seven meetings related 

to its activities in 2021. 

Assessment of the Board of Directors Related to the Activities of the Committees 

Established by the Board of Directors, the committees discharged their duties and responsibilities set 

forth in their duty and working principles and took care to convene at frequencies deemed necessary for 

effective work. The committees informed the Board of Directors, verbally and in writing, about their 

works. 

 

Risk Management and Internal Control Mechanism 

Risk Management is a management process that covers the identification, evaluation and monitoring of 

risks for the determined objectives and targets, and taking, reviewing and reporting the necessary 

measures to reduce the effects thereof.   

 

Internal Control is the system which ensures that processes and transactions are performed within 

framework of relevant legislation and rules in accordance with the management strategy and policies, 

errors, frauds and irregularities are detected and avoided, account and record order can be rendered inte-

gral and reliable, information in the data system can be obtained in a timely and accurate fashion.  

 

During the Board meeting dated May 15, 2013 of our Company, The Early Risk Detection Committee, 

which carries out studies for early detection of risks likely to endanger the existence, development and 

continuity of the Company, implementation of the necessary measures in relation to the identified risks 

and management of the risk, was established as per the provisions of Turkish Commercial Code num-

bered 6102 (“TCC”) and Capital Markets Board (“CMB”) Corporate Governance Principles. 

 

In order to coordinate risk management and internal control activities in Eczacıbaşı Group, an Corporate 

Risk Management unit was established under the Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş Group Directorate of Finan-

cial Affairs and Financing. This unit works in coordination with the Committee of Early Detection of 

Risk, chaired by an Independent Member of the Board of Directors, convenes at least six times a year, 

in the management of all kinds of strategic, operational, financial, compliance and sustainability-related 

risks that may affect the achievement of the Company's short, medium and long-term goals. The objec-

tives of corporate risk management activities include adapting real sector best practices, ensuring that 

the structure is up-to-date and sustainable, creating meaningful indicators for decision makers, and pre-

senting them to the Board of Directors, Committee and senior management for monitoring and assess-

ment.  
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The primary risks incurred by the Company are monitored under two main titles as financial risks (for-

eign exchange, interest, liquidity, and credit) and nonfinancial risks (strategic, operational, compliance 

and sustainability), and the Board of Directors is periodically informed about these risks. Detailed in-

formation related to risk management is available in the relevant section of the annual report.  

Strategic Targets of the Company 

The Board of Directors manages and represents the Company through strategic decisions by observing, 

in the first place, long-term interests of the Company, using a reasonable and cautious risk management 

approach that keeps the Company’s risk, growth and yield balance at the right level. 

The Board of Directors defines the strategic targets of the Company, determines the needed human and 

financial resources, and audits the performance of the management. 

The Board of Directors observes that the Company's activities are in compliance with the legislation, the 

Articles of Association, internal regulations, and the adopted policies. During the Board of Directors 

and Senior Management meetings held periodically, the Company's objectives and its activities realized 

are monitored so as to include the performances of the previous periods. The current situation of the 

Company is reviewed and new targets and strategies are developed where deemed necessary as a result 

of existing conditions. 

Financial Rights  

At the Ordinary General Assembly held on April 13, 2021, it was decided to pay a monthly gross at-

tendance fee of TL 14.000 to Board Member Ata Selçuk and Independent Board Members, and not to 

pay any remuneration to the remaining members for their duties. 

None of the Board members made any financial transaction related to the Company. During the period 

of January 01, 2021 - December 31, 2021, the Company did not give security or lend to and did not 

make loan available to any Board member or executive. 

Regarding the compensation for the independent members of the Board of Directors, no payment plan 

based on the Company’s performance is used. 

Benefits provided to members of the Board of Directors and senior executives  
 

There are long-term benefits provided to the senior executives during the interim accounting periods 

that ended on 31st December 2021 and 2020.   
 

Benefits provided to senior executives                                                       2021     2020 
Remunerations and other short-term benefits(*) 450,000 282,000 
Total 450,000  282,000 

(*) Board member Ata Selçuk, Independent Board member Erkan Durusoy and Ahmet Turgut Toksöz were each 

paid a monthly gross remuneration of TL 14,000. It shows the total amount of the said remuneration made to the 

members of the Board of Directors during the reporting period. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE INFORMATION FORM (CGIF) 

 

 

 

1. SHAREHOLDERS 

 
1.1. Facilitating the Exercise of Shareholders' 

Rights 

The number of investor meetings (conference, 

seminar, etc.) organized by the company during 

the year 

- 

1.2. Right to Obtain and Examine Infor-

mation 
 

The number of special audit request(s) - 

The number of special audit requests that were 

accepted at the General Shareholders' Meeting 
- 

1.3. General Assembly  

Link to the PDP announcement that demon-

strates the information requested by Principle 

1.3.1 (a-d) 

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/918031 

 

Whether the company provides materials for the 

General Shareholders' Meeting in English and 

Turkish at the same time 

The English and Turkish versions of documents were not provided concur-

rently on PDP, but the English versions of the documents related to the 

General Shareholders' Meetings were uploaded to the Company's website as 

soon as possible following the announcement of their Turkish versions on 

PDP. 

The links to the PDP announcements associated 

with the transactions that are not approved by 

the majority of independent directors or by 

unanimous votes of present board members in 

the context of Principle 1.3.9 

 There is no transaction in this regard. 

The links to the PDP announcements associated 

with related party transactions in the context of 

Article 9 of the Communique on Corporate 

Governance (II-17.1) 

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/928623 

The links to the PDP announcements associated 

with common and continuous transactions in 

the context of Article 10 of the Communique on 

Corporate Governance (II-17.1) 

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/915946 

 

The name of the section on the corporate web-

site that demonstrates the donation policy of the 

company 

Investor Relations / Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding / Corporate Governance 

and Sustainability / Donation and Aid Policy  

The relevant link to the PDP with minute of the 

General Shareholders' Meeting where the dona-

tion policy has been approved 

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/927590 

 

The number of the provisions of the articles of 

association that discuss the participation of 

stakeholders to the General Shareholders' Meet-

ing 

There is no such article of such nature in the articles of association. It is 

possible for those stakeholders who wish to do so to attend general assem-

bly meetings with no right of taking the floor. 

Identified stakeholder groups that participated 

in the General Shareholders' Meeting, if any 

Some of the Eczacıbaşı Group employees attended the General Assembly 

Meeting, where the activities for the year 2020 were discussed. 

1.4. Voting Rights  

Whether the shares of the company have differ-

ential voting rights 
No 

In case that there are voting privileges, indicate 

the owner and percentage of the voting majority 

of shares. 

- 

The percentage of ownership of the largest 

shareholder 
81.57% 

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/918031
https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/915946
https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/927590
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1.5. Minority Rights  

Whether the scope of minority rights enlarged 

(in terms of content or the ratio) in the articles 

of the association 

No 

If yes, specify the relevant provision of the arti-

cles of association. 
- 

1.6. Dividend Right  

The name of the section on the corporate web-

site that describes the dividend distribution pol-

icy 

Investor Relations / Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding / Corporate Governance 

and Sustainability / Dividend Policy 

Minutes of the relevant agenda item in case the 

board of directors proposed to the general as-

sembly not to distribute dividends, the reason 

for such proposal and information as to use of 

the dividend 

It was decided to distribute dividends. 

PDP link to the related general shareholder 

meeting minutes in case the board of directors 

proposed to the general assembly not to distrib-

ute dividends 

It was decided to distribute dividends. 

 

General Assembly Meetings 

 

General 

Assembly 
Date 

The number 
of infor-
mation 
requests 

received by 
the compa-
ny regard-

ing the 
clarification 

of the 
agenda of 

the General 
Sharehold-
ers' Meet-

ing 

Shareholder 

participation 
rate to the 

General 

Sharehold-
ers' Meeting 

Percent-
age of 
shares 

directly 
present at 
the GSM 

Percent-
age of 
shares 

represent-
ed by 
proxy 

Specify the name 
of the page of the 
corporate website 
that contains the 
General Share-

holders' Meeting 
minutes, and also 
indicates for each 

resolution the 
voting levels for or 

against 

Specify the 
name of the 

page of the 

corporate 
website that 

contains all 

questions 
asked in the 

general as-

sembly meet-
ing and all 

responses to 

them 

The number 

of the rele-

vant item or 
paragraph of 

General 

Shareholders' 
Meeting 

minutes in 

relation to 
related party 

transactions 

The num-

ber of 

declara-
tions by 

insiders 

received by 
the board 

of directors 

The link to the related 
PDP general share-

holder meeting notifi-

cation 

13/04/2021 0 81.68% ~%0 81.68% 

Investor Relations 

/ Eczacıbaşı 
Yatırım Holding / 

General Assembly 

- General Assem-
bly Minutes 

Investor 
Relations / 

Eczacıbaşı 

Yatırım 
Holding / 

General 

Assembly - 
General 

Assembly 

Minutes 

None. 0 

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/

Bildirim/918031, 

 

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/

Bildirim/927590, 

 

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/

Bildirim/928558 

 

2. DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY 
 

2.1. Corporate Website 

Specify the name of the sections of the website 

providing the information requested by the 

Principle 2.1.1. 

Investor Relations / Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding/ Financial Information 

Announcements and Presentations - Corporate Governance and Sustainabil-

ity - General Assembly - Frequently Asked Questions - Contact 

If applicable, specify the name of the sections of 

the website providing the list of shareholders 

(ultimate beneficiaries) who directly or indirect-

ly own more than 5% of the shares. 

Investor Relations / Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding / Corporate Governance 

and Sustainability / Shareholding Structure  

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/918031
https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/918031
https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/927590
https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/927590
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List of languages for which the website is avail-

able 

 

Most of the information, although not all, is prepared in English. "Annual 

Activity Report, Annual Financial Reports, General Assembly Meeting 

Minutes, General Assembly Information Document, General Assembly 

Meeting Invitation and Proxy Form for Voting", which are of special im-

portance for the exercise of shareholding rights, are being posted on our 

website in English as soon as possible after the announcement on the Public 

Disclosure Platform. 

2.2. Annual Report 

 The page numbers and/or name of the sec-

tions in the Annual Report that demonstrate 

the information requested by principle 2.2.2. 

a) The page numbers and/or name of the sec-

tions in the Annual Report that demonstrate 

the information on the duties of the members 

of the board of directors and executives con-

ducted out of the company and declarations 

on independence of board members 

Sustainability and Corporate Governance / Board of Directors and Inde-

pendence Statements 

b) The page numbers or names of the sections 

that include information about the committees 

formed within the Board 

Sustainability and Corporate Governance / Board of Directors  

c) The page numbers or names of the sections 

that include information about the number of 

board meetings held during the year and the 

attendance of the members to these meetings 

Sustainability and Corporate Governance / Board of Directors 

ç) The page numbers or name of the sections 

that include information about amendments to 

the legislation which may significantly affect 

the activities of the corporation 

There is no legislative change that may significantly affect the Company's 

activities Information is provided in the “Other Issues and Explanations” 

section of the Annual Report. 

d) The page numbers or names of the sections 

that include information about significant 

lawsuits filed against the corporation and the 

possible results thereof 

There is no lawsuit brought against the company that may affect its finan-

cial position. 

Information is provided in the “Other Issues and Explanations” section of 

the Annual Report. 

e) The page numbers or names of the sections 

that include information about the Company's 

conflicts of interest with the organizations 

from which it receives services such as in-

vestment consultancy and rating services and 

about the measures taken to prevent such con-

flicts 

No investment consultancy and rating service was procured.  Information is 

provided in the “Other Issues and Explanations” section of the Annual 

Report. 

f) The page numbers or names of the sections 

that include information about the cross own-

ership subsidiaries that the direct contribution 

to the capital exceeds 5% 

Activities and Substantial Developments Related to Activities and Finan-

cial Status / Information on Affiliates 

g) The page numbers or names of the sections 

that include information about social rights 

and professional training of the employees 

and corporate social responsibility activities 

related to company activities leading to social 

and environmental results 

Sustainability and Corporate Governance 

3. STAKEHOLDERS 
 

3.1. Corporation’s Policy on Stakeholders 

The name of the section on the corporate website 

that demonstrates the employee remedy or sever-

ance policy 

Although intra-company regulations do not a written compensation 

policy, compensation rights of beneficiaries are managed according to 

national and international legal norm. 
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4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS-I 

 4.2. Operation Principles of the Board of Direc-

tors 

Date of the last board evaluation conducted 14.02.2022  

Whether the board evaluation was externally facili-

tated 
No 

Whether all board members released from their du-

ties at the GSM 
Yes 

The number of definitive convictions the company 

was subject to in relation to breach of employee 

rights 

None. 

The position of the person responsible for the alert 

mechanism (i.e. whistleblowing mechanism) 
Compliance Board of Eczacıbaşı Group 

The contact detail of the company alert mechanism 

uyum@eczacibasi.com.tr  

Telephone number: (0 212) 371 72 72  

Fax number: (0 212) 371 72 66 

3.2. Supporting the Participation of the Stake-

holders in the Corporation’s Management 
 

Name of the section on the corporate website that 

demonstrates the internal regulation addressing the 

participation of employees on management bodies. 

Eczacıbaşı Group Human Resources Practices Manual (Personnel 

Regulation) does not have a public link. 

Corporate bodies where employees are actually rep-

resented 

Our company does not have permanent employees, management ser-

vices are outsourced. 

 

3.3. Human Resources Policy of the Company 
 

The role of the board on developing and ensuring 

that the company has a succession plan for the key 

management positions 

Developing a succession plan for the key management positions is 

determined by the Human Resources Planning Board and monitored by 

Eczacıbaşı Group's Talents and Remuneration Committee. 

The name of the section on the corporate website 

that demonstrates the human resource policy cover-

ing equal opportunities and hiring principles. Also 

provide a summary of relevant parts of the human 

resource policy. 

Gender and Equal Opportunity Policy is published at 

www.eczacibasi.com.tr Investor Relations / Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding 

/ Corporate Governance and Sustainability / Gender and Equal Oppor-

tunity Policy, and the human resources policy of Eczacıbaşı Group 

covering hiring principles is published at www.eczacibasi.com.tr / 

Group / Human Resources / Talent Selection / Recruitment. 

Whether the company provides an employee stock 

ownership programme 

The Company does not provide an employee stock ownership pro-

gramme.  

(There isn't an employee stock ownership programme) 

The name of the section on the corporate website 

that demonstrates the human resource policy cover-

ing discrimination and mistreatments and the 

measures to prevent them. Also provide a summary 

of relevant parts of the human resource policy. 

Eczacıbaşı Group's policy covering discrimination and mistreatments 

and the measures to prevent them is published at www.eczacibasi.com.tr 

/ Code of Conduct. 

The number of definitive convictions the company 

is subject to in relation to health and safety 

measures 

0 

3.5. Ethical Rules and Social Responsibility  

The name of the section on the corporate website 

that demonstrates the code of ethics 

Investor Relations / Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding / Corporate Govern-

ance and Sustainability / Code of Ethics 

The name of the section on the company website 

that demonstrates the corporate social responsibility 

report. If such a report does not exist, provide the 

information about any measures taken on environ-

mental, social and corporate governance issues. 

The activities carried out for corporate social responsibility issues in 

Eczacıbaşı Group are published at www.eczacibasi.com.tr / Social 

Responsibility. 

Any measures combating any kind of corruption 

including embezzlement and bribery 

The measures taken by Eczacıbaşı Group for combating corruption are 

included in the Code of Conduct booklet and published at 

www.eczacibasi.com.tr / Code of Conduct. 

mailto:uyum@eczacibasi.com.tr
http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/
http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/
http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/
http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/
http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/
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Name(s) of the board member(s) with specific dele-

gated duties and authorities, and descriptions of 

such duties 

 No delegation of authority has been made among the members of the 

Board of Directors. 

Number of reports presented by internal auditors to 

the audit committee or any relevant committee to 

the board 

1 

The name of the section or page number in the an-

nual report that includes an assessment of the effec-

tiveness of internal control system 

 Information on the company’s internal control system and internal 

audit activities, and opinion of the managing body 

Name of the board chairman Ferit Bülent Eczacıbaşı 

Name of the CEO Seyfettin Sarıçam 

If the CEO and Chair functions are combined: pro-

vide the link to the relevant PDP announcement 

providing the rationale for such combined roles 

They are not the same person. 

Link to the PDP notification stating that any dam-

age that may be caused by the members of the 

board of directors during the discharge of their du-

ties is insured for an amount exceeding 25% of the 

company's capital 

Insurance was subscribed under the umbrella insurance of the Group 

and the sum insured is above 25% of the Company capital. Since it is 

covered by the Group's umbrella insurance, no PDP disclosure was 

made. 

The name of the section on the corporate website 

that demonstrates current diversity policy targeting 

women directors 

Investor Relations / Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding /  

Corporate Governance and Sustainability / Gender and Equal Oppor-

tunity Policy  

The number and ratio of female directors within the 

Board of Directors 
- 

 

Structure of the Board of Directors 

Name & 

Surname 

of 
Board 

Member 

 Whether Execu-

tive or Non-
Executive 

 

Whether Independent 

Director or Not 

 

The 

First 
Election 

Date 
To Board 

 

Link to 

PDP Notification 
That Includes 

The Independency 
Declaration 

 
Whether the Inde-
pendent Director 

Considered By The 
Nomination Com-

mittee 

 

Whether or not 

there is a Mem-
ber 

Who lost 

Her/his inde-

pendence 

Whether 

the Direc-

tor Has At 

Least 5 
Years’ 

Experi-

ence On 
Audit, 

Account-

ing 
And/Or 

Finance 
Or Not 

F.Bülent 

Eczacıbaşı 
 Non-executive 

 Not independent 

director 
15/04/1993 -     Not applicable 

    Not applicab-

le 
- 

R.Faruk 

Eczacıbaşı 
 Non-executive 

 Not independent 

director 
15/04/1996 -     Not applicable 

    Not applicab-

le 
- 

Atalay 

Muharem 

Gümrah 

 Non-executive 
 Not independent 

director 
13/04/2017 -     Not applicable 

    Not applicab-

le 
 Yes 

Ata Selçuk  Non-executive 
 Not independent 

director 
13/04/2021 -     Not applicable 

    Not applicab-

le 
Yes 

Erkan 

Durusoy 
 Non-executive Independent director 11/04/2019 

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/

Bildirim/918031 
Considered No  Yes 

Ahmet 

Turgut 

Tokgöz 

 Non-executive Independent director 12/04/2018 
https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/

Bildirim/918031 
 Considered  No Yes 
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4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS-II 
 

  4.4. Meeting Procedures of the Board of Directors 

Number of physical board meetings in the reporting 

period (meetings in person) 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, only two physical meetings were held 

during the reporting period, and the other 22 meeting resolutions have 

been passed by circulating among the attendees. 

Director average attendance rate at board meetings 94.18% 

Whether the board uses an electronic portal to sup-

port its work or not 
No 

Number of minimum days ahead of the board meet-

ing to provide information to directors, as per the 

board charter 

The documents prepared regarding the agenda items are forwarded to 

the members of the Board of Directors by the secretariat at least three 

(3) working days before the meeting date. 

The name of the section on the corporate website 

that demonstrates information about the board char-

ter 

 Investor Relations / Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding /  

Corporate Governance and Sustainability / Working Principles of the 

Board of Directors 

Number of maximum external commitments for 

board members as per the policy covering the num-

ber of external duties held by directors 

Although there is no such policy, members of the Board of Directors 

can take office at companies affiliated with Eczacıbaşı Group, however, 

as a principle, they may not take office outside the Group. 

4.5. Committees Established within the Board of 

Directors 
 

Page numbers or names of sections in the annual 

report that includes information about the board 

committees 

Sustainability and Corporate Governance / Board of Directors  

Link(s) to the PDP announcement(s) with the board 

committee charters 

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/817981 

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/820333 

 

 
Composition of Board Committees-I  

 

Names of the Board Committees 

Name of the 

Committee De-

fined as "Other" 

in the First Col-

umn  

 

Name-Surname of Committee 

Members 

 

Whether 

Committee  

Chair or Not  

 

Whether Board Member 

Or Not 

 Audit Committee - Ahmet Turgut Tokgöz Yes  Board member 

 Audit Committee - Erkan Durusoy  No  Board member 

 Corporate Governance Commit-

tee 
- Erkan Durusoy Yes  Board member 

 Corporate Governance Commit-

tee 
- Ata Selçuk No  Board member 

 Corporate Governance Commit-

tee 
- Zeynep Serttepe No  Not board member 

 Committee of Early Detection of 

Risk 
- Ahmet Turgut Tokgöz Yes  Board member 

 Committee of Early Detection of 

Risk 
- 

Atalay Muharrem  

Gümrah 
No  Board member 

 

4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS-III 

 
4.5. Committees Established within the Board of 

Directors  II 

Specify where the activities of the audit committee 

are presented in your annual report or website (Page 

number or section name in the annual re-

port/website) 

Annual Report / Sustainability and Corporate Governance / Board of 

Directors / Audit Committee  

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/817981
https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/820333
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Specify where the activities of the corporate gov-

ernance committee are presented in your annual 

report or website (Page number or section name in 

the annual report/website) 

Annual Report / Sustainability and Corporate Governance / Board of 

Directors / Corporate Governance Committee  

Specify where the activities of the nomination 

committee are presented in your annual report or 

website (Page number or section name in the annual 

report/website) 

No separate nomination committee was established in accordance with 

article 4.5.1 of the Communiqué number II.17-1. The duties of the 

nomination committee are fulfilled by the corporate governance com-

mittee.  

Described under the titles of Annual Report / Sustainability and Corpo-

rate Governance / Board of Directors / Corporate Governance Commit-

tee 

Specify where the activities of the early detection of 

risk committee are presented in your annual report 

or website (Page number or section name in the an-

nual report/website) 

Annual Report / Sustainability and Corporate Governance / Board of 

Directors / Committee of Early Detection of Risk  

 

Specify where the activities of the remuneration 

committee are presented in your annual report or 

website (Page number or section name in the annual 

report/website) 

No separate compensation committee was established in accordance 

with article 4.5.1 of the Communiqué number II.17-1. The duties of this 

committee are fulfilled by the corporate governance committee. 

Described under the titles of Annual Report / Sustainability and Corpo-

rate Governance / Board of Directors / Corporate Governance Commit-

tee 

4.6. Financial Rights Offered to Members of the 

Board of Directors and Executives 
 

Page number or section name in the annual report 

that includes information about the operational and 

financial targets and whether such targets have been 

achieved or not 

Activities, Substantial Developments Related To Activities And Finan-

cial Position 

Specify the section of website where remuneration 

policy for executive and non-executive directors are 

presented. 

Investor Relations / Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding / Corporate Govern-

ance and Sustainability / Remuneration Policy 

Page number or section name in the annual report 

that includes information about remuneration and 

all other benefits provided to board members and 

senior executives 

Sustainability and Corporate Governance / Benefits Provided to Mem-

bers of the Board of Directors and Senior Executives  

 

 

Board Committees  II 

 

Names of the Board Committees 

 

Name of The 

Committee 
Defined As 

"Other" In The 

First Column 

The Percentage 

Of Non-

executive Direc-
tors 

The Per-

centage Of 

Independent 
Members In 

The Com-

mittee 
 

The Number of 
Meetings Held by the 

Committee In Person 

The Number of Reports on 
its Activities Submitted to 

the Board 

 Audit Committee - 100% 100% 4 8 

 Corporate Governance Committee - 67% 33% 3 5 

 Committee of Early Detection of 

Risk 
- 100% 50% 7 7 
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Compliance Status Remarks 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes  

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE 

REPORT (CRF) 

     

1.1. FACILITATING THE EXERCISE OF 

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS 

1.1.2 - Up-to-date information and disclosures which 

may affect the exercise of shareholder rights are availa-
ble to investors at the corporate website. 

X      

1.2. RIGHT TO OBTAIN AND REVIEW 

INFORMATION 
     

1.2.1- Management did not enter into any transaction 

that would complicate the conduct of special audit. 
X      

1.3. GENERAL ASSEMBLY      

1.3.2 - The company ensures the clarity of the General 

Assembly agenda, and that an item on the agenda does 
not cover multiple topics. 

X      

1.3.7 - Insiders with privileged information have in-

formed the board of directors about transactions con-

ducted on their behalf within the scope of the company's 
activities in order for these transactions to be presented 
at the General Shareholders' Meeting. 

    X  

1.3.8 - Members of the board of directors who are con-

cerned with specific agenda items, auditors, and other 

related persons, as well as the officers who are responsi-
ble for the preparation of the financial statements were 
present at the General Shareholders' Meeting. 

X      

1.3.10 - The agenda of the General Shareholders' Meet-

ing included a separate item detailing the amounts and 
beneficiaries of all donations and contributions. 

X     

It was stated in the agenda that 

donations and aid were not made 

during the year. 

1.3.11 - The General Shareholders' Meeting was held 

open to the public, including the stakeholders, without 
having the right to speak. 

 X    

Our general assembly meetings are 

held in a fashion open to the public, 

yet our ordinary general assembly 
meeting for activities of 2020 was 

not held in a manner open to the 

public, considering the public health 
requirements, health and safety of 

our shareholders, within framework 

of measures taken due to Covid-19 
outbreak. 

1.4. VOTING RIGHTS      

1.4.1 - There is no restriction preventing shareholders 

from exercising their shareholder rights. 
X      

1.4.2 - The company does not have shares that carry 

privileged voting rights. 
X      
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Compliance Status Remarks 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes  

1.4.3 - The company withholds from exercising its 

voting rights at the General Shareholders' Meeting of 
any company with which it has cross-ownership, in case 
such cross-ownership provides management control. 

 

 

 

X      

 1.5. MINORITY RIGHTS      

1.5.1 - The company pays maximum diligence to the 
exercise of minority rights. 

X      

1.5.2 - The Articles of Association extend the use of 

minority rights to those who own less than one twentieth 

of the outstanding shares, and expand the scope of the 
minority rights. 

  X   

Our company does not have any 

privileged share that may limit 

exercise of shareholding/scarcity 
rights. Utmost care is taken by the 

Company regarding the exercise of 

shareholding rights. Given our 
existing shareholding structure, 

distribution of the shares other than 

the main shareholding shares, and 
general practices across our country, 

no change for expanding scope of 

scarcity rights in our articles of 
association is not foreseen, and 

applicable provisions associated with 

preservation of scarcity rights will 
continue to be adhered to.  

 1.6. DIVIDEND RIGHT      

1.6.1 - The dividend policy approved by the General 

Shareholders' Meeting is posted on the company web-
site. 

 

X      

1.6.2 - The dividend distribution policy comprises the 

minimum information to ensure that the shareholders 

can have an opinion on the procedure and principles of 
dividend distributions in the future. 

X      

1.6.3 - The reasons for retaining earnings, and their 

allocations, are stated in the relevant agenda item. 
    X Profit is distributed. 

1.6.4 - The board reviewed whether the dividend policy 

balances the benefits of the shareholders and those of the 
company. 

X      

1.7. TRANSFER OF SHARES      

1.7.1 - There are no restrictions preventing shares from 
being transferred. 

X      

2.1. CORPORATE WEBSITE    

2.1.1 - The company website includes all elements listed 
in Corporate Governance Principle 2.1.1. 

X      

 2.1.2 - The shareholding structure (names, privileges, 

number and ratio of shares, and beneficial owners of more 

than 5% of the issued share capital) is updated on the 
website at least every 6 months. 

X      
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Compliance Status Remarks 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes  

 

 2.1.4 - The company website is prepared in other selected 

foreign languages, in a way to present exactly the same 
information with the Turkish content. 

 

 
X    

Most of the information on our corpo-
rate website is available in English. 

"Annual Activity Report, Annual 

Financial Reports, General Assembly 
Meeting Minutes, General Assembly 

Information Document, General 

Assembly Meeting Invitation and 
Proxy Form for Voting", which are of 

special importance for the exercise of 

shareholding rights, have been posted 
on our website in English as soon as 

possible after the announcement on 

the Public Disclosure Platform. Ac-

tivities are ongoing to include more 

content on the website in English. 

 2.2. ANNUAL REPORT    

 2.2.1 - The board of directors ensures that the annual 

report represents a true and complete view of the compa-
ny's activities. 

X      

 2.2.2 - The annual report includes all elements listed in 
Corporate Governance Principle 2.2.2. 

X      

    

3.1. CORPORATION’S POLICY ON 

STAKEHOLDERS 
   

3.1.1 - The rights of the stakeholders are protected pursu-

ant to the relevant regulations, contracts and within the 
framework of bona fides principles. 

X      

3.1.3 - Policies or procedures addressing stakeholders' 

rights are published on the company's website. 
X      

3.1.4 - A whistleblowing programme is in place for re-

porting legal and ethical issues. 
X      

3.1.5 - The company addresses conflicts of interest among 
stakeholders in a balanced manner. 

X      

3.2. SUPPORTING THE PARTICIPATION OF THE 

STAKEHOLDERS IN THE CORPORATION'S 

MANAGEMENT 

   

3.2.1 - The Articles of Association, or the internal regula-

tions (terms of reference/manuals), regulate the participa-
tion of employees in management. 

    X 

Our Company does not have any 

permanent employees and the man-

agement services are carried out by 

outsourced services and consultancy. 

3.2.2 - Surveys/other research techniques, consultation, 

interviews, observation method etc. were conducted to 

obtain opinions from stakeholders on decisions that sig-
nificantly affect them. 

    X 
Important decisions which have 
consequences for the stakeholders 

have not made. 

3.3. HUMAN RESOURCES POLICY OF THE 

COMPANY 
   

3.3.1 - The company has adopted an employment policy 

ensuring equal opportunities, and a succession plan for all 
key managerial positions. 

X      

3.3.2 - Recruitment criteria are documented. X      

3.3.3 - The company has a policy on human resources 

development, and organizes trainings for employees. 
X      
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Compliance Status Remarks 

Yes Partial Yes Partial Yes Partial 

 

3.3.4 - Meetings have been organised to inform employ-

ees on the financial status of the company, remuneration, 
career planning, education and health. 

    X 

Our Company does not have any 

permanent employees and the man-

agement services are carried out by 

outsourced services and consultancy. 
Eczacıbaşı Group's policies and 

practices in this regard apply also to 
our Company. 

3.3.5 - Employees, or their representatives, were notified 

of decisions impacting them. The opinion of the related 

trade unions was also taken. The opinion of the related 
trade unions was also taken in this regard. 

    X 

Our Company does not have any 

permanent employees and the man-
agement services are carried out by 

outsourced services and consultancy. 

Eczacıbaşı Group's policies and 
practices in this regard apply also to 
our Company. 

3.3.6 - Job descriptions and performance criteria have 

been prepared for all employees, announced to them and 
taken into account to determine employee remuneration. 

    X 

Our Company does not have any 

permanent employees and the man-
agement services are carried out by 

outsourced services and consultancy. 

Eczacıbaşı Group's policies and 
practices in this regard apply also to 
our Company. 

3.3.7 - Measures (procedures, trainings, raising aware-

ness, goals, monitoring, complaint mechanisms) have 
been taken to prevent discrimination, and to protect em-

ployees against any physical, mental, and emotional 
mistreatment. 

    X 

Our Company does not have any 

permanent employees and the man-

agement services are carried out by 
outsourced services and consultancy. 

Eczacıbaşı Group's policies and 

practices in this regard apply also to 
our Company. 

3.3.8 - The company ensures freedom of association and 
supports the right for collective bargaining. 

    X 

Our Company does not have any 

permanent employees and the man-

agement services are carried out by 
outsourced services and consultancy. 

Eczacıbaşı Group's policies and 

practices in this regard apply also to 
our Company. 

3.3.9 - A safe working environment for employees is 
maintained. 

    X 

Our Company does not have any 

permanent employees and the man-

agement services are carried out by 

outsourced services and consultancy. 
Eczacıbaşı Group's policies and 

practices in this regard apply also to 
our Company. 

3.4. RELATIONS WITH CUSTOMERS AND 

SUPPLIERS 
   

3.4.1 - The company measured its customer satisfaction, 

and operated to ensure full customer satisfaction. 
    X 

Our company is a partnership that is a 

holding and carries out investment 
activities. 

3.4.2 - Customers are notified of any delays in handling 
their requests. 

    X 
Our company is a partnership that is a 

holding and carries out investment 
activities. 

3.4.3 - The company complied with the quality standards 
with respect to its products and services. 

    X 

Our company is a partnership that is a 

holding and carries out investment 
activities. 

3.4.4 - The company has in place adequate controls to 

protect the confidentiality of sensitive information and 
business secrets of its customers and suppliers. 

X      

 



ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDING ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

 

SUSTAINABILITY AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  

 

32 

 

Compliance Status Remarks 

Yes Partial Yes Partial Yes Partial 

 

3.5. ETHICAL RULES AND SOCIAL 

RESPONSIBILITY 
   

3.5.1 - The board of the corporation has adopted a code of 
ethics, disclosed on the corporate website. 

X      

3.5.2- The company has been mindful of its social respon-

sibility. It has adopted measures to prevent corruption and 
bribery.  

X      

 

4.1. ROLE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

4.1.1 - The board of directors has ensured strategy and 

risks do not threaten the long-term interests of the com-
pany, and that effective risk management is in place. 

X      

4.1.2 - The agenda and minutes of board meetings indi-

cate that the board of directors discussed and approved 
strategy, ensured resources were adequately allocated, 
and monitored company and management performance. 

X      

4.2. OPERATION PRINCIPLES OF THE BOARD 

OF DIRECTORS 
 

4.2.1 - The board of directors documented its meetings 
and reported its activities to the shareholders. X      

4.2.2 - Duties and authorities of the members of the board 

of directors are disclosed in the annual report. 
X      

4.2.3 - The board has ensured the company has an internal 

control framework adequate for its activities, size and 
complexity. 

X      

4.2.4 - Information on the functioning and effectiveness 

of the internal control system is provided in the annual 
report. 

X      

4.2.5 - The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive 

Officer are separated and defined. 
X      

4.2.7 - The board of directors ensures that the Investor 

Relations department and the corporate governance com-

mittee work effectively. The board works closely with 
them when communicating and settling disputes with 
shareholders. 

X      

4.2.8 - The company has subscribed to a Directors and 

Officers liability insurance covering more than 25% of 
the capital. 

X     

Insurance was procured under the 

umbrella insurance of Eczacıbaşı 
Group and exceeds 25%. 
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Compliance Status Remarks 

Yes Partial Yes Partial Yes Partial 

 

4.3. STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS 
 

4.3.9- The board of directors has approved the policy on 

its own composition, setting a minimal target of 25% for 

female directors. The board annually evaluates its compo-
sition and nominates directors so as to be compliant with 
the policy. 

  X   

Equality of opportunity, at Eczacıbaşı 

Group of which our company is a part, 
has been adopted as one of the basic 

sustainability priorities. Actions are 

taken based on the perspective that the 
long-term success is not only based on 

increased overall share of women 

within the organization, but also 

active roles played by them. Said 

priorities are taken into account when 

determining candidate board mem-
bers. Although the targeted ratio 

concerning female employee ratio at 

the management and time are deter-
mined (the ratio determined for 2021 

is 35%), no target ratio and time 

concerning female members have 
been determined specifically for the 

Board of Directors. Specifically for 

the board of directors, determination 
of 25% as the minimum female mem-

ber ratio and the relevant time is 
among our targets. 

4.3.10 - At least one member of the audit committee has 5 
years of experience in audit/accounting and finance. 

X      

4.4. MEETING PROCEDURES OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS 

 

4.4.1 - Each board member attended the majority of the 

board meetings in person. 
 X    

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, only 
two physical meetings were held 

during the reporting period with the 

attendance of all members of the 
Board of Directors, and the other 22 

meeting resolutions have been passed 

by circulating among the attendees.  
Members of the Board of Directors 

were periodically informed about the 

performance of the Company, at least 
quarterly, and relevant information 

and documents were shared with the 

members of the Board of Directors 
before deciding on the resolutions, 

and the questions of the members 

were answered by providing detailed 
information on the issues in question. 

4.4.2 - The board has formally approved a minimum time 

by which information and documents relevant to the 
agenda items should be supplied to all board members. 

X      

4.4.3 - The opinions of board members that could not 

attend the meeting, but did submit their opinion in written 
format, were presented to other members. 

    X 

It is possible to convey written opin-

ions, and members not attending to the 

meeting did not submit anything to 
that effect. 

4.4.4 - Each member of the board has one vote. X      
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Compliance Status Remarks 

Yes Partial Yes Partial Yes Partial 

4.4.5 - The board has a charter/written internal rules 
defining the meeting procedures of the board. 

X      

4.4.6 - Board minutes document that all items on the 

agenda are discussed, and board resolutions include 
director's dissenting opinions if any. 

X      

4.4.7 - There are limits to external commitments of board 

members. Shareholders are informed of board members' 

external commitments at the General Shareholders' Meet-
ing. 

 X    

The members of the Board of Direc-

tors are restricted from taking posi-
tions in companies other than Ec-

zacıbaşı Group as a principle. Since 

care is taken for electing persons who 
will make a contribution to businesses 

and management of our Company due 

to nature of their duties within the 
Group, who have no obstacle for 

fulfilling their responsibilities related 

to board of directors membership, and 
could spare sufficient time for our 

Company, a restriction for duties 

assumed by members of the board of 
directors within the Group is not 

foreseen. Duties assumed by members 

of the board of directors outside the 
company are made available to share-

holders for review in a public manner 

with our annual reports and Compa-
ny's Overall Information Form availa-
ble at PDP.  

4.5. COMMITTEES ESTABLISHED WITHIN THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
      

4.5.5 - Board members serve in only one of the Board's 
committees. 

  X   

Some of our board members work in 

more than one committee. Considering 
the existing activities, management 

and organizational structure of our 

Company, which is structured as a 
holding, board members sitting at 

more than one committee do not cause 

them to neglect their committee duties 
or do not result them spending insuffi-

cient time for such duties. Members 

working at more than committee also 
assure communication and collabora-

tion between committees. Given 

professions, knowledge and experienc-
es of board member, persons who are 

experts of subject matters are appoint-

ed to committees. The existing struc-

ture does not hinder the active fulfill-

ment of duties by the committees, 
considering the qualifications and 

specialties required by committee 

membership. No change has been 
planned yet in this regard. 

4.5.6 - Committees have invited persons to the meetings 

as deemed necessary to obtain their views. 
X      

4.5.7 - If external consultancy services are used, the 

independence of the provider is stated in the annual 
report. 

    X 
No service of such nature was pro-

cured. 

4.5.8 - Minutes of all committee meetings are kept and 
reported to board members. 

X      
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Compliance Status Remarks 

Yes Partial Yes Partial Yes Partial 

4.6. FINANCIAL RIGHTS OFFERED TO 

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND 

EXECUTIVE MANAGERS 

 

4.6.1 - The board of directors has conducted a board 

performance evaluation to review whether it has dis-
charged all its responsibilities effectively. 

 X    

Our Board of Directors holds a sepa-

rate annual meeting whereby it evalu-

ates operations of the Company and 
results thereof and overall performance 

of the management. However, there is 

no methodology or a written perfor-
mance assessment system used for 

performance assessment of the board 

of directors and/or its members. Per-
formances of all companies under the 

roof of the Group including our com-

pany are periodically reviewed, but no 
less frequently than quarterly. The 

performance evaluation of the compa-

nies' senior management is carried out 
under the performance evaluation 

system of the human resources. When 

required, it is possible to consider 
outsourcing services for performance 

assessment of the board of directors 
form specialized institutions.  

 4.6.4 - The company did not extend any loans to its 

board directors or executives, nor extended their lending 

period or enhanced the amount of those loans, or improve 

conditions thereon, and did not extend loans under a 
personal credit title by third parties or provided guaran-

tees such as surety in favor of them. 

X      

4.6.5 - The individual remuneration of board members 
and executives is disclosed in the annual report. 

X      
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DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE 

 

I hereby declare that within the framework of the legislation, the articles of association, and the criteria specified 

in the Corporate Governance Communiqué of the Capital Markets Board, I am a candidate for taking the office as 

an "independent member" in ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. (Company), and within this 

scope; 

 

• That there has been no employment relation at manager level to undertake significant roles and 

responsibilities, that more than 5% of capital or voting rights or privileged shares has not been collectively or 

individually acquired or that no material commercial relationship has been established during the last five 

years between the Company, partnerships in which the Company has management control or material effect, 

partners having management control on the Company or having material effect on the Company, legal 

persons in which such partners have management control, and me, my spouse and my second degree relatives 

by blood and marriage; 

 

• That during the last five years, I have not taken office as a partner (5% and above), employee in capacity of 

manager to undertake significant roles and responsibilities or member of the board of directors in the 

companies from/to which the Company has considerably purchased/sold service or product, within 

framework of the agreements concluded including notably the Company's audit (including tax audit, legal 

audit, internal audit), rating and consultancy, for the period during which such service or product purchase or 

sales transactions have been performed; 

 

• That I have the professional education, knowledge, and experience to carry out properly the duties that I shall 

undertake as an independent member of the board of directors; 

 

• That I will not work as a full-time employee in public institutes and institutions, except for being a faculty 

member at a university and provided that it is consistent with the legislation, after being elected as a member, 

 

• That I am considered a resident of Turkey pursuant to the Income Tax Law, 

 

• That I possess strong ethic standards, professional reputation, and experience to make positive contributions 

to the Company's activities, to preserve my impartiality in any conflict of interest between the company and 

its shareholders, and to decide independently taking into account the interests of the stakeholders; 

 

• That I will spare time for works of the Company to such extent that I can track functioning of the Company's 

activities and completely fulfill the requirements of the duties I assume; 

 

• That I have not served as a board member at the Company’s board of directors for more than six years in the 

last ten years; 

 

• That I do not take office as an independent member of the board of directors in the Company and in more 

than three of the companies controlled by the partners having management control on the Company and, in 

total, in more than five of the companies being traded in the stock market; 

 

• And that I have not been registered and announced in the name of a legal entity that has been elected as a 

member of the board of directors. 

 

 

 

Ahmet Turgut TOKGÖZ 
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DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE 

 

I hereby declare that within the framework of the legislation, the articles of association, and the criteria specified 

in the Corporate Governance Communiqué of the Capital Markets Board, I am a candidate for taking the office as 

an "independent member" in ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. (Company), and within this 

scope; 

 

• That there has been no employment relation at manager level to undertake significant roles and 

responsibilities, that more than 5% of capital or voting rights or privileged shares has not been collectively or 

individually acquired or that no material commercial relationship has been established during the last five 

years between the Company, partnerships in which the Company has management control or material effect, 

partners having management control on the Company or having material effect on the Company, legal 

persons in which such partners have management control, and me, my spouse and my second degree relatives 

by blood and marriage; 

 

• That during the last five years, I have not taken office as a partner (5% and above), employee in capacity of 

manager to undertake significant roles and responsibilities or member of the board of directors in the 

companies from/to which the Company has considerably purchased/sold service or product, within 

framework of the agreements concluded including notably the Company's audit (including tax audit, legal 

audit, internal audit), rating and consultancy, for the period during which such service or product purchase or 

sales transactions have been performed; 

 

• That I have the professional education, knowledge, and experience to carry out properly the duties that I shall 

undertake as an independent member of the board of directors; 

 

• That I will not work as a full-time employee in public institutes and institutions, except for being a faculty 

member at a university and provided that it is consistent with the legislation, after being elected as a member, 

 

• That I am considered a resident of Turkey pursuant to the Income Tax Law, 

 

• That I possess strong ethic standards, professional reputation, and experience to make positive contributions 

to the Company's activities, to preserve my impartiality in any conflict of interest between the company and 

its shareholders, and to decide independently taking into account the interests of the stakeholders; 

 

• That I will spare time for works of the Company to such extent that I can track functioning of the Company's 

activities and completely fulfill the requirements of the duties I assume; 

 

• That I have not served as a board member at the Company’s board of directors for more than six years in the 

last ten years; 

 

• That I do not take office as an independent member of the board of directors in the Company and in more 

than three of the companies controlled by the partners having management control on the Company and, in 

total, in more than five of the companies being traded in the stock market; 

 

• And that I have not been registered and announced in the name of a legal entity that has been elected as a 

member of the board of directors. 

 

 

 

Erkan Durusoy 

 

 

 



Statement of 
Responsibility



 

ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

DECLARATION OF RESPONSIBILITY PREPARED PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 9 OF CAPITAL 

MARKET BOARD'S COMMUNIQUÉ NUMBERED II-14.1 ON PRINCIPLES GOVERNING 

FINANCIAL REPORTING IN THE CAPITAL MARKET 

 

 

RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGARDING ADOPTION OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS AND ANNUAL REPORTS 

RESOLUTION DATE  : 25.02.2022 

RESOLUTION NUMBER : 2022/7 

 

We kindly inform you that the  Statement of Financial Status, Statement of Profit or Loss, Other 

Comprehensive Income Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Footnotes 

containing explanations regarding such statements ("Financial Reports"), as prepared by our company, for 

the period January 1, 2021 - December 31, 2021 according to the Capital Markets Board's ("CMB") 

Communiqué on Principles Regarding Financial Reporting in the Capital Markets ("Communiqué") 

numbered II-14.1 and in compliance with Turkish Accounting Standards/Turkish Financial Reporting 

Standards ("TAS/TFRS"), as published by Public Oversight, Accounting and Audit Standards Authority 

(KGK), in line with formats as set by KGK and CMB, which have undergone independent audit and are 

comparative with the previous period, as well as Annual Report including the Corporate Governance 

Compliance Report ("URF"), Corporate Governance Information Form ("KYBF") and the Sustainability 

Principles Compliance Framework declaration prepared in accordance with the procedures and principles set 

out in the Board Principle Decision dated 10.01.2019 and numbered 2/49 within framework of the 

Communiqué on Corporate Governance numbered II-17.1 have been, in accordance with regulations of 

CMB, 

 

a)  reviewed by us, 

 

b)  do not contain any misleading explanation on important matters or do not contain any deficiency which 

may render them misleading as of the date of explanation within the framework of knowledge in our 

possession due to our positions and responsibility field at our company, 

 

c) that the financial statements, as drawn up under the Communiqué, fairly reflect the facts concerning 

assets, liabilities, financial status and profit and loss of the organization within the framework of 

knowledge possessed by us due to our positions and responsibility field at our company and that the 

annual report, fairly reflects development and performance of the business and financial status of the 

organization as well as any substantial risks and uncertainties faced by the organization, 

 

we declare that we are responsible for the foregoing explanation. 

 

Best regards,  

 

 

 

 

Seyfettin Sarıçam- General Manager      

             

Erkan Durusoy - Member of the Committee in Charge of Audit 

 

Ahmet Turgut Tokgöz - Chairman of the Committee in Charge of Audit 
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

To the General Assembly of Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. 

 

A. Audit of the financial statements 

 

1. Our opinion 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş.  

(the “Company”) which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the 

statement of profit or loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in 

equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements 

comprising a summary of significant accounting policies. 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 

Company as at 31 December 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended 

in accordance with Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”). 

 

2. Basis for opinion 

 

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the Standards on Independent Auditing (the “SIA”) that are 

part of Turkish Standards on Auditing issued by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards 

Authority (the “POA”). Our responsibilities under these standards are further described in the “Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We hereby declare that we 

are independent of the Company in accordance with the Ethical Rules for Independent Auditors (including 

Independence Standards) (the “Ethical Rules”) and the ethical requirements regarding independent audit 

in regulations issued by POA that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements. We have also 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Ethical Rules and regulations. We believe 

that the audit evidence we have obtained during the independent audit provides a sufficient and 

appropriate basis for our opinion. 

 

3. Key audit matters 

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements of the current period. Key audit matters were addressed in the context of 

our independent audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

http://www.pwc.com.tr/


 

 

Key Audit Matters 
How the key audit matter was addressed in 
the audit 

Financial investments and investments 
accounted for using the equity method - Fair 
value measurement of Eczacıbaşı Holding 
A.Ş. 
 
The Company classified its stake in its ultimate 
parent, Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. and is accounted for 
at fair value and classified as financial investments of 
where fair value changes recognized through other 
comprehensive income in the accompanying 
financial statements. The Company also owns 
additional stake in Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. through 
its associate, EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal 
Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.’s (“EİS”), accounted 
for using the equity method. 
 
As a result of the fair value study performed by the 
Company as of 31 December 2021, the Company 
recognized its shares in Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. at a 
fair value of TRY 1,397,124,330 in the accompanying 
financial statements. Besides, although it is not 
presented as a separate financial statement line item 
in the accompanying financial statements, the fair 
value of the shares of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. which 
are classified as financial investment in statement of 
financial position of EİS and that is calculated with 
Company’s ownership ratio on EİS, amounts to  
TRY 1,725,336,511. 
 
We focused on this matter during our audit for the 
following reasons below: 
 
-  Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. financial investment that 

is carried at fair value is material to the 
accompanying financial statements and the 
related fair value study requires specialist 
involvement. 

 
-  The fair value model includes future management 

estimates (ie. weighted average cost of capital 
rate, growth rate and minority discount) where 
realization of such management estimates in the 
future include inherent uncertainties. 

 
Please refer to Notes 2.3, 2.4, 3 and 17 to the 
financial statements for the relevant disclosures. 
 

In summary, the following audit procedures are 
performed in the audit of fair value measurement 
study of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş.: 
 
-  The consistency of the information used in the 

fair value study and the mathematical accuracy 
of the related calculation with the financial 
statements are checked. 

 
- Valuation methods and technical data used are 

evaluated, with the support of our specialists, by 
conducting interviews with the expert and the 
Company management who carried out the 
related work. 

 
-  The expertise of those, who carried out the 

valuation study, is assessed in accordance with 
SIA 500 “Audit Evidence”. 

 
-  Data from external sources, such as “market 

value” and “similar acquisitions”, used in the 
valuation models are compared to the relevant 
independent data sources. 

 
-  The reasonableness of the key management 

estimates used in the discounted cash flow 
models (ie. weighted average cost of capital 
rate, growth rates and minority discount) are 
evaluated with the support of our specialists 
and the sensitivity analysis performed are 
checked. In addition, the future revenue 
estimates used in modelling are compared to 
the prior year results and future budgets of 
related companies. 

 
-  The compliance of the related disclosures with 

respect to financial investments with TFRS are 
checked. 

 
Based on the above procedures performed we had 
no material finding on the financial investments. 

  



 

 

4. Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial 

statements 

 

The Company management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 

statements in accordance with TFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is 

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

5. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

 

Responsibilities of independent auditors in an independent audit are as follows: 

 

Our aim is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an independent auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance expressed as a result of an independent audit conducted in 

accordance with SIA is a high level of assurance but does not guarantee that a material misstatement will 

always be detected. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 

users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an independent audit conducted in accordance with SIA, we exercise professional judgment and 

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

· Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

 

· Assess the internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.  



 

 

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

independent auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 

to continue as a going concern. 

 

· Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit. 

 

We provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence. We also communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied. 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 

the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 

public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
  



 

 

B. Other responsibilities arising from regulatory requirements 

 

1. No matter has come to our attention that is significant according to subparagraph 4 of Article 402 of 

Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) No. 6102 and that causes us to believe that the Company’s 

bookkeeping activities concerning the period from 1 January to 31 December 2021 period are not in 

compliance with the TCC and provisions of the Company’s articles of association related to financial 

reporting. 

 

2. In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 402 of the TCC, the Board of Directors submitted the 

necessary explanations to us and provided the documents required within the context of our audit. 

 

3. In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 398 of the TCC, the auditor’s report on the early risk 

identification system and committee was submitted to the Company’s Board of Directors on  

25 February 2022. 

 

 

PwC Bağımsız Denetim ve 

Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş. 

 

 

 

 

Ediz Günsel, SMMM 

Partner 

 

Istanbul, 25 February 2022 
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  Audited Audited 

 Notes 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

ASSETS 

 

Cash and cash equivalents  20 410,163,156 83,041,369 

Other receivables  5 554,024 22,766,386 

   -Other receivables due from related parties   7,352 - 

   -Other receivables due from other parties  546,672 22,766,386 

Prepaid expenses  7 - 776 

   - Prepaid expenses due to other parties  - 776 

Current income tax assets 15 - 1,511,762 

 

Total current assets   410,717,180 107,320,293 

 

Financial investments   3, 17 1,397,124,330 1,206,279,307 

   - Financial assets at fair value through 

      other comprehensive income  1,397,124,330 1,206,279,307 

Investments accounted for using equity 

   accounting method  3, 6 2,269,463,203 1,581,084,370 

Right of use assets   84,369 14,884 

Intangible assets   1,397 2,397 

   - Other intangible assets  1,397 2,397 

Prepaid expenses  7 37,018 62,387 

   - Prepaid expenses due to other parties  37,018 62,387 

Other non-current assets  9 9,753,313 8,657,642 

   - Other non-current assets due to other parties  9,753,313 8,657,642 

 

Total non-current assets   3,676,463,630 2,796,100,987 

 

TOTAL ASSETS   4,087,180,810 2,903,421,280 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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  Audited Audited 
 Notes 31 December 2021 31 December 2020  
 

LIABILITIES 
 

Short term borrowings   10,280 17,563 

    - Short term lease liabilities due to  related parties  10,280 17,563 

Trade payables 4 1,221,965 895,719 

   - Trade payables due to related parties 3 664,913 894,829 

   - Trade payables due to other parties  557,052 890 

Other short-term liabilities 9 117,322 83,057 

    - Other short-term liabilities to other parties  117,322 83,057 

Current tax liabilities  15 32,198,272 - 

 

Total current liabilities    33,547,839 996,339 
 

Long term borrowings   74,089 - 

   - Lease liabilities due to related parties  74,089 - 

Deferred income   383 383 

   - Deferred income due from related parties  383 383 

Deferred tax liabilities  15 65,427,960 54,664,879 
 

Total non-current liabilities   65,502,432 54,665,262 
 

Total Liabilities  99,050,271 55,661,601 
 

Share capital  10 105,000,000 105,000,000 

Adjustment to share capital  10 105,173,533 105,173,533 

Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss   2,678,154,624 2,012,374,792 

   - Gains/losses on financial assets measured at 

     fair value through other comprehensive income (*)  2,678,912,188 2,013,132,356 

   - Defined benefit plans re-measurement gains/losses  (757,564) (757,564) 

Items to be reclassified to profit or loss   1,876,525 1,876,525 

   - Foreign currency translation differences  1,876,525 1,876,525 

Restricted reserves  10 81,607,729 35,622,785 

Retained earnings   586,895,783 451,728,363 

Net income for the period   429,422,345 135,983,681 
 

Total Equity   3,988,130,539 2,847,759,679 

 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY   4,087,180,810 2,903,421,280 

 

(*) ‘Gains/losses on financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income’ is presented under ‘Other 

revaluation on remeasurement gains’ in PDP (KAP) templates. 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements..
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  Audited Audited 

  1 January -  1 January -  

 Notes 31 December 2021 31 December 2020  

 

PROFIT OR LOSS 

 

General administrative expenses (-) 11 (7,486,688) (4,893,322) 

Other operating income  12 396,801,866 65,188,306 

Other operating expenses (-) 12 (159,556,436) (16,502,337) 

 

Operating profit   229,758,742 43,792,647 

 

Share of income/(loss) of investments  

   accounted for using equity method  6, 13 242,073,867 96,912,943 

 

Operating income before finance expense   471,832,609 140,705,590 
 

Financial expenses (-) 14 (1,732) (4,564) 

 

Profit before tax from continuing opration  471,830,877 140,701,026 
 

Tax expense from continuing operations   (42,408,532) (4,717,345) 
 

Income tax expenses (-)  15 (51,625,452) (4,717,304) 

Deferred tax income/(expenses) 15 9,216,920 (41) 
 

Net profit from continuing operations   429,422,345 135,983,681 
 

Earnings per share from continuing operations 16 4.09 1.30 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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  Audited Audited 

  1 January -  1 January -  

 Notes 31 December 2021 31 December 2020  

 

Profit for the period   429,422,345 135,983,681 

 

Other comprehensive income/(expenses) 
 

 Other comprehensive income  

   not to be reclassified to profit or loss  840,911,489 432,008,222 

 

- Gains/losses on financial assets measured at 

    fair value through comprehensive income (*)  399,600,023 225,803,415 

 

- Gains/losses on financial assets measured at 

    fair value through comprehensive income, tax effect (**)  (19,980,001) (11,290,171) 

 

Share of other comprehensive income  

   of investments accounted for using equity based method 

   that will not be reclassified to profit or loss, net 6 461,291,467 217,494,978 

 

Other comprehensive income (after tax)  840,911,489 432,008,222 

 

Total comprehensive income   1,270,333,834 567,991,903 

 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 

   Attributable To:  1,270,333,834 567,991,903 

Non-controlling interests   - - 

Owners of the company   1,270,333,834 567,991,903 

 

Earnings per share from continuing operations 16 12.10 5.41 

 

(*) ‘Gains/losses on financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income’ is presented under ‘Other 

revaluation on remeasurement gains’ in PDP (KAP) templates. 

 

(**) ‘Gains/losses on financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, tax effect’ 

is presented under ‘Other revaluation on remeasurement gains, tax effect’ in PDP (KAP) templates. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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  Items not to   Items to 

  be reclassified   be reclassified 

  to Profit   to Profit 

  or Loss   or Loss  

             

      Gains on Financial        

    Assets Measured   

    Defined  at Fair Value Foreign   

 Paid in Adjustment to Benefit Plans  through Other Currency    Net 

  Share  Share Re-measurement  Comprehensive Translation  Restricted  Retained  Profit Total 

 Notes Capital Capital Gains/(Losses)  Income Differences  Reserves  Earnings  /(Loss) Equity  

 

1 January 2020  105,000,000 105,173,533 (757,564) 1,581,124,134 1,876,525 35,622,785 429,100,813 72,628,550 2,329,768,776 

 

Transfers  - - - - - - 72,628,550 (72,628,550) - 

Dividend paid  10 - - - - - - (50,001,000) - (50,001,000) 

Total comprehensive income   - - - 432,008,222 - - - 135,983,681 567,991,903 

   - Net Profit for the period  - - - - - - - 135,983,681 135,983,681 

   - Other comprehensive income  - - - 432,008,222 - - - - 432,008,222 

 

31 December 2020 10 105,000,000 105,173,533 (757,564) 2,013,132,356 1,876,525 35,622,785 451,728,363 135,983,681 2,847,759,679 

 

1 January 2021  105,000,000 105,173,533 (757,564) 2,013,132,356 1,876,525 35,622,785 451,728,363 135,983,681 2,847,759,679 

 

Transfers  - - - - - 45,747,918 90,235,763 (135,983,681) - 

Dividend paid  10 - - - - - - (130,200,000) - (130,200,000) 

Total comprehensive income   - - - 665,779,832 - - 175,131,657 429,422,345 1,270,333,834 

   - Net Profit for the period  - - - - - - - 429,422,345 429,422,345 

   - Other comprehensive income  - - - 665,779,832 - - 175,131,657 - 840,911,489 

Decrease due to other changes (*)  - - - - - 237,026 - - 237,026 

 

31 December 2021 10 105,000,000 105,173,533 (757,564) 2,678,912,188 1,876,525 81,607,729 586,895,783 429,422,345 3,988,130,539 

 

(*)  All of the 10.29% shares of the Company in the capital of Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. were sold to Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. on April 15, 2021. The entire sales price of 208,755,000 TL was collected in cash and in 

advance on April 15, 2021. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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  Audited Audited 

  1 January -  1 January -  
 Notes 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 
Cash flows from operating activities  165,371,397 (15,275,437) 

 

Net profit for the period  429,422,345 135,983,681 
Income from continuing operations  429,422,345 135,983,681 

 

Adjustments to reconcile net profit  (271,403,268) (123,489,397) 

Adjustments related to depreciation and amortization  20,712 17,025  
Adjustments related to dividend income 3, 12 (58,917,025) (22,357,844) 

Adjustments related to interest expenses 14 1,732 4,564  

Adjustments related to interest income 12 (3,451,352) (2,211,784) 
Adjustments related to unrealized foreign currency translation differences  (9,391,000)  (6,745,760) 

 Adjustments related to undistributed profit of investments  

   accounted for using the equity method 6, 13 (242,073,867) (96,912,943) 

   - Adjustments related to undistributed profit of associates 6, 13 (242,073,867) (96,912,943) 
Adjustments related to tax (income)/expense 15 42,408,532 4,717,345 
Other adjustments related to profit/loss reconciliations  (1,000) - 

 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities  21,816,386 (23,075,151) 

Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in changes in other receivables  22,212,382 (22,519,750) 

  - (Increase)/decrease in short-term other receivables due to related parties  (7,352) - 

   - (Increase)/decrease in short-term other receivables due to other parties  22,219,734 (22,519,750) 
Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in prepaid expenses  26,145 (33,645) 

Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in trade payables  329,247 278,427 

   -  Increase/(decrease) in trade payables due to related parties  (229,915) 277,838 
   - Increase/(decrease) in trade payables due to other parties  559,162 589 

Adjustments for other changes in working capital  (751,388) (800,183) 

   - (Increase)/decrease in oter assets related with other operations  (1,098,691) (772,327) 
   - Increase/(decrease) in liabilities related with other operations  347,303 (27,856) 

 
Cash flows from operating activities  179,835,463 (10,580,867) 

Interest received 12 3,451,352 2,171,364 
Tax refunds/payments  (17,915,418) (6,865,934) 

 
Cash flows from investing activities  282,658,612 35,872,149 

 

Cash outflows related to share purchase or capital  
   increase of subsidiaries and associates  208,755,000 (1,326,200) 

Cash inflows from selling other equity instruments purchased by the entity 6 (29,835,022) - 

Dividends received 3 103,738,634 37,198,349 

 
Cash flows from financing activities  (130,221,444) (50,020,105) 

 

Dividend paid (-)  (130,200,000) (50,001,000) 
Cash outflow from leasing liabilities  (21,444) (19,105) 

 
NET İNCREASE ON CASH AND CASH EQUİVALENTS BEFORE 

   THE EFFECT OF FOREİGN EXCHANGE DİFFERENCES  317,808,565 (29,423,393) 

 

Effect of foreign exchange-rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  9,391,000 6,745,760 

 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  327,199,565 (22,677,633) 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE  

   BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD  82,883,699 105,561,332 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 20 410,083,264 82,883,699 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL  

STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH 

 

ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

 

NOTES TO THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.) 

 

7 

1. ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS 

 

Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 29 December 1973 in 

accordance with the Capital Markets Law and other related regulations to perform capital market 

operations. 

 

The Company’s principal activities are, joining the capital of companies which has the ability or 

potential to profit and invest the stocks of those companies to other securities. 

 

At 31 December 2021, 18.43 % of total shares of the Company are publicly listed (31 December 2020: 

18.43%). The ultimate parent of the Company is Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş., which has 81.57% of the 

shares of the Company (31 December 2020: 81.57%) (Note 10). The control of the main partner belongs 

to the Eczacıbaşı family. As stated in note 2.1 the Company classifies and accounts EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, 

Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi (‘EİS’), İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat 

Malzemeleri Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. (‘İntema’) and E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri San. ve Tic. 

A.Ş. (‘E-kart’) as investments accounted for using equity method. 

 

The Company does not have any employees as of 31 December 2021 and management activities are 

carried out through the procurement of services (31 December 2020: None). 

 

The Company’s registered address is as follows: 

 

Kanyon Ofis Büyükdere Caddesi, No: 185 Levent, Şişli, İstanbul. 

 

Approval of financial statements 

 

The financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2021 have been approved by the Board of 

Directors on 25 February 2022. General Assembly and specific regulatory institutions have the power to 

amend the financial statements 

 

 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

2.1 Basis of Presentation  

 

2.1.1 Statement of compliance 

 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the CMB’s 

Communiqué Serial II, No: 14.1, ‘Basis of Financial Reporting in Capital Markets’ (‘the Communiqué’) 

published in the Official Gazette numbered 28676 on 13 June 2013. According to the article 5 of the 

Communiqué, financial statements are prepared in accordance with Turkish Accounting 

Standards/Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (‘TAS/TFRS’) and its addendum and interpretations 

(‘TAS/TFRS’) issued by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (‘POA’). 

 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with the “2019 TFRS 

Taxonomy” which was published on 15 April 2019 by POA and the format and mandatory information 

recommended by CMB.    



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL  

STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH 

 

ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

 

NOTES TO THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.) 

 

8 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued) 

 

2.1 Basis of Presentation (Continued) 

 

2.1.1 Statement of compliance (Continued) 

 

In accordance with the decleration of CMB, based on the decision taken at 17 March 2005, that there is 

no need to inflation accounting application for publicly listed companies effective after 1 January 2005. 

Financial statements of the Company were prepared within the framework of this decision. 

 

The Company maintains its books of account and prepares its statutory financial statements in 

accordance with accounting principles in the Turkish Commercial Code (‘TCC’) and tax legislation. 

Subsidiaries of the company which currently operate in foreign countries maintain their books of account 

and prepare their financial statements in accordance with the local tax legislations of the countries where 

they are operating and they maintain their books of account and prepare their financial statements in 

terms of national currency.  

 

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally 

based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets. 

 

2.1.2 Functional currency 

 

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Company’s entities are measured using the 

currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). 

The financial statements are presented in TL, which is the functional currency of the Company and the 

presentation currency of the Company.  

 

2.1.3  Comparative information and restatement of prior period financial statements 

 

The financial statements have been prepared in the comparative prior period to enable the determination 

of changes in financial position and performance. In order to comply with the presentation of current 

period financial statements, necessary comparative figures are reclassified, and significant differences 

are explained. 

 

2.1.4  Investments accounted for using equity method 

 

The Company accounts its associates using the equity method (‘equity method’) under the following 

conditions. 

 
An associate is an entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership, over which the 
investor has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. 
 
Equity method is applied when the investor has significant influence over the investee. Under the equity 
accounting method, on initial recognition the investment in an associate or a joint venture is recognised 
at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit 
or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The investor’s share of the investee’s profit or loss 
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss. Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be necessary 
for changes in the investor’s proportionate interest in the investee arising from changes in the investee’s 
other comprehensive income (Note 6).  
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued) 
 

2.1 Basis of Presentation (Continued)  
 

According to TAS 28, “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”, after application of the equity 

method, the Company determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its 

investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Company determines whether there is objective 

evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Company 

calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate 

and its carrying value, then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate’ in the income 

statement. Detailed explanations regarding to the impairment in assets are presented in Note 2.3. 
 

Nominal capital of the associates accounted for using the equity method and the Company’s shares in 

those associates’ shares are presented below: 
 

  31 December 2021   31 December 2020  

  Direct  Stock  Direct Stock 

 Nominal shareholding market Nominal shareholding market 

 capital of parent value capital of parent value 

 

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal 
   Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.     685,260,000 30.34% 1,557,230,051 685,260,000 29.69%      1,517,764,557 

İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat Malzemeleri        

   Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. 19,440,000 46.21% 803,998,548 19,440,000 46.21%      358,430,638 
E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri  
   Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. 3,110,000 31.01% - 3,110,000 31.01% - 

 

Assets, liabilities, equity, gross profit and profit/(losses) of associates included in the financial 

statements by equity method as of 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: 
 

 Total Total    

31 December 2021 assets liabilities Equity Gross profit Profit/(Loss) 

 

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal  
   Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi 8,264,593,000 868,825,000 7,395,768,000 341,379,000 755,072,000 

İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat Malzemeleri   

   Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. 469,801,262 414,605,407 55,195,855 135,090,302 28,082,659 
E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri  

   San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 169,964,008 211,721,949 (41,757,941) 37,735,968 26,777,621 

 

 Total Total    

31 December 2020 assets liabilities Equity Gross profit Profit/(Loss) 

 

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal  

   Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi 5,970,231,000 687,923,000 5,282,308,000 300,669,000 322,114,000 
İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat Malzemeleri   

   Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. 362,921,159 335,807,963 27,113,196 81,287,751 2,732,689 

E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri  
   San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 109,718,035 127,205,791 (17,487,756) 20,866,671 (14,378,120) 

 

2.1.5 Changes in accounting policies 
 

Significant changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively and prior period financial 

statements are restated. 
 

Accounting policy changes arising from the first application of a new TFRS are applied retrospectively 

or prospectively in accordance with the transitional provisions of that TFRS. Significant accounting 

errors (if any) are applied retrospectively and prior period financial statements are restated. Changes in 

accounting estimates are applied in the current period when the change is made only for a period, and 

both in the period when the change is made and prospectively.  
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued) 

 

2.1 Basis of Presentation (Continued)  

 

2.1.6 Changes in the accounting estimates and errors 

 

If changes in estimates are for only one period, changes are applied to the current year but if changes in 

estimates are for the following periods, changes are applied both to the current and following years 

prospectively, The Company did not have any major changes in the accounting estimates during the 

current year. 

 

Significant accounting errors are corrected retrospectively, by restating the prior period financial 

statements. 

 

2.1.7 Going concern 

 

The Company prepared its consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis. 

 

2.1.8  Segment reporting 

 

Since the operations of the company is in Turkey and operates in one field segment reporting is not 

prepared for the period. 

 

2.2 New standards, amendments and interpretations 

 

The accounting policies of the financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2021 have been 

applied consistently to those used in the prior year except for the new and amended TFRS standards and 

TFRYK interpretations as of 1 January 2020. 

 

a) Standards, amendments and interpretations as of 31 December 2021: 
 

• Amendments to IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2; 

effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. The Phase 2 amendments 

address issues that arise from the implementation of the reforms, including the replacement of 

one benchmark with an alternative one. The Phase 2 amendments provide additional temporary 

reliefs from applying specific IAS 39 and IFRS 9 hedge accounting requirements to hedging 

relationships directly affected by IBOR reform. The change does not have a significant impact 

on the financial position and performance of the Company. 
 

• Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts – deferral of IFRS 9; effective from annual 

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. These amendments defer the date of application 

of IFRS 17 by two years to 1 January 2023 and change the fixed date of the temporary exemption 

in IFRS 4 from applying IFRS 9, Financial instrument until 1 January 2023. The change does 

not have a significant impact on the financial position and performance of the Company. 
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued) 

 

2.2 New standards, amendments and interpretations (Continued) 

 

b) Standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued but not effective as at  

31 December 2021: 
 

• Amendment to IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ – Covid-19 related rent concessions Extension of the 

Practical expedient; as of March 2021, this amendment extended till June 2022 and effective 

from 1 April 2021.As a result of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, rent concessions have 

been granted to lessees. Such concessions might take a variety of forms, including payment 

holidays and deferral of lease payments. On 28 May 2020, the IASB published an amendment 

to IFRS 16 that provides an optional practical expedient for lessees from assessing whether a 

rent concession related to COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees can elect to account for 

such rent concessions in the same way as they would if they were not lease modifications. In 

many cases, this will result in accounting for the concession as variable lease payments in the 

period(s) in which the event or condition that triggers the reduced payment occurs. The change 

does not have a significant impact on the financial position and performance of the Company. 
 

• IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’; effective from annual periods beginning on or after  

1 January 2023. This standard replaces IFRS 4, which currently permits a wide variety of 

practices in accounting for insurance contracts. IFRS 17 will fundamentally change the 

accounting by all entities that issue insurance contracts and investment contracts with 

discretionary participation features. The change does not have a significant impact on the 

financial position and performance of the Company. 
 

• Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements’ on classification of liabilities; 

effective date deferred until accounting periods starting not earlier than 1 January 2024. These 

narrow-scope amendments to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’, clarify that liabilities 

are classified as either current or non-current, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the 

reporting period. Classification is unaffected by the expectations of the entity or events after the 

reporting date (for example, the receipt of a waiver or a breach of covenant). The amendment 

also clarifies what IAS 1 means when it refers to the ‘settlement’ of a liability. The change does 

not have a significant impact on the financial position and performance of the Company. 
 

• A number of narrow-scope amendments to IFRS 3, IAS 16, IAS 37 and some annual 

improvements on IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IAS 41 and IFRS 16; effective from Annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2022. 
  

o Amendments to IFRS 3, ‘Business combinations’ update a reference in IFRS 3 to the 

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting without changing the accounting 

requirements for business combinations. 
 

o Amendments to IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’ prohibit a company from 

deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling 

items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, a 

company will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss.  
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued) 

 

2.2 New standards, amendments and interpretations (Continued) 

 

b) Standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued but not effective as at  

31 December 2021 (Continued): 
 

o Amendments to IAS 37, ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets’ specify 

which costs a company includes when assessing whether a contract will be loss-making.  
 

Annual improvements make minor amendments to IFRS 1, ‘First-time Adoption of IFRS’, IFRS 9, 

‘Financial instruments’, IAS 41, ‘Agriculture’ and the Illustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16, 

‘Leases’. The change does not have a significant impact on the financial position and performance of 

the Company. 
 

• Narrow scope amendments to IAS 1, Practice statement 2 and IAS 8; effective from annual 

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. The amendments aim to improve accounting 

policy disclosures and to help users of the financial statements to distinguish between changes 

in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. The change does not have a 

significant impact on the financial position and performance of the Company. 
 

• Amendment to IAS 12 – Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single 

transaction; from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. These amendments 

require companies to recognise deferred tax on transactions that, on initial recognition give rise 

to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences. The change does not have a 

significant impact on the financial position and performance of the Company. 

 

2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies 

 

Except for the equity method principles explained in Note 2.1.4, the significant accounting policies 

applied in the preparation of these financial statements are summarized below: 

 

Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank deposits and short-term investments, which can 

easily be converted into cash for a known amount, and which have high liquidity and insignificant 

conversion risk with maturities of three months or less (Note 20). 
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued) 

 

2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 

 

Financial assets 
 

Classification and measurement 
 

Company classified its financial assets in three categories; financial assets carried at amortized cost, 

financial assets carried at fair value though profit of loss, financial assets carried at fair value though 

other comprehensive income. Classification is performed in accordance with the business model 

determined based on the purpose of benefits from financial assets and expected cash flows. Management 

performs the classification of financial assets at the acquisition date. 
 

a) Assets recognized at amortized cost 
 

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely 
payments of principal and interest, whose payments are fixed or predetermined, which are not actively 
traded and which are not derivative instruments are measured at amortized cost. They are included in 
current assets, except for maturities more than 12 months after the balance sheet date. Those with 
maturities more than 12 months are classified as non-current assets. The Company’s financial assets 
carried at amortized cost comprise ‘trade receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the statement 
of financial position. In addition, with recourse factoring receivables classified in trade receivables are 
classified as financial assets carried at amortized cost since collection risk for those receivables are not 
transferred to counterparty. 
 

Impairment 
 

Company has applied simplified approach and used impairment matrix for the calculation of impairment 
on its receivables carried at amortized cost, since they do not comprise of any significant finance 
component. In accordance with this method, if any provision provided to the trade receivables as a result 
of a specific events, Company measures expected credit loss from these receivables by the life-time 
expected credit loss. The calculation of expected credit loss is performed based on the past experience 
of the company and its expectations for the future indications. 
 

b) Financial assets carried at fair value 
 

Assets that are held by the management for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the 

financial assets are measured at their fair value. If the management do not plan to dispose these assets 

in 12 months after the balance sheet date, they are classified as non-current assets. Company make a 

choice for the equity instruments during the initial recognition and elect profit or loss or other 

comprehensive income for the presentation of fair value gain and loss. 
 

i) Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss 
 

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss comprise of ‘derivative instruments’ in the 

statement of financial position. Derivative instruments are recognized as asset when the fair value of the 

instrument is positive, as liability when the fair value of the instrument is negative. Company’s financial 

instruments at fair value through profit or loss consist of forward contracts, currency swaps and cross 

currency fixed interest rate swap. 
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued) 

 

2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 

 

ii) Financial assets carried at value through other comprehensive income 

 

Financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income comprise of ‘financial assets’ 

in the statement of financial position. In addition, trade receivables collected from factoring companies 

due to without recourse factoring activities are classified as financial assets carried at fair value through 

other comprehensive income since the collection risk of these receivables are transferred to the factoring 

companies and management’s business plan for them is ‘hold to sell’. When the financial assets carried 

at fair value through other comprehensive income are sold, fair value gain or loss classified in other 

comprehensive income is classified to retained earnings. 

 

Foreign currency transactions 

 

Foreign currency transactions during the year have been translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the 

dates of the transactions, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated 

at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date, Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from 

translation of monetary assets and liabilities are reflected in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 

 

Earnings per share 
 

Earnings per share disclosed in the statements of profit or loss are determined by dividing net profit by 

the weighted average number of shares that have been outstanding during the year concerned  

(Note 16). 
 

In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares ‘bonus 

shares’ to existing shareholders from retained earnings, For the purpose of earnings per share computations, 

the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year has been adjusted in respect of bonus 

shares issued without a corresponding change in resources by giving them a retroactive effect for the year in 

which they were issued and for each earlier period. 

 

Events after the reporting period 

 

Subsequent events cover any events which arise between the reporting date and the statement of 

financial position date, even if they occurred after any declaration of the net profit for the period or 

specific financial information publicly disclosed.  

 

The Company adjusts its financial statements if such subsequent events arise which require an 

adjustment to the financial statements.  
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2.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued) 

 

2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 

 

Related parties 

 
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements, 
 
a)  A person or a close member of that person's family is related to a reporting entity if that person: 
 

i. Has control or joint control over the reporting entity;   
ii. Has significant influence over the reporting entity; or  
iii. Is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the 

reporting entity, 
 
(b)  An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies: 
 

i. The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that 
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others),  

ii. One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint 
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member),  

iii. Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party,  
iv. One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the 

third entity,  
v. The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the 

reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity, If the reporting entity is itself 
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity,  

vi. The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a),  
vii. A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the 

key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). 
 
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity 
and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged (Note 3). 
 

Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities 

 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is 

probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of 

the amount of the obligation. 

 

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 

obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 

obligation, When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its 

carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows, 

 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from 

a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be 

received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably (Note 8). 
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2.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued) 

 

2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 

 

Taxation and deferred income taxes 

 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 
 

Current tax 
 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from ‘profit 

before tax’ as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of items of income or 

expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it excludes items that are never taxable or 

deductible, The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or 

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting. 
 

 

Deferred tax 
 

Deferred tax liability or asset is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 

assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases which are used in the 

computation of taxable profit, Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary 

differences, Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that 

it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences 

can be utilized, Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference 

arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets 

and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.  
 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in 

subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Company is able to control 

the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse 

in the foreseeable future. 
 

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and 

interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits 

against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the 

foreseeable future (Note 15). 
 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 

in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, The measurement of deferred tax 

liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the 

Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and 

liabilities.  
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2.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued) 

 

2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current 

tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 

authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

 

Current and deferred tax for the period 

 

Current and deferred tax are recognized as in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are 

recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred 

tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively, Where current 

tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included 

in the accounting for the business combination. 

 

Share capital and dividends 

 

Ordinary shares are classified as capital, Dividends payable on ordinary shares are recognized as an 

appropriation of the profit in the period in which they are declared, 

 

Impairment of assets 

 

Except for financial asset,all type of assets are subject to tests for indicators of impairment, Accordingly, 

when the carrying value of the assets exceeds its net recoverable value an impairment is recognized, Net 

recoverable value is the higher of the net sales value or value in use, Value in use of an asset is estimated 

as the total of projected future cash inflows and salvage value at the end of the useful life of the asset. 

 

The Company management assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication 

that an asset may be impaired, If any such indication exists, the Company management estimates the 

recoverable amount of the asset and recognizes an impairment loss for the exceed portion of the asset 

carrying value, In the subsequent period, if there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in 

prior periods for an asset other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased, the impairment 

may is reversed under certain conditions. 

 

In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the Company considers, as 

a minimum, the following indications: 

 

(a)  There are observable indications that the asset’s value has declined during the period significantly 

more than would be expected as a result of the passage of time or normal use, 

(b)  Significant changes with an adverse effect on the entity have taken place during the period, or 

will take place soon, in the technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the 

entity operates or in the market to which an asset is dedicated, 

(c) Market interest rates or other market rates of return on investments have increased during the 

period, and those increases are likely to affect the discount rate used in calculating an asset’s value 

in use and decrease the asset’s recoverable amount materially, 

(d)  The carrying amount of the net assets of the entity is more than its market capitalisation. 
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2.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued) 

 

2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 

 

The Company considers for all of its assets, except goodwill, whether there is any indication that an 

impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset other than goodwill may no longer exist or may 

have decreased at each reporting period and, if such a conditions exists, the Company reverses the 

impairment loss recognized in prior periods for an individual asset, Unless the related asset is accounted 

and measured under a different standard, reversal of the impairment is accounted under statement of 

comprehensive income. 

 

TFRS 16, “Leases” standard 

 

The Company as the lessee 

 

At inception of a contract, the Company assess whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract 

is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 

period in exchange for consideration. The Company considers the following matters when assessing 

whether the agreement transfers the right to control the use of an identified asset for a limited period: 

 

a) The contract contains an identified asset: - this may be specified explicitly or implicitly. 

b) The asset should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically 

distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, the asset is not identified. 

c) The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of an 

asset throughout the period of use and 

d) The Company has the right to direct use of the asset. The Company concludes to have the right 

of use, when it is predetermined how and for what purpose the Company will use the asset. The 

Company has the right to direct use of asset if either:   

 

i. The Company has the right to operate the asset (or to direct others to operate the asset in a 

manner that it determines) throughout the period of use, without the supplier having the 

right to change those operating instructions; or 

ii. The customer designed the asset (or specific aspects of the asset) in a way that 

predetermines how and for what purpose the asset will be used throughout the period of 

use. 

 

At the commencement date, the Company recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability in financial 

statements. 

 

Right-of-use asset 

 

The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise: 

 

a) The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability, 

b) Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received,  

c) Any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and  
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2.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued) 
 

2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 

To apply a cost model, the Company measure the right-of-use asset at cost: 
 

a) Less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses; and  

b) Adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. 
 

The Company apply the depreciation requirements in TAS 16, “Property, Plant and Equipment” in 
depreciating the right-of-use asset, subject to the requirements. If the lease transfers ownership of the 
underlying asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects 
that the lessee will exercise a purchase option, the Company depreciate the right-of-use asset from the 
commencement date to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, The Company 
depreciate the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life 
of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. 
 

 The Company apply TAS 36, ‘Impairment of Assets’ to determine whether the right-of-use asset is 
impaired and to account for any impairment loss identified. 

 

Lease liability 
 

At the commencement date, the Company measure the lease liability at the present value of the lease 

payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit 

in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company 

use the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. The alternative borrowing rate has been determined by 

taking into account the borrowing rates of the Company companies on the contract dates. 
 

a) Fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable, 
b) Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or 

rate as at the commencement date, 
c) The exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that 

option; and 
d) Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising 

an option to terminate the lease. 
 

After the commencement date, the Company measure the lease liability by: 
 

a) Increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, 
b) Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and 
c) Remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications, or to reflect 

revised in-substance fixed lease payments. 
 

Interest on the lease liability in each period during the lease term is the amount that produces a constant 
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability. The Company determine the 
revised discount rate as the interest rate implicit in the lease for the remainder of the lease term, if that 
rate can be readily determined, or the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of reassessment, if 
the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined. After the commencement date, The 
Company remeasure the lease liability to reflect changes to the lease payments. The Company recognize 
the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. 
 

The duration of the contracts constituting the rental liability of the company varies between 1 and 3 

years. 
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2.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued) 

 

2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 

 

Extension and early termination options 

 

In determining the lease liability, the Company considers the extension and termination options. The 

majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable both by the Company and by the 

respective lessor. Extension and termination options are included in the lease term if the lease is 

reasonably certain to be extended and the options are enforcable by Company’s initiative in the contract. 

The Company remeasures the lease term, if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances 

occurs which affects the initial assessment. As result of the evaluations performed in the current period, 

there is no lease obligation or right of use assets arising from the inclusion of extension and early 

termination options in the lease period. 

 

Variable lease payments 

 

Lease payments arising from a portion of the Company’s lease agreements consist of variable lease 

payments. These variable lease payments, which are not covered by the TFRS 16 standard, are recorded 

as rent expense in the income statement in the relevant period. In the year ended 31 December 2021 and 

2020, the Company does not have any contracts with variable lease payments. 

 

Practices that facilitate 

 

Short-term lease contracts with a lease term of 12 months or less and contracts for information 

technology equipment leases (predominantly printers, laptops, mobile phones, etc.) determined by the 

Company as low value are evaluated within the scope of the exemption granted by TFRS 16, "Leases" 

standard. Payments related to these contracts continue to be recognized as an expense in the period they 

occur. A single discount rate has been applied to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar 

characteristics (such as leases with a similar remaining lease term for a similar asset class in a similar 

economic environment). 

 

The Company - as the lessor  

 

All the leasings of the Company as lessor are operational leasings. For operational leasings, leased assets 

are classified under investment properties, tangible assets or other current assets in the balance sheet and 

rental income is accounted in the income statement in equal amounts for the leasing period. Rental 

income is accounted in the consolidated income statement for the leasing period on a straight-line basis.  

 

The Company distributes an amount that takes place in an agreement which includes an item that has or 

has not one or more extra leasing qualities along with a leasing item through applying the TFRS 15 

“Revenue arising from agreements made with customers” standard. 
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2.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued) 

 

2.4  Significant accounting assumptions, estimations and judgements 

 

Preparation of financial statements requires the usage of estimations and assumptions which may affect 

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the statement of financial position date, disclosure of 

contingent assets and liabilities and reported amounts of income and expenses during financial period, 

Although the estimations and assumptions are based on the best estimates of the management’s existing 

incidents and operations, they may differ from the actual results, Judgments that have the most 

significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements and estimates that can cause a 

significant adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year 

include:  

 

 

Financial assets 

 

Financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income: 

  

The company subsequently measures its financial assets carried at fair value through other 

comprehensive income with their fair values. In this context, the company determines its financial assets 

whose shares are traded in the stock exchange by multiplying the closing price announced at BIST with 

the ownership rate. In addition to this, when a price for an identical financial asset is not observable it 

is estimated that the fair value of the related asset can not be reliably determined and the fair value of 

the related financial assets shall be found by using another valuation technique, With in this context, the 

Company measures the fair value of its fair value through other comprehensive income assets by 

discounting the free cash flows of its financial assets by the weighed average cost of capital. The fair 

vaule calculation of the Company’s financial assets is based on the Company management’s approved 

projections and is sensitive to the estimations and assumptions that are used in the projected cash flows. 

As a result, the estimates made here may not be an indication of the values that the Company can obtain 

in a current market transaction, and the actual values may deviate significantly from the estimates  

(Note 17). 

 

2.5 Significant changes regarding the current period 

 

The necessary actions have been taken by the Company management to minimize the possible effects 

of COVID-19, which affects the whole world, on the Company's activities and financial position. The 

effects of the COVID-19 epidemic on the activities of the Company are evaluated comprehensively, 

saving measures and additional measures are taken to ensure effective expense and cash management to 

reduce negative effects. 

 
While preparing the Company's financial statements as of 31 December 2021, the possible effects of the 
COVID-19 outbreak were evaluated and the estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the 
financial statements were reviewed. In this context, the Company has updated the fair value 
determination studies of financial assets whose fair value differences are reflected in other 
comprehensive income in its financial statements dated 31 December 2021 and reflected the differences 
in its financial statements (Note 17). 

 

  



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL  

STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH 

 

ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

 

NOTES TO THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.) 

 

22 

3. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 
 

Details of transactions between the Company and other related parties as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 

are disclosed below. 

 

Other Receivables 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 3,733 - 

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal  

   Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. 3,619 - 

 

Total (Note 4) 7,352 - 

 

Trade payables 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 656,408 894,829 

Eczacıbaşı Bilişim Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. 8,505 - 

 

Total (Note 4) 664,913 894,829 

 

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

Financial assets at fair value through  

   other comprehensive income 

 

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 1,397,124,330 1,013,832,183 

Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri A.Ş. - 192,447,124 

 

Total (Note 17) 1,397,124,330 1,206,279,307 

 

Investments accounted for using equity accounting method  

 

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal  

   Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. 2,243,957,198 1,568,555,362 

İntema 25,506,005 12,529,008 

 

Total (Note 6) 2,269,463,203 1,581,084,370 
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3. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued) 

 

Dividend income 

 1 January -  1 January -  

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. (Note 12) 58,917,025 20,709,004 

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal  

   Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (Note 6) (*) 44,821,609 14,840,505 

Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri A.Ş. (Note 12) - 1,648,840 

 

Total 103,738,634 37,198,349 

 
(*) Related amounts are eliminated from the financial statements in accordance with the accounting policies 

applied for the investments accounted for using the equity method explained in Note 2.1 and are not 

included in the statement of profit or loss. 

 

General administrative expenses 

 

  Services obtained and rental expenses  

 1 January -  1 January -  

Transactions with related parties 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. (**) 5,816,628 4,054,099 

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve  

   Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. 19,713 14,925 

Eczacıbaşı Bilişim Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. 19,007 16,989 

 

Total (Note 11) 5,855,348 4,086,013 

 
(**) Contains Companys’ legal, financial, corporate identity, budgeting, auditing and human resources services 

received from Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş.. These expenses are billed back to Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 

accordingly to the time spent for the relevant service. 

 

Finance expenses 

 

 1 January -  1 January -  

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Interest expenses from leasing payables (***) 1,732 4,564 

 

Total (Note 14) 1,732 4,564 

 
(***) The interest expense related to the debts arising from the leasing transactions of the Company from EİS 

Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sinai ve Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.  
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3. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued) 

 

Benefits paid to management 

 

There is no long-term benefit of key management for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. Short-

term benefit of key management for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are stated below: 

 
 1 January -  1 January -  
 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 
 

Salaries and other benefits (****) 450,000 282,000 

 

 450,000 282,000 

 
(****) It consists of the amount paid to the independent board members of the company. Board member Ata 

Selçuk, Independent Board member Erkan Durusoy and Ahmet Turgut Toksöz were each paid a monthly 

gross payment of 14.000 TL. 

 

 

4.  TRADE PAYABLES 

 

Short-term trade payables 

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Trade payables due to related parties (Note 3) 664,913 894,829 

Trade payables due to other parties 557,052 890 

 

Total 1,221,965 895,719 

 

 

5. OTHER RECEIVABLES 

 

Short-term other receivables  

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Other receivables from related parties 7,352 - 

Receivables from tax office 546,672 246,636 

Deposits and guarantees given (*) - 22,519,750 

 

Total 554,024 22,766,386 

 

(*) As of 31 December 2020, the deposits and guarantees given amounting to TL 22,519,750 consist of cash 

guarantees given to the intermediary institution for financial investment transactions. 
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6. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD 

 

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Investments accounted for using equity method 2,269,463,203 1,581,084,370 

  

Total (Note 3) 2,269,463,203 1,581,084,370 

 

As of 31 December 2021, Company’s shares in its associates, EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sinai ve Finansal 

Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A,Ş, and İntema İnşaat ve Tesis Malzemeleri A,Ş, and E-Kart Elektronik Kart 

Sistemleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş. are equal to 30.34 % and 46.21% and 31.01% respectively (31 December 

2020: 29.69%, 46.21%, and 31.01% respectively). The carrying value of of EIS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve 

Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A,Ş and İntema İnşaat Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş., determined in 

accordance with equity method, as of 31 December 2021 is TL 2,243,957,198 and TL 25,506,005 

respectively (31 December 2020: TL 1,568,555,362 and TL 12,529,008 for EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sinai ve 

Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A,Ş. and İntema İnşaat ve Tesis Malzemeleri A,Ş. respectively.). 

 

Movements of investments in associates through the period are as follows: 

 

 2021 2020 

 

Opening 1 January 1,581,084,370 1,280,190,754 

 

Company’s share in the associate’s profit (Note 13) 242,073,867 96,912,943 

Effect of other changes recognized in comprehensive income 3,976,368 261,836 

Effect of changes in fair value of financial assets 

  at fair value through other comprehensive income 457,315,185 217,233,142 

Eleminated dividend payments of associates (-) (44,821,609) (14,840,505) 

Share purchase effect during the period 29,835,022 1,326,200 

 

Closing 31 December 2,269,463,203 1,581,084,370 
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7. PREPAID EXPENSES 

 

Short-term prepaid expenses 

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Prepaid expenses for the following months - 776 

 

Total - 776 

 

Long-term prepaid expenses 

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Prepaid expenses for the following years 37,018 62,387 

 

Total 37,018 62,387 

 

 

8. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

 

a)  The company does not have any blocked accounts as of 31 December 2021.  

(31 December 2020: None). 

 

b) As of 31 December 2021, the Company has letters of guarantee given amounting to TL 30,000 

(31 December 2020: TL 30,000) 

 

c) As of 31 December 2021 the Company has no lawsuits againts the Company (31 December 2020: 

None). 

 

 

9. OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

 

Other non-current assets 

 

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Deferred VAT 9,753,313 8,657,642 

 

Total 9,753,313 8,657,642 

 

Other short-term liabilities 

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Taxes and funds payable 117,322 83,057 

 

Total 117,322 83,057 
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10. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES VE OTHER EQUITY ITEMS LERİ 
 

a)  Paid in capital 
 

The paid-in capital of the Company is TL 105,000,000 (31 December 2020: TL 105,000,000) divided 

by 105,000,000 (31 December 2020: 105,000,000) shares each with a nominal value of TL 1  

(31 December 2020: TL 1). 
 

The Company has no preferred stock as of 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: None). 
 

The Company’s registered share capital ceiling is TL 500,000,000  (31 December 2020: TL 500,000,000). 

The registered capital ceiling permission is effective until 2022.  
 

The shareholders and their shareholding percentages as of 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows 

with the historical amounts: 
 

  31 December 2021   31 December 2020  

 Total Share (%) Total Share (%) 
 

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 85,653,274 81.57 85,653,274 81.57 

Other (Listed) 19,346,726 18.43 19,346,726 18.43 
 

Capital 105,000,000 100.00 105,000,000 100.00 

 

Adjustment to share capital 105,173,533  105,173,533  
 

Adjusted capital 210,173,533  210,173,533  
 

Adjustment to share capital represents the difference between the cash contributions adjusted for 

inflation and the cash contributions prior to adjustment for inflation. 
 

The profits accumulated under legal books that do not qualify for the below clause, can be distributed. 
 

The legal reserves consist of first and second reserves, appropriated in accordance with the Turkish 

Commercial Code (‘TCC’), The TCC stipulates that the first legal reserve is appropriated out of statutory 

profits at the rate of 5% per annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the Company’s paid-

in/authorized share capital, The second legal reserve is appropriated at the rate of 10% per annum of all 

cash distributions in excess of 5% of the paid-in/authorized share capital, Under the TCC, the legal 

reserves can only be used to offset losses and are not available for any other usage unless they exceed 

50% of paid-in/authorized share capital. 
 

b)  Restricted reserves 
 

As of 31 December 2021 and 2020 restricted reserves appropriated from profit is as follows: 
 

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 
 

Gain on sale of shares of associates 54,310,394 887,495 

Legal reserves 27,060,309 21,141,540 

Corporate tax deduction 237,026 - 

Gain on sale of real estate fund - 13,593,750 
  

Total 81,607,729 35,622,785 
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10. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES VE OTHER EQUITY ITEMS LERİ (Continued) 

 

Profit distribution: 

 

In accordance with the decision taken on 13 April 2021, it has been decided to pay dividends amounting 

to 1.05400 with an equivalent of TL 130,200,000 per each share. Payments have been completed on  

30 April 2021 (In accordance with the decision taken on 9 April 2020, it has been decided to pay 

dividends amounting to 50,001,000 with an equivalent of TL 0.40477 per each share. Payments have 

been completed on 16 April 2020).  

 

 

11. GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

 

General administrative expenses 

 
 1 January -  1 January -  
 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 
 
Services received from related parties (Note 3) 5,855,348 4,086,013 
Outsourced service expenses 340,314 143,324 
Other 1,291,026 663,985 

 
 7,486,688 4,893,322 

 

 

12. OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES 
 
Other operating income 
 1 January -  1 January -  
 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 
 
Foreign exchange gains 334,430,487 40,497,729 
Dividend income (Note 3) 58,917,025 22,357,844 
Bank interest income 3,451,352 2,211,784 

Other 3,002 120,949 

 
 396,801,866 65,188,306 

 

Other operating expense (-) 
 1 January -  1 January -  
 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Foreign exchange losses 159,131,042 16,489,556 

Other 425,394 12,781 

 

 159,556,436 16,502,337 
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13.  SHARES INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED BY EQUITY METHOD OF PROFITS / 

LOSSES) 

 

 1 January -  1 January -  
 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Shares from the profits of investments accounted 

   using the equity method (Note 6) 242,073,867 96,912,943 

 

 242,073,867 96,912,943 

 

 

14.  FINANCIAL EXPENSES 

 1 January -  1 January -  
 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Interest expenses from leasing payables (Note 3) 1,732 4,564 

 

 1,732 4,564 

 

 

15. TAXATION 

 
The Company is subject to Turkish corporate taxes, Provision is made in the accompanying financial 

statements for the estimated charge based on the Company’s results for the years and periods. 

 

Corporate Tax 

 

Corporate Tax Law No. 5520 and dated 13 June 2006 was published in the Official Gazette dated 21 June 

2006. Many provisions of the said new Corporate Tax Law No. 5520 came into effect as of  

1 January 2006. Corporation tax is payable on the total income of the Company after adjusting for certain 

disallowable expenses, corporate income tax exemptions (participation exemption, investment incentive 

allowance, etc.) and corporate income tax deductions (like research and development expenditures deduction). 

No further tax is payable unless the profit is distributed except withholding tax at the rate of 19.8% on the 

investment incentive allowance utilized within the scope of the Income Tax Law Transitional Article 61. 

 

The corporate tax to be accrued on taxable corporate income, the addition of non-deductible expenses from 

the tax base in the determination of commercial income, and the deduction of tax-exempt gains, non-taxable 

incomes and other deductions (if any, previous year losses and investment incentives used if preferred) is 

calculated. 

 

1 January 2006 entered into force with effect from the date of 21 June 2006 and 5520, Income Tax Law of 

the 5th of Article (1) paragraph (d) according to the provisions in Turkey established securities portfolio of 

investment funds and partnerships Business earnings are exempt from corporate tax. The mentioned 

corporate tax exemption is also valid in terms of temporary tax application. No further tax is paid if the profit 

is not distributed. 
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15. TAXATION (Continued) 
 

According to Article 32 of the Corporate Tax Law, the corporate tax rate is 20%. However, in accordance 

with the temporary article 13 added to the Corporate Tax Law with the “Law on the Collection of Public 

Claims and Amendments to Some Laws” numbered 7061, which was published in the Official Gazette dated 

22 April 2021, the corporate tax rates are determined as 25% for 2021 and 23% for 2022. Deferred tax assets 

and liabilities in the financial statements as of 31 December 2021, within the scope of the said law, are 

calculated using the rate of 23% for the portion of the temporary differences that will have a tax effect in 

2022, and 20% for the following years. 
 

In Turkey, advance tax returns are filed on a quarterly basis, Advance corporate income tax rate applied in 1 

January – 31 March 2022 is 20% and 25% for other periods (2020: 22%), Losses can be carried forward for 

offset against future taxable income for up to 5 years, However, losses cannot be carried back for offset 

against profits from previous periods. 
 

Furthermore, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments, Companies file 

their tax returns between 1 - 30 April following the close of the accounting year to which they relate. Tax 

authorities may, however, examine such returns and the underlying accounting records and may revise 

assessments within five years. 
 

Withholding taxation 
 

In addition to corporate taxes, companies should also calculate income withholding taxes and funds surcharge 

on any dividends distributed, except for companies receiving dividends who are Turkish residents and 

Turkish branches of foreign companies, Income withholding tax applied in between  

22 July 2006 - 22 December 2021 is 15% with the Council of Ministers Decision No. 2006/10731. With the 

Presidential Decision No. 4936 published in the Official Gazette dated 22 December 2021, the profit share 

withholding tax rate was reduced from 15% to 10%. Dividends that are not distributed and added to the 

capital are not subject to income tax withholding. 
 

Withholding tax at the rate of 19.8% is still applied to investment allowances relating to investment incentive 

certificates obtained prior to 24 April 2003, Subsequent to this date, the investments without investment 

incentive certificates do not qualify for tax allowance.  
 

The Law on the Amendment of the Tax Procedure Law and the Corporate Tax Law dated January 20, 2022 and 

numbered 7352 was published in the Official Gazette dated 29.01.2022, and temporary accounting periods arise 

from the accounting in their respective periods. In the financial statements dated 31 December 2021, deferred 

tax assets and liabilities are calculated using the rate of 23% for the portion of temporary differences that will 

have tax effects in 2022, and 20% for the following years (31 December 2020: 20%). It has been decided that 

the financial statements will not be subject to inflation adjustment in the temporary tax periods of the 2023 fiscal 

year, regardless of whether the conditions for the inflation adjustment within the scope of the reiterated article 

298 are met. It has been stated that there is no need to make any adjustments in the consolidated financial 

statements for 2021 within the scope of TAS 29, “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies”. 
 

The taxes distribution on the consolidated statement of financial position for the periods  

1 January - 31 December 2021 and 2020 are summarized below: 
 

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

Current period corporate tax liability (-) (51,625,452) (4,717,304) 

Prepaid taxes 19,427,180 6,229,066 
 

Current period income tax asset/(liability) (32,198,272) 1,511,762 
 

 1 January - 1 January - 

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 
 

Current period corporate tax (-) (51,625,452) (4,717,304) 

Deferred income tax  9,216,920 (41) 

Total tax expense (42,408,532) (4,717,345)  
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15. TAXATION (Continued) 

 

 1 January -  1 January -  

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Profit before tax from continuing oprations 471,830,877 140,701,026 

 

Theoretical tax expense generated by the current tax rate (-) (117,957,719) (30,954,226) 

Shares of associates accounted for using 

   equity accounting method 60,518,467 21,320,847 

Tax-exempt dividend income 14,729,256 4,918,726 

Other 301,464 (2,692) 

 

Total tax expense (42,408,532) (4,717,345) 

 

Deferred tax 

 

The Company recognises deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon temporary differences arising 

between the financial statements prepared in accordance with TAS/TFRS and the tax financial statements, 

Such temporary differences generally arise due to revenues and expenses being recognised in different 

fiscal periods in accordance with tax regulations and TAS/TFRS, The breakdown of cumulative 

temporary differences and deferred income tax assets and liabilities accounted as at 31 December 2021 

and 2020 using the enacted tax rates is as follows: 

 
  Total temporary   Deferred tax  

  differences   assets/liabilities  

 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 

 2021 2020 2021 2020 

 

Temporary differences related to fair value through 

other comprehensive  

   income assets (-) (*) (Note 17) (1,308,559,196) (1,093,308,285) (65,427,960) (54,665,415) 

Adjustments regarding leasing transactions - 2,679 - 536 

 

Deferred tax liabilities (-)   (65,427,960) (54,664,879) 

 

(*) The new Corporate Tax Law No. 5520 (“KVK”), which will be implemented as of January 1, 2006, has brought changes 

to the old KVK application no. 5422 regarding the “Exemption of the Earnings from the Sale of Immovable and 

Participation Shares”. 50% of the immovables (real estates) that are in the assets of the institutions for at least two full 

years and 75% of the profits arising from the sale of participation shares, founder's shares, usufruct shares and priority 

right are exempt from tax. Since the company management foresees to keep the profit to be obtained under the equity 

for 2 years, it applies the taxation rate for the related temporary difference as 5%. In this context, deferred tax liability 

has been calculated for the first time in the financial statements dated 31 December 2006 using the 5% rate from the 

temporary differences between the carrying values of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

and the values used in the tax base. Since these temporary differences are accounted for in equity, the related deferred 

tax liability is also deducted from the financial assets revaluation fund account in equity. 
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15. TAXATION (Continued) 

 

The movement of deferred income tax liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 is as follows: 

 

 2021 2020 

 

Opening - 1 January (54,664,879) (43,374,667) 

 

Recognized under statement of comprehensive income (19,980,001) (11,290,171) 

Recognized in the income statement 

   deferred tax expense (-) 9,216,920 (41) 

 

Closing - 31 December (65,427,960) (54,664,879) 

 

 

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

 

 1 January -  1 January -  

Earnings per share 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 Average number of  

   shares for period 105,000,000 105,000,000 

 Net profit from continuing operations 

   attributable to parent Company’s shareholders 429,422,345 135,983,681 

Earning per share from continuing operations 4.09 1.30 

 Other comprehensive income of  

   parent company shareholders’ 1,270,333,834 567,991,903 

Earnings per share from continuing operating activities 

      - thousand ordinary shares (TL) 12.10 5.41 

 

 

17. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 

 

Long-term financial investments 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Financial assets measured at fair value  

   through other comprehensive income 1,397,124,330 1,206,279,307 

 

Total 1,397,124,330 1,206,279,307 
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17. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

 
 31 December Share  31 December Share 

Non-public financial investments   2021 (%) 2020 (%) 

 

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. (**) 1,397,124,330 11.54 1,013,832,183 11.54 

Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri A.Ş. (*) - - 192,447,124 10.29 

 

Total  1,397,124,330 1,206,279,307  

 

(*)  The fair value of the financial investment at fair value through other comprehensive income has been determined by 

using the net asset value. 

(**) The company has determined a fair value by using valuation techniques for its financial assets that are not traded in an 

active market. These valuation techniques include based on current transactions in line with market conditions or other 

essentially similar investment instruments and discounted cash flow analysis taking into account the conditions specific 

to the invested company. Changes in fair values are accounted for in the "Gain from financial assets at fair value through 

other comprehensive income" account from equity items. In fair value determination of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş., the 

methods shown below are used; 

 

i) Rent income; discounted cash flows (Level 3). 

ii) Real estates; current transaction cost, arm’s length price and expertise values (Level 2). 

iii) Net asset values of remaining assets and liabilities in cash (Level 3). 

iv) The multiplication of ownership interest rates of Eczacıbaşı Holding with the fair values of all subsidiaries, 

joint ventures and associates.  
 

 Proportion of Fair value   

 power held by measurement  

 Eczacıbaşı Holding (%) (*) method  
 

Name 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 
 

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 100.00 100.00 (I) (I) (I) (I) 

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 75.37 74.84 (I) (I) (I) (I) 

İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat Malz. Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. 77.39 77.38 (II) (II) Level 3 Level 3 

Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 100.00 98.10 (II) (II) Level 3 Level 3 

Esan Eczacıbaşı Endüstriyel Hammaddeler San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 99.69 99.69 (II) (II) Level 3 Level 3 

Vitra Karo San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 92.92 92.79 (II) (II) Level 3 Level 3 

Eczacıbaşı Tüketim Ürünleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 100.00 100.00 (II) (II) Level 3 Level 3 

EİP Eczacıbaşı İlaç Pazarlama A.Ş. 75.37 74.84 (II) (II) Level 3 Level 3 

Eczacıbaşı Monrol Nükleer Ürünler San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 58.79 60.62 (II) (II) Level 3 Level 3 

E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 44.23 44.23 (III) (II) Level 3 Level 3 

ESİ Eczacıbaşı Sigorta Acenteliği A.Ş. 4.92 4.92 (III) (III) Level 3 Level 3 

Eczacıbaşı Momentum Teknoloji Yatırımları A.Ş. 100.00 100.00 (III) (III) Level 3 Level 3 

Eczacıbaşı Gayrimenkul Geliştirme ve Yatırım A.Ş. 75.47 74.94 (III) (III) Level 3 Level 3 

Eczacıbaşı İlaç Ticaret A.Ş. 75.38 74.85 (III) (III) Level 3 Level 3 

Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. 81.57 81.57 (III) (III) Level 2 Level 2 

Kanyon Yönetim İşletim ve Pazarlama A.Ş. 50.00 50.00 (III) (III) Level 3 Level 3 

Toplu Konut Holding A.Ş. 27.00 27.00 (III) (III) Level 3 Level 3 

Ekom Eczacıbaşı Dış Ticaret A.Ş. 89.88 89.74 (III) (III) Level 3 Level 3 

Villeroy & Boch Fliesen GmbH 90.80 90.67 (III) (III) Level 3 Level 3 

Vitra Fliesen GmbH & Co. KG 92.92 92.79 (III) (III) Level 3 Level 3 

Tasfiye Halinde Eczacıbaşı-Baxter Hastane Ür. San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 37.68 37.42 (III) (III) Level 3 Level 3 

Eczacıbaşı Bilişim San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 96.70 96.62 (III) (III) Level 3 Level 3 

Vitra Plitka 92.92 92.79 (III) (III) Level 3 Level 3 

Eczacıbaşı Yapı Ürünleri Yatırımları A.Ş. (**) 100.00 - (III) - Level 3 - 

Eczacıbaşı Evital Sağlık Hizmetleri ve Tic. A.Ş. (***) 98.00 - (III) - Level 3 - 
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17. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (Continued) 
 

(*) Proportion of ownership interest represents the effective shareholding of Eczacıbaşı Holding directly through the shares 

held in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates and indirectly by these companies. 

 

(**) In 2021, Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş. was established as a result of the partial division process. 

 

(***)  The company was established in November 2021. 
 

The methods used in fair value measurement of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. are as follows: 
 

Fair Value Measurement Methods Code 
 

Discounted cash flows (II) 

Net asset value (III) 

Net book value (IV) 
 

(I) In the fair value measurement of Eczacıbaşı Holding, for the stand-alone fair value of EİS 

Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş., the effect of the cross 

ownership with Eczacıbaşı Holding has been taken into consideration. The following have been 

taken into account in the related stand-alone fair value determination: 
 

i) Kanyon Shopping Mall and Office Building; discounted cash flows of rent income (Level 3), 

ii) Financial assets; net asset value (Level 2),  

iii) Real estates; current transaction cost, imputed cost and expertise values (Level 2), 
 

In this context, the fair value has been calculated as 3,281,708,000 as of 31 December 2021  

(31 December 2020: TL 2,378,814,000). As of 31 December 2021, market/stock value of  

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. amounts to 

5,132,597,000 TL (31 December 2020: TL 5,112,040,000). 
 

(II) The discount rates used in discounted cash-flow method are determined for each entity separately 

taking into consideration the following factors: 
 

i)  The countries in which each entity is located and the risk premiums of these countries, 

ii)  The market risk premiums for each entity and 

iii)  The industry risk premiums for the sectors in which each entity operates, 
 

Comparable risk premiums (in line with observable market data) are used in the determination of 

discount rates. 
 

For the calculation of discount rates used for companies valuated with discounted cash flow 

method cost of equity and cost of capital have been evaluated considering to risk free return rate 

and risk premiums, Accordingly weighted average cost of capital (‘WACC’) rates are calculated 

with regards to sustainable debt to equity ratios of each industry of related company, As of  

31 December 2021, if WACC would be 100 base point higher/lower, fair value of asset held for 

sale would be thousand TL 112,471,000 lower/thousand TL 136,830,000 higher. 
 

In this context, the discount rates used for companies with functional currency TL are changed 

between 26,2% - 29% (31 December 2020: 16.6% - 19%) while the discount rate used for 

companies with functional currency EUR is 7,4% (31 December 2020: 7.4%), and GBP is 7,5% 

(31 December 2020: 7.5%).  
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17. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (Continued) 

 

(III) The fair values of these companies are determined by net asset values and net book values, the 

net asset value is calculated by deducting liabilities from monetary assets, whereas net book 

values are calculated by their cost values. 
 

(IV) Current transaction price consists of the financial instruments of which fair values are measured 

by comparable costs of current transactions as of the statement of financial position date. 
 

In the discounted cash flow method used within the scope of the valuation, the long-term growth rate 

for the Turkish Lira was used as 12%. If this rate was 50 basis points higher/lower, the amounts were 

TL 18,549,000 and TL 17,392,000 (31 December 2020: TL 101,995,000 and TL 93,648,000) 

respectively. 
 
The fair value of each company calculated according to the methods mentioned above is multiplied by 

the effective partnership ratio of Eczacıbaşı Holding and the total fair value of Eczacıbaşı Holding has 

been found, and the calculation detail of the amount included in the Company's financial statements as 

of 31 December is summarized in the table below: 

 

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 
 

Total fair value of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. (*) 13,708,874,893 9,947,927,477 

Total share of the Company within the total fair value 

  of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. (**) 1,582,004,742 1,147,991,251 

The effect of mutual subsidiary 164,400,671 119,298,978 
 

Fair value before liquidity discount 1,746,405,413 1,267,290,229 
 

Miniority discount (-) (349,281,083) (253,458,046) 
 

Fair value of the Company in consolidated financials 1,397,124,330 1,013,832,183 
 

(*) Reflects the amount multiplied with the total proportion of ownership interests. 
 

(**) As of 31 December 2021 and 2020 the direct capital share of Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. 

within Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. is 11.54%. 
 

As presented in the table above, TL 13,708,874,893 (31 December 2020: TL 9,947,927,477) of fair 

value before minority discount is calculated by using the fair value of Eczacıbaşı Holding A,Ş, which 

amounts to TL 1,582,004,742 (31 December 2020: TL 1,147,991,251) which is multiplied by 11.54%  

(31 December 2020: 11.54%), the share participation of Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A,Ş in Eczacıbaşı 

Holding A,Ş, and the result equals to TL 164,400,671 (31 December 2020: TL 119,298,978) is added 

to TL 1,746,405,013 (31 December 2020: TL 1,267,290,229), which is calculated as the effect of 

reciprocal shares between Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A,Ş, and Eczacıbaşı Holding A,Ş. The 

fair value of 1.397.124.330 TL (31 December 2020: 1.013.382.183 TL) in the consolidated financial 

statements has been reached by deducting the 20% (2020: 20%) minority discount from this value. 
 

As of 31 December 2021, the effect of a change of 100 basis points in the minority discount applied for 

financial investments whose fair value is determined by the discounted cash flow method is  

TL 17,464,063 (31 December 2020: TL 12,672,899).  
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18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

 

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in 

debt and equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company’s overall 

risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize 

potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company. 

 

(a)  Credit risk 

 

Most of the the Company’s credit risk arises from the trade receivables, marketable securities and time 

deposits in the banks.  The bank deposits got off less than three months, Marketable securities comprise 

the government bonds those are issued by the Turkish Republic Prime Ministry Undersecretariat for the 

Treasury.
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18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 

 

(a)  Credit risk (Continued) 

 

Credit risks exposed by types of financial instruments 

 
  Receivables  

   Trade Receivables   Other Receivables  

     Financial Cash and cash 

31 December 2021 Related party Other Related party Other instruments (*) equivalent 

 

Maximum credit risk exposure as of reporting date (A+B+C+D) - - 7,352 554,024 1,397,124,330 410,163,156 

- Collateralized or secured with guarantees part of maximum credit risk - - - - - - 

A. Neither past due nor impaired net book value - - 7,352 554,024 1,397,124,330 410,163,156 

B. Past due but not impaired net book value - - - - - - 

C. Net book value of impaired assets - - - - - - 

- Past due (gross amount) - - - - - - 

- Impairment (-) - - - - - - 

D. Off balance sheet items with credit risk - - - - - - 
 

(*)  As of 31 December 2021, all related financial instruments amounting to TL 1,397,124,330 consist of financial assets whose fair value difference is reflected to other comprehensive income of the 

related parties of the Company. 

 

In determining the above amounts, factors that increase credit reliability, such as collateral received, are not considered. The Company's financial assets exposed 

to credit risk do not have any impaired assets. In addition, the Company does not have assets that involve risks other than those of the non-statement of financial 

position and have not been impaired. 
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18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 

 

(a)  Credit risk (Continued) 

 
  Receivables  

   Trade Receivables   Other Receivables  

     Financial Cash and cash 

31 December 2020 Related party Other Related party Other instruments (*) equivalent 

 

Maximum credit risk exposure as of reporting date (A+B+C+D) - - - 22,766,386 1,206,279,307 83,041,369 

- Collateralized or secured with guarantees part of maximum credit risk - - - - - - 

A. Neither past due nor impaired net book value - - - 22,766,386 1,206,279,307 83,041,369 

B. Past due but not impaired net book value - - - - - - 

C. Net book value of impaired assets - - - - - - 

- Past due (gross amount) - - - - - - 

- Impairment (-) - - - - - - 

D. Off balance sheet items with credit risk - - - - - - 

 

(*)  As of 31 December 2020, all related financial instruments amounting to TL 1,206,279,307 consist of financial assets of which the fair value difference of the Company's related parties is 

reflected to other comprehensive income. 

 

In determining the above amounts, factors that increase credit reliability, such as collateral received, are not considered. The Company's financial assets exposed 

to credit risk do not have any impaired assets. In addition, the Company does not have assets that involve risks other than those of the non-statement of financial 

position and have not been impaired. 
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18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

(Continued) 

 

(a)  Credit risk (Continued) 

 

The Company's management has tried to manage the credit risk of receivables according to customer-

specific credit risk analysis through such methods as advances obtained from customer or work with 

letter of credit. The Company protects itself from any dispute by analysing the reliability of their 

customers, putting required sales terms to sales contracts. Furthermore, the Company management 

follows the delays in collections from its customers by analysing aging analyses and takes precautions 

to such kind of delays. 

 

Trade receivables are spread out to various sectors and geographical clients, The Company reviews 

customers’ collection risk and ensure the receivable if needed. 

 

b)  Liquidity risk management 

 

Liquidity risk is the inability of the Company to match the net funding requirements with sufficient 

liquidity, A decrease in funding sources mainly due to market instability or a decrease in credit risk 

results in liquidity risk, The Company manages the liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and 

other liquid assets in order to fund the current and prospective debt requirements. 

 

The distribution of expiration of the financial liabilities as of 31 December 2021 and  

31 December 2020 according to their contract dates is as follows: 

 
31 December 2021 

  Contractual Less Between Between More 

  cash flow than 3 3-12 1-5  than 5 

 Book Total months months years years 

Maturities of contractual terms Value (I+II+III+IV) (I) (II) (III) (IV) 

 

Trade payables 1,221,966 1,221,966 1,221,966 - - - 

Lease liabilities         84,369 84,369 1,812 8,468 74,089 - 

 

Total liabilities 1,306,335 1,306,335 1,223,778 8,468 74,089 - 

 

31 December 2020 

 
  Contractual Less Between Between More 

  cash flow than 3 3-12 1-5  than 5 

 Book Total months months years years 

Maturities of contractual terms Value (I+II+III+IV) (I) (II) (III) (IV) 

 

Trade payables 895,719 895,719 895,719 - - - 

Lease liabilities         17,563 17,563 4,094 13,469 - - 

 

Total liabilities 913,282 913,282 899,813 13,469 - - 
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18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

(Continued) 

 

c)  Market Risk 

 

i) Currency risk 

 

In the case of owning of foreign currency assets, liabilities and non-balance sheet liabilities, the risk that 

is exposed to resulting from the currency movements is defined as the foreign exchange risk.  

 

As of 31 December 2021 and 2020 the monetary assets and liabilities of foreign currency are as follows: 

 
31 December 2021 Functional Curreny (TL) USD EUR     

Monetary financial assets 409,324,214 20,908,825 8,658,652 

    

Total Assets 409,324,214 20,908,825 8,658,652  
   

Total Liabilities - - -  
   

Net foreign currency position 409,324,214 20,908,825 8,658,652 

 
31 December 2020 Functional Curreny (TL) USD EUR     

Monetary financial assets 82,722,732 11,219,937 40,274     

Other receivables 22,519,750 - 2,500,000 

    

Total Assets 105,242,482 11,219,937 2,540,274  
   

Total Liabilities - - -  
   

Net foreign currency position 105,242,482 11,219,937 2,540,274 
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18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

  31 December 2021  

  Profit/Loss   Equity  

 Appreciation of Depreciation of Appreciation of Depreciation of 

 foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency 

 

10% change in USD against TL: 

     

USD net asset/liabilitiy 27,869,373 (27,869,373) 27,869,373 (27,869,373) 

Hedge Positions (-) - - - - 

 

USD net effect 27,869,373 (27,869,373) 27,869,373 (27,869,373) 

 
10% change in EUR against TL: 

 

EUR net asset/liabilitiy 13,063,049 (13,063,049) 13,063,049 (13,063,049) 
Hedge Positions (-) - - - - 

 

EUR net effect 13,063,049 (13,063,049) 13,063,049 (13,063,049) 

 

Total 40,932,422 (40,932,422) 40,932,422 (40,932,422) 

 

  31 December 2020  

  Profit/Loss   Equity  

 Appreciation of Depreciation of Appreciation of Depreciation of 

 foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency 

 

10% change in USD against TL: 

     
USD net asset/liabilitiy 8,235,995 (8,235,995) 8,235,995 (8,235,995) 

Hedge Positions (-) - - - - 

 

USD net effect 8,235,995 (8,235,995) 8,235,995 (8,235,995) 

 

10% change in EUR against TL: 

 
EUR net asset/liabilitiy 2,288,253 (2,288,253) 2,288,253 (2,288,253) 
Hedge Positions (-) - - - - 

 

EUR net effect 2,288,253 (2,288,253) 2,288,253 (2,288,253) 

 

Total 10,524,248 (10,524,248) 10,524,248 (10,524,248) 

 

As of 31 December 2021 and 2020, the exchange rates used in the calculation of TL equivalents of 

foreign currency assets and liabilities are as follows: 

 

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

USD 13.3290 7.3405 

EUR 15.0867 9.0079 
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18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

(Continued) 

 

c)  Market Risk (Continued) 

 

ii) Interest risk 

 

The Company management uses its interest-bearing assets in short-term investment instruments within 

the framework of the principle of managing it with natural measures by balancing the maturities of 

interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities. 

 

As of 31 December 2021, there are no financial assets exposed to interest rate risk other than time 

deposits in the financial statement of the Company. In addition to this, the Company is exposed to 

interest rate risk due to change in weighted average cost of capital included in free cash flow models 

used in valuation of equity based financial investments at Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. classified as financial 

assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company presents the possible 

expected effects of the changes in interest rates or in components of interest in Note 19. In addition to 

these, as the Company does not have a financial assets or liabilities with variable interest rate and the 

effect of the possible repricing would have not material effect on carrying value of the time deposits, 

the Company has not presented sensitivity analyze on time deposits. 

 

The interest rate applied to the financial assets as of the 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 is as 

follows: 

 

Assets 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 USD (%) USD (%) 

 

Time deposits 1.18 2.50 

 

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 EUR (%) EUR (%) 

 

Time deposits 1.06 - 

 

Interest rate types of the Company’s financial instruments as of 31 December 2021 and 2020 are 

presented below. 

 

Financial instruments with fixed interest 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Time deposits 408,414,690 82,371,270 

 

iii) Price risk 

 

The Company is not subject to price risk as there is no equity investment that are classified under 

financial assets measured on fair value through profit and loss (31 December 2020: None). 
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19. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

 

Level classifications of financial assets and liabilities given at their fair values: 

 

Finansal varlıkların ve yükümlülüklerin gerçeğe uygun değeri aşağıdaki gibi belirlenir: 

 
• Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, 
• Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset 

or liability, either directly (i.e, as prices) or indirectly (i.e, derived from prices), 
• Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data 

(unobservable inputs), 
 

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company are reflected to the financial statements 

at their fair values at each balance sheet date, The following table provides information on how to 

determine the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities: 

 
31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
 

Fair value through other comprehensive  

   income assets (*) (**) - 489,694,420 907,429,910 

 

 - 489,694,420 907,429,910 

 

31 December 2020  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
 

Fair value through other comprehensive  

   income assets (*) (**) - 355,120,717  851,158,590  

 

 - 355,120,717  851,158,590  

 

(*) The detailed information required for Levels 2 and 3 is given in Note 19. 

 

(**) The detailed information on methods used in the determination of fair value is given in Note 17. 

 

As of 31 December 2021, the fair value of financial assets whose fair value difference is reflected in 

other comprehensive income is TL 1,397,124,330 (31 December 2020: TL 1,206,279,307). 

 

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Opening   

 851,158,590 634,193,413 

 

Total income recognized under other comprehensive income 294,692,829 217,130,476 

Classification changes within the period (-) (238,421,509) (165,299) 

 

Closing 907,429,910 851,158,590  
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20. DISCLOSURES RELATED TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

 

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Cash in banks 410,163,156 83,041,369 

   Demand deposits 1,748,466 670,099 

   Term deposits with a maturity of less than three months (*) 408,414,690 82,371,270 

 

Total 410,163,156 83,041,369 

 
(*) As of 31 December 2021, the maturity of time deposits is less than 1 month and the average interest rates 

applied are 1.18% for USD deposits and 1.06% for EUR (31 December 2020: for time deposits with 

maturities less than 1 month, the average interest rates applied 2.50% for USD deposits.). 

 

As of 31 December 2021, and 2020 cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statements 

of cash flows are presented below: 

 

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 

Cash and cash equivalents 410,163,156 83,041,369 

Rediscount (-)  (79,892) (157,670) 

 

Total 410,083,264 82,883,699 

 

 

21. FEES FOR SERVICES RECEIVED FROM INDEPENDENT AUDITOR/AUDITORS 

 

The Company's explanation regarding the fees for services rendered by independent audit firms, which 

is prepared by the POA pursuant to the Board Decision published in the Official Gazette on  

30 March 2021, and the preparation principles of which are based on the POA letter dated  

19 August  2021 are as follows: 

 

 2021 2020 

 

Independent audit fee for the reporting period 111 101 

 

 111 101 

 

 

22. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 

 

As stated in the material disclosure made by the Company on 30 December 2021, its subsidiary  

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. A total nominal amount of 

146,630 TL was purchased from the shares. With these purchases, EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç Sınai ve Finansal 

Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. Its share in the capital was 30.36% as of 4 January 2022. 

(Related share purchase transactions were completed on January 4, 2022 due to 2 business days.) 

………………….. 
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Investment Holding Co.
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